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Gazing LI (Mountain)

by Tan Rui Rong
Oil on Canvas

Mr Tan Rui Rong’s Gazing LLi is the design inspiration for this year’s UOB (China) Annual Report.
The painting received the Silver Award in the 2013 UOB Painting of the Year (Singapore)
Competition.

Mr Tan was moved by the philosophy of Buddhism Master Qing Yuan Wei Xin who said If
L2 (@ mountain is a mountain), il LA~ 2L (2 mountain is not a mountain), I LLE=ZLL (a
mountain is still @ mountain). The saying’s deeper meaning reflects the changing perspectives
people have as they progress through different stages in their lives.

Referencing Master Qing’s philosophy, the artist uses the character L to represent the
mountain. To the young boy standing at its foot, the immense mountain represents the promise
of the future. With knowledge and resilience he will be able to scale its heights. It is a journey
that will see him gain the wisdom to seize the many opportunities that will present themselves
over time.

The UOB Painting of the Year Competition now in its 32™ year, promotes awareness and
appreciation of the arts and challenges artists to produce works that inspire audiences across
Southeast Asia.
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Important Notice

The Board of Directors of the Company assures that the
information presented in this report is true, accurate and
complete. This report was passed at the Board of Directors
Meeting held on 6 March 2014.

The financial statements of the Company for Year 2013
were audited by Ernst & Young Hua Ming Shanghai Office in
accordance with the China Certificated Public Accountants’
Independent Auditing Standards, and have obtained standard
auditors’ reports without any reserved opinions.

Board of Directors, United Overseas Bank (China) Limited

6 March 2014
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About United Overseas Bank (China) Limited
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United Overseas Bank (China) Limited (UOB (China)) is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the United Overseas Bank Limited (UOB),
a leading bank in Asia. UOB (China) was incorporated in the
People’s Republic of China on 18 December 2007 with a
registered capital of Renminbi (RMB) three billion.

Headquartered in Shanghai, UOB (China) commenced
business on 2 January 2008. The Bank’s growth in China has
been based on a long-term strategic focus which has seen
it increases its presence to more than 10 branches and sub-
branches in major cities in China.

UOB has 30 years’ experience in China, with the first
representative office set up in Beijing in 1984. In 2006 UOB was
the first bank from Southeast Asia authorised to settle capital
accounts in Shanghai. UOB (China) received a retail RMB licence
and Shanghai Gold Exchange (SGE) trading membership in 2008
and 2011 respectively. In 2012, UOB (China) received a Qualified
Domestic Institutional Investors (QDII) licence, and was one of
an initial batch of 20 banks to participate in bullion trading on the
SGE interbank platform. UOB (China) is also one of the first foreign
banks to obtain a local mutual fund licence in China in 2013.
These advances extended further the Bank’s business offerings to
customers operating in China.

UOB (China) is rated triple A for its overall financial credibility
and stable for its financial strength outlook by China Chengxin
International Credit Rating Company Limited.

As UOB (China) continues to grow its business, it is also
committed to its people and the community. Since 2012,
UOB (China) has held its corporate social responsibility
programme, the annual UOB Heartbeat Run/Walk, to raise
funds to support children and education-related community
projects for beneficiaries in China.

For more information about UOB (China), visit
www.UOBChina.com.cn
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About United Overseas Bank Limited

United Overseas Bank Limited (UOB) is a leading bank in Asia
with a global network of more than 500 offices in 19 countries
and territories in Asia Pacific, Western Europe and North
America. Since its incorporation in 1935, UOB has grown
organically and through a series of strategic acquisitions. In
Asia it operates through its branches and representative offices
as well as banking subsidiaries in China, Indonesia, Malaysia,
the Philippines, Singapore and Thailand.

UOB is rated among the world’s top banks, with a rating of Aa1
by Moody’s and AA- by Standard & Poor’s and Fitch Ratings
respectively.

UOB provides a wide range of financial services including
personal financial services, private banking, business
banking, commercial and corporate banking, transaction
banking, investment banking, corporate finance, capital
market activities, treasury services, futures broking, asset
management, venture capital management and insurance.

In Singapore, UOB is a leader in the credit and debit cards
business and the private home loans business. It is also
a key player in loans to small and medium enterprises. Its
fund management arm, UOB Asset Management, is one of
Singapore’s most awarded fund managers.

UOB also plays an active role in the community, focusing
on the arts, education and children. It has, over more than
three decades, held the longest-running art competition in
Singapore, the UOB Painting of the Year.

In recognition of its contribution to the arts, UOB was conferred
the National Arts Council’s Distinguished Patron of the Arts
Award for the ninth consecutive year in 2013. UOB also
encourages its employees across the region to be involved in
its regular volunteer activities. This includes the annual UOB
Heartbeat Run which is held in Singapore, Malaysia, Indonesia,
Thailand and mainland China.

For more information about UOB, visit www.UOBGroup.com.
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2013 2012 (Dg'(frf;s;
ZE R R Operating result ARMTFIT RMB'000 %
FIEEKN Net interest income 808,212 625,655 29.2
FHEHERMESBN Net fee and commission income 110,659 56,739 95.0
El N &t Total operating income 876,829 870,603 0.7
E\\l # F Total operating expenses 660,019 563,665 17.1
AR AESL Impairment charges 58,755 24,716 137.7
&\l F3[E Operating profit 158,055 282,221 (44.0)
FLETFIHE Profit before tax 167,984 286,788 (41.4)
HEFI3E Net profit after tax 127,345 214,588 (40.7)
%= fafx Balance sheet ARMF 7T RMB'000 %
#H 7= Bt Total assets 41,972,412 34,583,262 21.4
BT R Bk Customer loans, net 18,853,289 14,916,638 26.4
fafRA It Total liabilities 38,099,288 30,806,847 23.7
U 7F 5% Customer deposits 29,059,961 23,944,690 21.4
FrE & &1t Shareholders’ equity 3,873,124 3,776,415 2.6
W &4E#x Financial indicators % % %
FARFEZR Return on average ordinary shareholders’ equity 3.3 5.8 (2.5)
= FjE% Return on average total assets 0.3 0.6 (0.3)
AN EE Expenses/income ratio 75.3 64.7 10.6
FEHERBE SN RN Net fee and commission income/total operating income 12.6 6.5 6.1
% F| BULEEZR Net interest margin 2.8 2.5 0.3
7755tk Loans-to-Deposits ratio 65.9 64.3 1.6
T REIFLZE Non-performing loan ratio 0.3 0.7 (0.4)
# % B =% Non-performing loan coverage 463.8 277.8 186.0
&R FE B RIEHFF Capital adequacy ratio
Bb—REARTTEZR Core Tier 1 CAR 16.7
—HAARFRE Tier 1 CAR 16.7 22.3 (5.6)
Bt R Total CAR 17.7 23.5 (5.8)
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Chairman’s Statement

Gazing Mountain, the painting on the cover of this year’s
annual report, reminds us that potential is always present
before us, but to scale new heights, one must possess resolve,
resilience and clear direction. This resonates with UOB’s
focused approach in building a sustainable business that has
the strength to support customers through economic cycles
and to help seize new opportunities when the timing is right.

Over the years, we have never lost sight of the fundamentals
of banking and have remained disciplined and measured in
our growth strategy. We have painstakingly built a network
that connects customers with the opportunities Asia offers
while remaining sensitive to local market conditions.

UOB (China) Financial Performance

In 2013, our business in China continued to develop as
we capitalised on the opportunities and adapted well to
the changes resulting from the country’s rapid economic
transformation. Our net interest income grew strongly
by 29 per cent to RMB 808.2 million and our net fee and
commission income rose by 95 per cent to RMB 110.7 million.
This growth was backed by higher loans and increased trade
volume, as well as targeted cross-selling.

Our operating expenses grew by 17 per cent as we continued
to make important advances in strengthening our local franchise
and in building new capabilities. These investments and a
negative impact from foreign exchange fluctuations on capital
caused a 41 per cent decrease on our net profit after tax to RMB
127.3 million while operating income growth was flat.

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013 | 7
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Our foundation is solid, backed by a strong balance sheet and
sound capital and liquidity levels. Our net customer loans increased
by 26 per cent to RMB 18.9 billion, while customer deposits grew
by 21 per cent to RMB 29.1 billion. Our loans-to-deposits ratio
remained healthy at 65.9 per cent and is below the local regulatory
requirement.

As we continued to adopt a disciplined approach to mitigating
credit risk, our non-performing loans ratio decreased further to
0.3 per cent.

Delivering on Our Regional Strategy in China

Our growth is driven by the two major trends of increasing
intra-regional trade and rising consumer wealth, and reinforced
by our determination to execute well against our regional
strategy. In the process, we remain responsive to the needs
of our customers across various markets and committed to
providing them with appropriate financial advice and solutions.

In China, this approach is evident in our continued investment
in solutions catering to the business community. For instance,
our new Foreign Direct Investment (FDI) Advisory Unit set up
in China in 2018 is tracking well in helping Chinese companies
expand in the rest of Asia, and our regional customers
deepen their businesses in China. The unit is one of nine
that we have established over the last two years to cater to
the increasing number of commercial customers who want
to draw on our regional expertise and Asian network to fulfil
their expansion ambitions across markets. Our Commercial
Banking and Corporate Banking teams also continued to
deepen relationships with Chinese customers in industries
such as oil and gas, transportation, telecommunications, food
and beverage, and real estate.

UOB'’s reputation as a dependable banking partner continues
to attract customers to work with us, and in 2013 we
increased our corporate client base in China by close to 30
per cent.

Just as we work to support the ambitions of businesses
across the region, we continue to invest in our retail banking
capabilities to serve the increasing number of wealthy
individuals in China who seek quality advice and financial
products to manage their wealth. In 2013, we were one of
the first foreign banks to obtain a local mutual fund licence in
China. This has allowed us to extend new wealth management
products to help our customers further diversify their portfolios.

We also enhanced the banking experience for our customers
by transforming the focus of our retail services to serving their
lifestyle needs. For instance, we introduced a new mobile
banking application to provide our customers with easy
access to their banking accounts wherever they may be.
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Chairman’s Statement

To meet the needs of our growing base of affluent customers,
we opened our 11" UOB Privilege Banking centre in China in
one of the most iconic buildings on the Bund in Shanghai, a
location where many of our customers live and work. We also
obtained regulatory approvals to proceed with the establishment
of a universal branch in Chongqging, a UOB Privilege Banking
sub-branch in Beijing Lufthansa Centre and a sub-branch in
the Shanghai Pilot Free Trade Zone to capture the opportunities
arising from China’s financial industry reform.

Investing in Our People

While we continue to invest in our network and products, it
is the interest we have in our people that makes the most
significant difference to our business.

In an industry where regulatory requirements are ever changing
and where innovation and technology require investment in
new skill sets, UOB (China) has established many industry-
leading training programmes to equip our people with the
skills they need to provide excellent service to our customers.
But it is the shared values and mindset of the UOB team
which ensure that “the spirit of a handshake” remains core to
how we conduct our business. This fundamental principle is
how we have built our business in the past and will continue
to do so in future.

We are resolute in building UOB (China) as a dependable and
honourable bank in China, able to foster with our customers
and the community long-term relationships that are built on
trust, respect and doing what is right.

Looking Ahead

The year ahead will have its challenges as China continues to
transform, but it is how we respond to them that will ensure
our continued relevance, competitiveness and growth.

We remain committed to China and have plans in place
to expand our business over the long term to serve more
customers in key cities. The internationalisation of the RMB
and Singapore’s rise as an offshore RMB centre are set
to open the doors to more business opportunities for our
customers who have business in China. We will continue to
work closely with our customers to help them take advantage
of these developments.

For Asia, we expect a more moderate growth environment
in 2014. The quantitative easing tapering in the US signals a
recovering global economy which bodes well for this part of
the world. The near-term impact of capital outflows should be
manageable given the strong balance sheets in Asia. Despite
the ongoing uncertainties in a few countries, we remain
positive on Asia’s underlying economic fundamentals and are
committed to strengthening our franchise in the region.

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013 | 9
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Wee Cho Yaw
Supervisor

Dr Wee, 85, has been the Supervisor of UOB (China) since
2007.

Dr Wee was first appointed to the Board of UOB in May 1958
and last re-appointed as Director on 25 April 2013. A banker
with more than 50 years’ experience, Dr Wee was conferred the
title of Chairman Emeritus and Adviser in 2013 after stepping
down as Chairman, a position he was appointed to in 1974.
Between 1974 and 2007, he was concurrently the CEO of UOB.
A non-independent and non-executive director, Dr Wee is the
chairman of the UOB Executive, Remuneration and Board Risk
Management Committees and a member of the Nominating
Committee.

Dr Wee is Chairman Emeritus and Adviser of UOB subsidiaries
Far Eastern Bank and UOB (Malaysia). He is also Chairman of
United Overseas Insurance, UOB (Thai) Public Company and
President Commissioner of PT Bank UOB Indonesia.

Dr Wee also chairs the boards of Haw Par Corporation,
UOL Group and its subsidiary, Pan Pacific Hotels Group,
United Industrial Corporation and Singapore Land and its
subsidiary, Marina Centre Holdings. He is also the Chairman
of the Wee Foundation. He was the Chairman of United
International Securities from 1973 to December 2013.
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Supervisor

Dr Wee was named Businessman of the Year at the Singapore
Business Awards in 2001 and 1990. In 2006, he received the
inaugural Credit Suisse-Ernst & Young Lifetime Achievement
Award for his outstanding achievements in the Singapore
business community. The Asian Banker conferred the Lifetime
Achievement Award on him in 2009. Dr Wee is the Pro-
Chancellor of the Nanyang Technological University and the
Honorary President of the Singapore Chinese Chamber of
Commerce & Industry, the Singapore Federation of Chinese
Clan Associations and the Singapore Hokkien Huay Kuan. He
received a Chinese high school education and was conferred
an Honorary Doctor of Letters by the National University
of Singapore in 2008. For his outstanding contributions in
community work, he was conferred the Distinguished Service
Order, Singapore’s highest National Day Award, in 2011.
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Wee Ee Cheong
Chairman

Mr Wee, 61, was appointed to the Board of UOB (China) on
17 September 2007 as the Chairman. He is also the Chairman
of the Bank’s Executive Committee and a member of the
Nominating and Remuneration Committee

Mr Wee was appointed to the Board of UOB on 3 January
1990 and last re-elected as Director on 25 April 2013. A career
banker, Mr Wee joined UOB in 1979 and served as Deputy
Chairman and President of the Bank from 2000 to 2007. On 27
April 2007, he was appointed as CEO. A non-independent and
executive director, he is a member of the UOB Executive and
Board Risk Management Committees.

Mr Wee holds directorships in several UOB subsidiaries
including Far Eastern Bank (where he is also Deputy Chairman),
United Overseas Insurance, UOB (Malaysia) and UOB (Thai)
Public Company. He is the Vice President Commissioner of PT
Bank UOB Indonesia.
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Board of Directors

Active in industry development, Mr Wee serves as a council
member of The Association of Banks in Singapore, a director
of The Institute of Banking and Finance and chairman of
the Financial Industry Competency Standards Steering
Committee. He is a member of the Board of Governors of the
Singapore-China Foundation, Visa APCEMEA Senior Client
Council and Advisory Board of INSEAD East Asia Council and
International Council and an honorary council member of the
Singapore Chinese Chamber of Commerce & Industry. He had
also previously served as deputy chairman of the Housing and
Development Board and as a director of the Port of Singapore
Authority, UOL Group, Pan Pacific Hotels Group and United
International Securities. In 2013, he was awarded the Public
Service Star for his contributions to the financial industry.

A keen art enthusiast, Mr Wee is the Patron of the Nanyang
Academy of Fine Arts. He is also a director of the Wee
Foundation.

Mr Wee holds a Bachelor of Science (Business Administration)

and a Master of Arts (Applied Economics) from American
University, Washington, DC.
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Eric Lian Voon Fui
President and Chief Executive Officer (CEQ)

Mr Lian, 49, joined UOB on 1 July 2013 and was appointed
President and CEO of UOB (China) on 17 September 2013. He
is a member of the Bank’s Executive Committee.

Mr Lian has 23 years of banking experience. He began his
banking career with UOB in 1989 and prior to re-joining the
Bank, he held several senior positions in wholesale banking
business, risk management and credit approval in Singapore
and China.

Mr Lian graduated from the Nanyang Technological University,
Singapore with a Bachelor of Engineering and a Master of
Business Administration.
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Tan Kian Huat
Former President and CEO

Mr Tan, 56, was President and CEO, an executive director and
a member of the Bank’s Executive Committee between 6 June
2008 and 30 August 2013.

Prior to this, he was a Senior Vice President in UOB (Malaysia).
In his 30 years in the banking industry, he has served as
a credit officer, Head of Credit, branch manager, regional
manager and Head of Business Banking.

Mr Tan holds a Bachelor of Science (Mechanical Engineering,

Hons) from the University of Leeds, UK, and a Master of
Business Administration from the University of Bradford, UK.
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Francis Lee Chin Yong

Mr Lee, 60, was appointed to the Board on 27 December 2007
as a non-executive director. He is also a member of the Bank’s
Executive, Nominating and Remuneration, Audit, Connected
Transaction Control and Risk Management Committees.

Mr Lee is a Managing Director and Head of Group Retail at
UOB. He joined UOB in 1980. He leads the UOB Group’s retail
businesses for consumers and small business customers.
Prior to his appointment in Singapore in 2003, he was the CEO
of UOB (Malaysia). Between 2003 and 2008, Mr Lee was the
Head of International and spearheaded the Group’s expansion
in the region. He was also responsible for the Bank’s
consumer banking business in Singapore and the region.

Mr Lee is a director of several UOB subsidiaries and affiliates,
including UOB (Malaysia), UOB (Thai) Public Company, UOB
Property Investments Private Limited, UOB International
Investment Private Trading Enterprise Limited, UOB-Kay
Hian Holdings Limited, Uni.Asia Capital Sendirian Berhad,
Uni.Asia Life Assurance Berhad, President Hotel Sendirian
Berhad, HPL Properties (Malaysia) Sendirian Berhad, Grand
Elite Sendirian Berhad, Grand Elite (Penang) Sendirian Berhad
and UOL Serviced Residences Sendirian Berhad. He is the
Commissioner of PT Bank UOB Indonesia.

He holds a Malaysia Certificate of Education and has more
than 30 years of experience in the financial industry.
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Christine Ip

Mrs Ip, 50, was appointed to the Board on 22 August 2011 as
a non-executive director. She is also a member of the Bank’s
Executive, Audit and Risk Management Committees.

Mrs Ip joined UOB in 2011. She is responsible for developing
the Greater China strategy for the Bank and was appointed
as CEO of UOB Hong Kong Branch in January 2012. She
is also an independent non-executive director of SmarTone
Telecommunications Holdings Limited.

Mrs Ip is a seasoned banker with more than 20 years of
experience in both consumer and corporate banking. Prior to
joining UOB, Mrs Ip held several senior management positions
in product and sales management, customer segment
management and risk management in Hong Kong, the United
States, Canada, Singapore and China.

Mrs Ip’s achievements have been recognised by the Asia
Retail Congress when she was awarded the “Best International
Retail Banker” in 2008 and when she was announced as
one of the top 100 outstanding Chinese businesswomen in
the Greater China region for 2012 by the China Outstanding
Female Entrepreneurs Association.

Mrs Ip holds a Bachelor of Arts from the University of Hong

Kong and a Master of Business Administration from the Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology.
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Cham Tao Soon

Prof Cham, 74, was appointed to the Board on 27 December
2007. An independent and non-executive director, he is the
chairman of the Nominating and Remuneration and Audit
Committees, and a member of the Connected Transaction
Control and Risk Management Committees.

Prof Cham is a director of UOB and its subsidiary, Far Eastern
Bank. He is also Chairman of NSL, Soup Restaurant and the
Board of Governors of Singapore-China Foundation, Deputy
Chairman of Singapore Press Holdings and a director of
Singapore International Foundation. He is a former director of
MFS Technology and WBL Corporation.

A prominent figure in the Singapore education scene, Prof
Cham is the Chancellor of SIM University and Chairman of its
Board of Trustees, and was the founding President of Nanyang
Technological University. For his outstanding contributions in
education, he was awarded the Distinguished Service Order,
Singapore’s highest National Day Award, in 2003.

An engineer by training, Prof Cham holds a Bachelor of
Engineering (Civil, Hons) from University of Malaya, a Bachelor
of Science in Mathematics (Hons) from the University of
London and a Doctor of Philosophy in Fluid Mechanics from
the University of Cambridge, UK. He is also a Fellow of the
Institution of Engineers, Singapore, Academy of Engineering,
Singapore, Royal Academy of Engineering, UK and Institution
of Mechanical Engineers, UK and a foreign member of Royal
Swedish Academy of Engineering Sciences, Sweden.
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Zeng Zhi Jie

Mr Zeng, 45, was appointed to the Board on 26 October
2010 as an independent and non-executive director. He is
the Chairman of the Connected Transaction Control and Risk
Management Committees and a member of the Nominating,
Remuneration and Audit Committees.

Mr Zeng is currently the Senior Managing Director of CITIC
Capital Holdings Limited, the General Manager and Managing
Partner of Kaixin Investment, as well as the Chairman of China
Special Article Logistics Company. He serves as a director or
independent director for five listed companies namely Great
Wall Technology Company Limited, Chinasoft International
Limited, E-house, Vimicro and AutoNavi as well as other
companies such as State Microelectronics. Mr Zeng serves
as Co-chairman of the China Venture Capital Association of
Investment Association of China, the Executive Director of
Asia America Multi-Technology Association (AAMA) China
Branch and a board member of Western Returned Scholars
Association Chamber of Commerce 2005 Committee.

Prior to joining Kaixin Investment, Mr Zeng was a Managing
Director of Walden International and was mainly responsible
for venture investments in China and Asia Pacific. Prior to
Walden International, Mr Zeng worked for CITIC Pacific
Limited in Hong Kong and Mitsubishi Corporation in Tokyo,
Japan.

Mr Zeng holds a Bachelor of Science in Economics from the

University of Nagasaki, Japan, and a Master of Science in
Management from Stanford University.
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Corporate Banking

In 2013, the global economy found firmer ground, while China
introduced a series of economic restructuring measures aimed
at promoting sustainable growth. This presented a host of new
opportunities as well as challenges for businesses.

During the year, Corporate Banking worked with customers
to navigate the changing landscape and to continue growing
their businesses. Our investment in building up our capabilities
and expertise to serve the key pillar industries in China paid
dividends as our client base expanded by 29 per cent year-
on-year.

We continued to support customers through expanding
product suite in China, including further increasing cash
management functionalities and offering more trade-based
financing products and commodity hedging solutions. We
have also been active in leading syndicated financing to
support our clients’ growth in their onshore as well as offshore
businesses.

To help our customers capture the opportunities in the
increasing intra-regional trade between Southeast Asia and
China, UOB (China) opened a FDI Advisory Unit in April 2013.
Together with its other eight counterparts across Southeast
Asia, it has been instrumental in helping Chinese companies
expand in the rest of Asia, and our regional customers deepen
their businesses in China. The unit offers assistance ranging
from company incorporation to borderless financial services
through UOB Group’s regional network.

In 2013, our total revenue and operating profit each increased
by 11 per cent compared with last year. With a more
comprehensive product suite, we were able to grow our fee-
based income by 36 per cent, resulting in an improved fee
income ratio of 24 per cent.

In 2014, we expect the government to further deepen its
reforms in the financial industry, which will bring greater
liberalisation and internationalisation into the banking sector.
Under this environment, supported by UOB Group’s strong
regional platform and product capabilities, we stand ready to
assist our clients in capturing the opportunities and managing
risks.
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Commercial Banking

China’s economy grew 7.7 per cent in 2013, in step with
2012 level. As the country continued on its path to grow
domestic consumption and reduce reliance on investments,
output from service industries such as finance, transport
and retail exceeded manufacturing output for the first time
in more than 50 years. 2013 also saw the yuan being traded
at its highest levels in 20 years against the dollar. During the
year, Commercial Banking continued to invest in providing
quality services and financial solutions to help our customers
seize business growth opportunities both domestically and
regionally.

In addition to supporting our customers’ top-line growth,
Commercial Banking focused on helping customers
protect their bottom-line amid rising domestic costs and
yuan appreciation pressures. The team worked together
with product experts in Global Markets and Investment
Management and Transaction Banking to provide customers
with appropriate hedging, investment and transaction
solutions.

During the year, the team held a series of customer
engagement events in key cities to better understand the
needs of new and existing customers. Our Foreign Direct
Investment Advisory Unit also held a series of educational
seminars for privately-owned Chinese enterprises looking to
establish or expand their business presence into Singapore or
other parts of Southeast Asia.

In 2013, we grew our employee strength and set up a Product
Sales Specialist team dedicated to broadening our range of
client solutions to keep pace with our expanding customer base
which grew 27 per cent. Despite the increase in headcount, our
total cost-to-income ratio reduced by 14 per cent in 2013 as we
continued to improve productivity and grow income.

Our total income increased by 39 per cent, of which net
interest income increased by 16 per cent and non-interest
income increased strongly by 101 per cent. Non-interest
income to income ratio also increased by 12 per cent.
Operating profit significantly increased by 125 per cent as the
team improved its productivity.

Looking ahead into 2014, Commercial Banking will continue

to deepen relationships with our customers, especially private
owned enterprises and strive to serve them even better.
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Transaction Banking

Cross-border RMB trade finance and cash management
solutions are a key focus for UOB (China). Tapping on UOB’s
regional branch network and relationships with partner banks,
our team of trade advisers and product specialists is able to
provide customers with comprehensive end-to-end solutions.

Our cash management solutions range from payables
and receivables to liquidity management services and are
available at our branches and on UOB (China) Business
Internet Banking. We also provide a comprehensive range of
trade settlement products and financing services, such as
trade advisory, structured trade financing and risk mitigation
solutions.

In 2013, we continued to invest in our transaction banking
capabilities and enhance our product range to cater to the
changing needs of our customers with the liberalisation of
RMB.

In recognition of the increased demand for cross-border RMB
settlement services, we introduced a full suit of RMB FDI
services, including setting up of a dedicated specialist team
to provide advisory services on RMB cross-border capital
injection.

Revenue from both cash management and trade finance
services recorded strong growth during the year. With the
support of Group Transaction Banking, we will continue to
provide customers with cash and trade product solutions to
optimise working capital, manage risk and cash flow.
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Global Markets and Investment Management

In 2013, Global Markets and Investment Management
(GMIM) designed and developed a series of investment and
hedging products including foreign exchange, interest rate,
commodities and structured products to cater to customers’
requirements. Through our expanding regional banking
network, our experienced staff were able to market these
diversified products and services to large and mid-sized
corporate customers and high net worth individuals.

Besides providing seamless services to customers, GMIM is
also an active participant in the local bond market, dealing
in treasury bills, government bonds, policy bank bonds,
high-rated commercial papers and medium term notes. We
achieved steady growth in 2013 despite the volatile markets.

We also participated in transactions such as repurchase
agreements (Repo) and reverse Repo, RMB interest rate
swaps, foreign exchange (FX) forwards and FX swaps. With
an inter-bank gold bilateral forward and swaps license, we
expanded the scale of our precious metal trading business,
following the launch of gold and inter-bank gold bilateral
trading on the Shanghai Gold Exchange. We also became a
member of the pilot team that provides quotations of gold
forward curve contracts.

To support the continued growth of our business in China, we

further will further expand the scale of our trading business
and create more value-added products for our customers.
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Personal Financial Services

In 2013, UOB (China)’s Personal Financial Services (PFS)
continued to focus on providing high quality products and
services for our target customers. We made progress in
expanding our channels network of branches, automated teller
machines (ATM) and online banking services. Up to now, we
have already installed 11 branches/sub branches, 10 ATM/Cash
Recycling System machines and successfully launched online
banking and mobile banking services. Our customer base and
product portfolio also grew steadily in 2013.

Wealth Management Business

UOB (China) was one of the first few foreign banks to obtain
a local mutual fund license in June 2013. We achieved a key
milestone when we launched a domestic investment fund
distribution service in August. The expanded suite of wealth
management products and solutions allows our customers to
diversify their portfolios and to manage better their investment
risks.

Our mobile banking service that was launched in December 2013
provides our customers with a secure, fast and convenient way
for customers to enjoy easy access to banking services such as
checking account balances and transferring funds.

In November 2013, we opened our 11" UOB Privilege Banking
centre in China in one of the most iconic buildings on the Bund in
Shanghai, a location where many of our customers live and work,
to meet the needs of our growing base of affluent customers.

Home Loans Business

Our home loans business continued to grow in 2013 despite
the challenging property market in China. In May 2013,
Hangzhou became the fifth city in which we offer home loans
to our customers.
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Technology and Operations

Technology and Operations (T&O) plays a critical role in
supporting UOB (China)’s business strategy and growth. It
is responsible for the centralisation and standardisation of
our operations, and information technology management in
China. T&O also underpins our competitiveness in China by
promoting business innovation and operational efficiency.

In 2013, we continued to refine our operational risk control
procedures in line with those of UOB Group and local
regulatory requirements. Partnering with PFS and Channels,
we introduced the UOB (China) Mobile Banking application
to provide our customers with easy access to their banking
accounts wherever they may be, and extended our debit
card capabilities to include China UnionPay Online Payment
services. We were also among the first foreign banks to
launch Onshore Unit Trust services, thereby enhancing
our wealth management product range. We equipped our
precious metals dealers with the China Foreign Exchange
Trade System (CFETS) Straight Through Processing (CSTP)
system that facilitates automated price making and direct
publication of prices to CFETS. The CSTP platform enhances
our dealers’ responses to market, with real-time positions for
improved risk management of their precious metals trades.

Looking ahead, we will continue to strengthen our information
technology management to optimise and automate our
processes and to tap the strengths of UOB Group’s regional
network and resources. T&O will continue to streamline
business processes to improve operational efficiency and
risk controls and to provide consistent quality and excellent
customer service. The key initiatives we intend to embark on
in 2014 include the issuance of the Integrated Circuit (IC) debit
card, the launch of a revamped Global e-Banking platform
for corporate customers and the upgrading of China National
Advanced Payment System.
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Human Resources

UOB (China) has an employee base of more than 1,000
people across nine cities in China. With the continued growth
of our business, Human Resources focused on building and
maintaining a highly motivated and collaborative workforce
and corporate culture.

In 2013, we rolled out a leadership competency framework
across the organisation. The framework consists of four
key leadership competencies, namely Strategise, Engage,
Execute and Develop (SEED). The SEED framework spans
across our recruitment, development and talent management
programmes and helps employees to understand more clearly
what is expected of them. The framework also provides
guidelines on how employees can be more effective in what
they do as individuals and team players.

During the year, UOB (China) continued to invest in training
and developing programmes to equip employees with
the relevant skills to thrive in the competitive business
environment. In 2013, we increased the number of core skills
courses from 270 to 309. We enhanced our management and
technical capabilities through specialised technical training,
personal effectiveness and leadership programmes. We
also developed a Plan, Engage, Appraise and Keep (PEAK)
performance management programme, which is an integrated
performance management framework for the Bank to bring
out the best in its people.

We introduced a supplementary pension scheme in December
2013 that recognises employees for their long-term service
and contributions to the Bank. To be launched in 2014, the
supplementary pension scheme will enhance an employee’s
total reward package and provides further financial security after
retirement. Complementing the national basic pension, UOB (China)’'s
supplementary pension demonstrates UOB (China)’s long-standing
commitment to China and as a responsible corporate social citizen.

The second cohort of our young talents completed the
15-month long Management Associates Programme during
the year. Selected from top domestic universities in Shanghai,
Beijing and Chengdu, as well as prestigious overseas
institutions, the individuals have started their career in the
Bank.
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UOB (China) is committed to upholding good corporate

governance and is guided by the following in this regard:

a) the People’s Republic of China (PRC) Company Law;

b) the PRC Commercial Bank Law;

c) the PRC Regulations on Administration of Foreign-funded
Banks and the Rules for Implementing the PRC Regulations
on Administration of Foreign-funded Banks; and

d) other relevant regulatory requirements.

The Board, Board Committees, the Supervisor and Senior
Management perform their respective duties according to the
laws and regulations, and based on the scope of powers as
defined by the Bank’s Articles of Association.

Board of Directors

There are six Directors on the Board, two of whom are
Independent Directors. The size and composition of
the Board comply with regulatory requirements and the
provisions in the Articles of Association of the Bank. The
Board members as at 31 December 2013 were:

24 145 F#h % BT
Name Gender  Age Position Current term of office
< = -
"5 5 ﬁsk 3mfﬁmuf§$ 201349 A 17HE 2016 F9 A 16 H
61 Chairman/Non-executive and
Wee Ee Cheong Male 17 September 2013 to 16 September 2016

non-independent

HATIERIES ((TKREFHITE)

FRE&SHET 2014 4 8 A 30 HFEKITKREFEHIITEL

% (BEED £} ) .
) 56 Former Executive (President and CEO) KEES ., Mr Tan Kian Huat ceased to be the President
Tan Kian Huat Male . .
and non-independent and CEO and the Director of the Bank on 30 August 2013.
BUTIERZER (ITKREFNITE
EXE 5 ) .( ) 20134 8 A 14 HE 2016 8 H13 H
T . 49 Executive (President and CEO) and
Eric Lian Voon Fui Male 14 August 2013 to 13 August 2016
non-independent
FfRoR 5 60 FERITIEIMIESE 2013412 527 HE 2016 412 5 26 H
Francis Lee Chin Yong Male Non-executive and non-independent 27 December 2013 to 26 December 2016
rH7iEFRR z 50 FEHITIEMIES 201148 A2 HE 20144 8H 21 H
Christine Ip Female Non-executive and non-independent 22 August 2011 to 21 August 2014
EiE" % 74 W IEMITES 201312 27 HZ 2016 £12 A 26 H
Cham Tao Soon Male Non-executive and independent 27 December 2013 to 26 December 2016
B 5 45 W AERITES 2013410 H26 HE 2016 £10 A 25 H
Zeng Zhi Jie Male Non-executive and independent 26 October 2013 to 25 October 2016
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The Main Responsibilities of the Board are to:

e provide strategic directions, approve strategic business
initiatives, and approve the business plans and annual
budget;

e review and monitor the financial performance of the Bank,
and approve true and fair financial statements;

e determine an appropriate capital/debt structure;

e set dividend policy and declare dividends;

e perform succession planning for the Board and Senior
Management and formulate the remuneration policy;

e putin place an effective management team;

e approve the organizational structure;

e oversee the establishment of comprehensive risk
management policies, processes and infrastructure to
manage various types of risk (including outsourcing risk);

e determine the risk profile of the Bank and approve credit
discretionary limits and investment limits;

e review and monitor the risk management, internal audit
and compliance functions and ensure the adequacy of
resources allocated to these functions;

e evaluate the performance of the President and CEO and
Senior Management;

e establish appropriate procedures and processes to avoid
situations that may give rise to improper personal gains or
conflicts of interest;

e review and approve the Bank’s system of controls relating
to connected transactions;

e establish corporate culture, values and ethical standards;

e review the Bank’s information disclosure policy and be
responsible for the authenticity, accuracy and integrity of
the information disclosed;

e report to the shareholder; and

e exercise such other powers as authorised by the
shareholder and perform such other functions as required
by the laws, regulations and the Bank’s Articles of
Association.

The Board holds four scheduled meetings in a year. Additional
meetings may be held whenever required.

The Bank’s Articles of Association also provide for Board
resolutions to be passed by way of circulation.

In 2013, the Board held four meetings and all Directors
attended the meetings.

The procedures for convening a Board meeting, the quorum
required for constituting the meeting, the proceedings at
the meeting, and the procedures for voting and passing of
resolutions complied with the requirements of the applicable
PRC laws and regulations and the Bank’s Articles of
Association. The minutes of Board meetings are maintained
by the Company Secretary.

The Board passed nine resolutions by way of circulation in 2013.



XTESESTREIVERS
KERIT (FE) EXLBAATRANZUER SR, Bl JITERS,
XEXGEHERS, FHERAS. RARFHERSFNGEE

KL
==

. E—Tﬁi(fr)\%ﬁﬁﬁi(ﬁmizms
EBHBOH)\ﬁiﬁﬁ$(52m3¢9H17H%)\$
RoRseE . MimidALt.

b. FITERSHTERREMT:

o EERITHEEZ, SEFENMRIE. JFLREKK, HER
Tl ST RIBIT, HUERXBERTGE; &

o AMERMTRKIREFHITE RENTRLUMRITA N ZREEE.

c. WITERSEZLBRBHA—REW. BARBEFERNEFS
W, RIT ERERER
2013 FF, PITERSBFRW 16 X.

2) XBRRZSEHERS
a. ERSMA: BZAEE (XF) « TRERASE . EEFERIR.

KEBRAE

b. XKEXGIEHERSHERMREMNT:
o BIUHPITERERRZEESIE;

o EMXEKAZHITHI AT R ;
o WE—RXEXZ; K
o BWRERXKXZHRZEESNME.

c. 2013 &, KEXGIEHEZRHBAIW K.

ARRHE

Corporate Governance

Board Committees

The Board has delegated specific functions to five Board
Committees, namely the Executive Committee (EXCO),
Connected Transactions Control Committee (CTCC), Audit
Committee (AC), Nominating and Remuneration Committee
(NRC) and Risk Management Committee (RMC).

(1) Executive Committee

a. The EXCO members are Mr Wee Ee Cheong (Chairman),
Mr Tan Kian Huat (up to 30 August 2013), Mr Eric Lian Voon
Fui (from 17 September 2013), Mr Francis Lee Chin Yong
and Mrs Christine Ip.

b. The EXCO oversees the following matters:

e the Bank’s business operations, including formulating
internal policies and business strategies, monitoring the
execution of business plans and approving relevant credit
limits; and

¢ all human resource matters, except for those pertaining to
the President and CEO and Deputy President.

. The EXCO meets at least once a month and whenever
required in the discharge of its functions.

(9]

The EXCO held 16 meetings in 2013.

(2) Connected Transactions Control Committee

a. The CTCC members are Mr Zeng Zhi Jie (Chairman),
Mr Francis Lee Chin Yong, Prof Cham Tao Soon and Mr
William Chong Kim Khong.

b. The CTCC’s main responsibilities are to:

e establish and administer the system for managing
connected transactions;

e manage connected transactions and control the risks from
such transactions;

e examine non-material connected transactions; and

e review and submit material connected transactions to the
Board for approval.

c. The CTCC met once in 2013.
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(3) Audit Committee

a. The AC members are Prof Cham Tao Soon (Chairman), Mr
Francis Lee Chin Yong, Mrs Christine Ip and Mr Zeng Zhi
Jie.

b. The AC’s main responsibilities are to review/oversee all
matters relating to:

e financial statements, and internal and external audit plans
and reports;

e adequacy of internal accounting controls and material
internal controls;

e scope and results of internal and external audits;

e quality of and any significant change in accounting policies
or practices;

e adequacy of internal audit resources;

¢ significant findings from internal audit investigations;

e approval of external auditors’ fees; and

e nomination, appointment, resignation or dismissal of
external auditors and the head of the internal audit
function.

c. The AC held four meetings in 2013.

(4) Nominating and Remuneration Committee

a. The NRC members are Prof Cham Tao Soon (Chairman),
Mr Wee Ee Cheong, Mr Francis Lee Chin Yong and Mr
Zeng Zhi Jie.

b. The NRC’s main responsibilities are to:

e recommend nominees for appointment to the Board and
Board Committees;

e recommend a framework of remuneration for Directors and
key Senior Management officers (including the President
and CEO and Deputy President) for the Board’s approval;
and

e put in place a system for assessing the effectiveness of
the Board as a whole, the contribution of each Board
Committee and Director, and the performance of the
President and CEO.

c. In 2013, the NRC met once and passed five resolutions by
way of circulation.
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(5) Risk Management Committee
a. The RMC members are Mr Zeng Zhi Jie (Chairman), Mr Francis
Lee Chin Yong, Mrs Christine Ip and Prof Cham Tao Soon.

b. The RMC’s main responsibilities are to:

e review and recommend risk management strategies,
policies and risk tolerance level for the Board’s approval;

e oversee the establishment and operation of a robust and
independent risk management system that is consistent
with the strategies and policies approved by the Board;

e review and assess the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Bank’s risk management structure (including frameworks,
policies, methodologies, human resources, processes,
information, infrastructure and systems) for identifying,
measuring, monitoring and controlling various types of
risks;

® review regular management reports on risk exposures, risk
portfolio composition and the management and monitoring
of such exposures and portfolio composition; and

e report to the Board regularly and highlight any adverse risk
event or trend for the Board’s attention.

c. The RMC met four times in 2013.

Supervisor

The Bank has one Supervisor who is nominated by the Bank’s
shareholder. The present Supervisor is Dr Wee Cho Yaw.
The appointment of the Supervisor complies with regulatory
requirements and the Bank’s Articles of Association.

The main responsibilities of the Supervisor include:

¢ inspecting the accounts and financial statements of the
Bank;

e overseeing the Directors and Senior Management officers
to ensure that the Bank is run in a prudent manner, and
taking corrective actions where necessary;

e safeguarding the lawful rights and interests of the Bank,
the shareholder and other stakeholders, particularly the
depositors; and

e exercising such other power and authority pursuant to the
law, regulations and the Bank’s Articles of Association, and
as may be delegated by the shareholder.

In 2013, the Supervisor duly discharged his responsibility
of supervising the Board and Senior Management strictly in
accordance with legal requirements, including the provisions
under the PRC Company Law and in the Bank’s Articles of
Association. In discharging his responsibility, the Supervisor
received and reviewed regular reports on the Bank’s
operations and risk management, met with Directors and
Senior Management, and attended Board meetings.
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(1) 2013 FHIAEETHREETHER

Performance of Independent Directors

There were two Independent Directors on the Board as at
31 December 2013, namely Prof Cham Tao Soon and Mr
Zeng Zhi Jie, in compliance with the Guidelines for Corporate
Governance of Locally Incorporated Foreign Banks, Guidelines
for Independent Directors and External Supervisors of Joint
Shareholding Commercial Banks and Opinion on Enhancing
the Corporate Governance of Locally Incorporated Foreign
Banks. Prof Cham Tao Soon is the Chairman of the AC and
NRC, and a member of the CTCC and RMC. Mr Zeng Zhi Jie
is the Chairman of the CTCC and RMC, and a member of the
AC and NRC.

For the year under review, the two Independent Directors
attended all four Board meetings convened in 2013 and
discharged their duties diligently and responsibly. They
contributed to the decision-making and oversight by the Board
and Board Committees and safeguarded the lawful rights and
overall interests of the Bank and the shareholder.

(1) Independent Directors’ Attendance at Board
Meetings in 2013

Vel HE ERE
M EREE (/9] (679} (/9]
Name of Independent No. of Board No. of Board Meetings Absent with #iE
Director Meetings held attended Apologies Remarks
EEs 4 4 0 ,
Cham Tao Soon
BN
Zeng Zhi Jie N N 0 !

(2) M EREMETAXFIE L FIUHER
2013 F, MUBEHARMBITAFERNINREIRH R

HEREENEN
RITHEREFHARSEEREITABRARIRITES. RITH
MEER. RNEERE, CEERSFENMEEREFTRHLERN
HREUAEEMEH#F—PHSWTR. RITEEREFENSLH
MBHATAE, N TREHIENEURARGES HNLRE
R MEREFAEBTERENTLUREFERIIKEZLENR,
It~ R A, HHRITRIE,
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(2) Dissent of Independent Directors
In 2013, Management did not give cause for the Independent
Directors to record their dissent on any matter.

Supervisor’s and Directors’ Access to Information

The Supervisor and Directors have unfettered assess to
information and Management, and receive timely and
comprehensive financial, risk management and operational
reports to facilitate informed discussions during meetings.
They also have access to the Company Secretary whose
responsibilities include advising the Supervisor and the
Board on regulatory changes and best practices in corporate
governance. In discharging their duties, the Supervisor and
Directors may seek independent professional advice, if
necessary, at the Bank’s expense.
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SREEERRMA \ Senior Management Structure
THACIA e LRI
t5 B g R Aot Vs
Name Position Sex  Age Hightest Academic Degree .
Commencement of Experience
. ITRREFERNITE N . . .
HEXE . R T AZ TEEEMmL
) President and CEO 5 201349 H . . ;
LIAN Voon Fui 405/ BN vale %2 Sep 2013 Master of Business Administration 23
Eric 7/ =B E P Nanyang Technological University
Head, Branches/Channels
FRRERTE ey 1 s
ME% (BB Former President and CEO %, 2008%5AZ201348 A 3;’3 fﬁ?:sﬁiziﬁififg; 20
TAN Kian Huat ROIT/ REREE Male From May 2008 to Aug 2013 o
University of Bradford
Head, Branches/Channels
1T 201346 A . [
e Alternate Country CEO 3} 43 Jun2013 zﬁmﬁ%’i}ilk:"fﬁq’i 18
ANG Moh Chuan FREWSRITEREE Male 2010 %10 Nzi ::r '(Fechc:;zniszlctllniversit
Head, Corporate Banking Oct 2010 vang 9 Y
BlfTK 2013 6 - R S5 ah | o 3525 f
KB X %67 R T AR HE RS
) Alternate Country CEO B Jun 2013 f
CHONG Kim Khong A 46 Bachelor of Business, Honours 22
- REFENRE Male 20124 3 A ) o
William o . Nanyang Technological University
Chief Risk Officer Mar 2012
ERMEMARKRZLZEH L
ZNT} BERAE E°8 50 201346 A Master of Science 18
LIN Li Chief Information Officer Female Jun 2013 Beijing University of Aeronautics and
Astronautics
. HmEEFEIREREL
N T A2
f_lé’ﬁ?j Yi Ehﬁmi;{:% B ial OFfi F kS | 44 2013;‘? 6A Bachelor of Accountancy 18
an vl it Financia lcer emale Jun 2013 Nanyang Technological University
_ " FnE FEFITREZ(L
TR AR 2 201043 A HINARNE T AEME LR R
KU Tse Kian Head, Commercial Bankin Male 43 Mar 201 Bachelor of Business, Honours 18
’ 9 ar 2010 Nanyang Technological University
£ = = BMERZETHEE
A AASBBSHEE LAMEAFIHERNL
) ) kg 2011 %58 Master of Business Administration
ZHOU Man Head, Personal Financial 40 o ) . 15
. Female May 2011 Shanghai University of Finance and
Cherry Services .
Economics
k&S . s
s &R SATE AL L s
M85 R @ 2010 11 B ﬂﬂik*%%}ﬁ?tbﬂk:f—fﬂ:f—i* =il
YAP Teck Yong 54 Bachelor of Science, Honours 26
Head, Global Market and Male Nov 2010 o " )
Douglas University of British Columbia
Investment Management
on TR T L ARG
s el / B SRITIE SRR EE _ P 2008 £ 9 A MRA=ZAZEHFL
TEH Wee Jin Head, Corporate / Commercial Male 56 Sep 2008 Bachelor of Commerce 32
Credit P University of Otago, New Zealand
3 e B+k=s (=3
G ANERBES % 2007 £ 12 A EAXFIGERGL
HONG Xiao Yan 37 Master of Business Administration 16
Head, Human Resources Female Dec 2007 . .
Amy Fudan University
| R BhYR STk
=R R P 2007 % 12 A EeXFRFFEL _
LI Gang ) 40 Bachelor of Economics 17
) Head, Internal Audit Male Dec 2007 - .
Rick Shanghai University
& N EEAF THEEHT
WANG Yuan fﬁ'_ﬁi‘ﬂj’ TIEE ES . E kS | 40 2DOO72££ ;2 R Master of Business Administration 17
Eliza ead, Legal and Secretariat emale ec 200 Fudan University
_ EERIR R EHENARFEF ML
EXAILL . EHAEE ko8 4p 2013 F8A Master of Laws 7
ZHAO Li Hong Head, Compliance Female Aug 2013

Katholieke Universiteit Leuven (Belgium)
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AR RHRITLFHEE 5 4 2011 #£5H8 Bachelor of Seience 18
LIM Chor Khiang Head, Transaction Banking Male May 2011 . . ) )
National University of Singapore
HE FERDITITK @ 201048 A FRE KFTHERF -
YEONG Kok Leng General Manager of Beijing 45 Bachelor of Business Administration 20
. Male Aug 2010 . . ) )
Vincent Branch National University of Singapore
PR EEaTiTK - R T RFERF T
) > 201045 H :
LOH Nee Thiam General Manager of Male 43 May 2010 Bachelor of Business 18
Harry Shanghai Branch y Nanyang Technological University
SHF ANZITITR RHAFEF T RERN
. 5 2013411 A )
TOK Aik Hong General Manager of Male 39 Nov 2013 Bachelor of Science, Honours 13
Lawrence Shenzhen Branch University of London
‘ RHERBAEREREE+
H—i FMSTITR o ot S :
CHENG Yee Fi G M ¢ =] 20138 H Bachelor of Science (Economics) ]
ee rung eneral Vianager o Male 39 Aug 2013 The London School of Economics and 6
Jonathan Guangzhou Branch Political Science
REMWERZFHZERERZS. €5
P 4=/= =1 =Y (va
p— B51TTK £ 201149 A ?E{T%ﬁﬁifﬂ . '
HUANG Yin General Manager of Female 42 Sep 2011 Master of Science in International 19
9 Xiamen Branch P Economics Banking and Finance
Cardiff University, U.K.
N v =% 7 Bh YR I Ak
BET TEPRATITRK 2 2010 4 8 A Q*Eﬂlak%—l/ﬁ?—?—i
Chan Yoke Voon General Manager of Male 47 Aug 2010 Bachelor of Economics 19
Shenyang Branch 9 National University of Malaysia
4=4= 2 | B2 TH A4
HEE REAITITK = 20134 8 7 LERTREDMAFES L
LIM Lian Kian General Manager of Male 41 Aug 2013 Bachelor of Science 18
Chengdu Branch University of South Alabama
HF REDITITK @ 2011 £ 2 B FERRFHEF L
HUANG Zhi Ping General Manager of Tianjin Male 39 Feb 2011 Master of Laws 10
Kenneth Branch Peking University
u | A Al V2 ﬂA/_(;-« =1 Fav3 {=FLvy
JEi:] MM TITITIC £ 201242 A 47 &I*zkf@?l*ﬁq—i 19
YE Yan General Manager of Hangzhou 43 Electrical Engineer
) Female Feb 2012 ) ; ; . .
Beicy Branch Haerbin Engineering University
BRMT (B) MEITK N o e
ws g E % IR
Rim Designated General Manager of B 2013411 A #m &Mj:q_.lﬁ EIE*.:[:. ) 16
. . 42 Bachelor of Business Administration
GOH Tuan Chiok Chonggqing Branch Male Nov 2013 . . . )
. ) National University of Singapore
(Preparation Committee)
iz EiERRRERITITK EsemEnR
, i Z 201348 H . . )
ZHUYi Acting Branch Manager of Female 42 Aug 2013 Diploma of International Finance 19
Jennifer Jingan Sub-Branch 9 Shanghai Finance University
FR3C LR TATITR £ 2011 45 B BAFTFE+FEAZTIHERML
CHEN Wen Branch Manager of Female 36 May 2011 Master of Business Administration 11
Wanda Xintiandi Sub-Branch Y Southern Cross University, Australia
Vit EEIRATITR 5 2013 4 10 B HEEHFHAY THERML .
XU Nuo Branch Manager of Shanghai Male 34 et 2013 Master of Business and Management
Charlie Bund Sub-Branch University of Plymouth, United Kingdom
WA EREHZITITK 7 20126 5 B BAF TR ERAZTHERMT
XU Jie Branch Manager of Dongcheng Mal 35 May 2012 Master of Business Administration 7
Sting Sub-Branch ae ay University of Sunshine Coast, Australia
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Internal Control and Audit

Internal control

UOB (China) has a well-established internal control system
that adheres strictly to local regulators’ requirements and the
Group’s guidelines. This is detailed in a robust framework that
enables the Bank to set strategic and practical objectives to
support business development.

The Board assesses the internal control system through
reviews of the meeting minutes of various committees, risk
management, operational and budget reports, internal audit
reports and also from the exchange of insights with industry
peers.

The integrity and effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control
system arises from the continuous improvement to the
internal control environment, including, but not limited to, the
strengthening of risk management processes, communication
and feedback mechanisms, and evaluation and correction. The
internal control system is able to provide a reasonable level of
assurance in relation to the implementation of legal statutes
and regulations.

Internal audit

Internal Audit is an independent function that reports
functionally to the Audit Committee (AC) and Group Audit, and
administratively to the President and CEO of UOB (China).

The primary role of Internal Audit is to assist the Board
and Management to discharge their legal and executive
obligations by providing independent, objective assurance
and value-added services designed to improve the Bank’s
operations. It helps the Bank to accomplish its objectives
by having a systematic and disciplined approach to provide
an independent assessment of the reliability, adequacy and
effectiveness of the Bank’s risk management internal control
and governance systems and processes.

It performs its internal audit function according to the Internal
Audit Guidelines for Financial Institutions as governed by the
China Banking Regulatory Commission and Standards for the
Professional Practice of Internal Auditing set by the Institute of
Internal Auditors. Internal Audit adopts a risk-based approach
to develop its strategic audit plan, which is reviewed annually.
Audit projects are prioritised and scoped according to the
assessment of inherent risks, controls of various risk types and
regulatory hot spots. The audit scope covers all businesses,
operations and the infrastructure and applications of systems
in the headquarters and branches.

All audit reports are provided to the AC. The significant issues
are highlighted by Internal Audit, which also monitors closely
the follow-up actions taken by the Management on the issues
raised by Internal Audit, external audit and regulators.
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Risk Oversight by Board of Directors and Senior

Management

The Board is responsible for the governance of risk and

oversees a governance structure to ensure that the Bank’s

business activities are:

e conducted in a safe and sound manner and in line with the
highest standards of professionalism;

e consistent with the Bank’s overall business strategy and
risk appetite; and

e subject to adequate risk management and internal controls.

In this, the Board is supported by the RMC in the oversight
of risk management policies, processes and procedures.
The President and CEO has established senior management
committees to assist in making business decisions with
due consideration to risks and returns. The main senior
management committees involved in this are the Asset
and Liability Committee (ALCO) and the Risk and Capital
Committee (RCC). These committees also assist the RMC in
specific risk areas.

The Bank has established a risk appetite framework to
define the amount of risk the Bank is able and willing to
take in pursuit of its business objectives. The risk appetite
defines suitable thresholds and limits across key risk areas
including but not limited to credit risk, market risk, liquidity
risk, operational risk and reputation risk. The objective of
establishing a risk appetite framework is not to limit risk
taking but to ensure that the Bank’s risk profile is aligned to
its business strategy. Our risk taking approach is focused on
businesses which we understand and are well equipped to
manage the risk involved. The Bank will continue to upgrade
our risk management, information technology and other
capabilities to support our strategic aspiration.

Risk Management Overview

Effective risk management is integral to the Bank’s business
success. Our approach to risk management is to ensure risks
are managed within the levels established by the Bank’s
various senior management committees and approved by the
Board and/or its committees.

The Bank has established a comprehensive framework

of policies and procedures to identify, measure, monitor

and control risks. These are guided by the Bank’s Risk

Management Principles which advocate:

e delivery of sustainable long-term growth using sound risk
management principles and business practices;

e continual improvement of risk discovery capabilities and
risk controls; and

e business development based on a prudent, consistent and
efficient risk management framework.



HITHRMRIH X ERREBIAREITRRALER, RIEMIE
FrEMEERE, REESEREROSHFARE ERESR
MERENNNERSMERSH.

FRRAE

XUR B SR A2 P

BITIE TERRNE RS EEIRE . BURFIER, LURBESHELE
BRENEREMAS. FEXGERRI BRI EERITELX
BERE, HARBRRERBXHABEETNMNERS. FERXE
EEBINTLT —BERS ZHERBGRAEN, BITERSM
RS EAZRRHERE . ZEITRRRHEE XL SEHIS5E
BREAXEFINLE, BEETE - FE, —ROMEHUHEEER
MERELR TR SH A R, EREMERETSEENMEAER
REEH O, FRISHEG SN, HEITBERFMRKIEERMTERNTEE T
B, URHHEMERREEXREREBERHR.

ML GT R

ARFELFEHEFOESFMIME, BRITHERLSZSRESESR
HEHREES B, FRFEIFRIURBEEHENZE. BHAIIEC
RERTUEE, HETEAERITREKANRXNGEER KRS
HEH. AEHERZERBERMNEEENTENES. BB
RAMEEHRMRER IR AR THRAMLZEH, URRERRIT
K RIRHE Rl S5 ES M FE A .

MEBTER F 5

HATR A A ERIFRAR B R X RGBT H 1R RIP R K 5 7= 23
IHERHOHEITHE. AIBTROERRRFTEEHL, F5H
RN, FEREAML, RIRE, ENFEEFNE. HXER
BAESHAZRTMIHEIE, URRENFEFE. ATHENS
MITRBBH RN, MEREFHERERVHITEERA, U
iR AT IE BN A XUIG FE F R R AR SR E S E S RERER 1.

P B FE

Risk Management

An independent Risk Management Function performs the primary
roles of implementing risk policies, processes and procedures.
Regular analysis and reporting on risk exposures are also
provided to the various risk-related committees and to the Board.

Credit Risk

Credit risk policies and processes

The Bank has established well-defined credit risk acceptance
parameters, policies and procedures to maintain a high
quality and well-diversified credit portfolio. The Credit
Risk Management Division (CRM) provides independent
oversight of credit risk and is responsible for the analysis and
reporting of all elements of credit risk. The CRM develops
a comprehensive set of credit policies and guidelines for
approval by the RCC and EXCO. It actively engages business
units on credit-related matters and facilitates business
development within a prudent, consistent and efficient credit
risk management framework. Its other responsibilities include
monitoring and reviewing credit risk exposures, performing
analysis on credit portfolio performance for fine-tuning of
policies and risk acceptance guidelines as well as preparing
various credit risk-related reports to management.

Independent credit approval

To maintain the independence and integrity of the credit
approval process, the credit origination and approval functions
are clearly segregated. Credit approval authority is delegated
to officers based on their experience, seniority and track
record, and is based on a risk-adjusted scale according to a
borrower’s credit rating. All credit approval officers are guided
by credit policies and credit acceptance guidelines that are
periodically reviewed to ensure their continued relevance to
the Bank’s business strategy and the business environment.

Internal rating system

The Bank employs internal rating models to support the
assessment of credit risk and the assignment of exposures to
rating grades or pools. Internal ratings are used pervasively
by the Bank in the areas of credit approval, credit review and
monitoring, credit stress testing, limits setting, pricing and
collections. The models are independently validated before
they are implemented to ensure they are fit for purpose. The
robustness of these rating models is monitored on an ongoing
basis, and all models are subject to annual reviews conducted
by model owners to ascertain that the chosen risk factors and
assumptions continue to remain relevant for the respective
portfolios.
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Credit concentration risk

Credit concentration risk may arise from a single large exposure
or from multiple exposures that are closely correlated. This is
managed by setting exposure limits on obligors, portfolios,
borrowers, industries and countries, generally expressed
as a percentage of the Bank’s eligible capital base. Regular
assessments of emerging risks and reviews of industry and
country outlooks are also performed to identify areas in which
concentration risks may accumulate.

Country risk

Country risk is managed within an established framework
which includes setting of limits for each country based on the
country’s risk rating, economic potential as well as the Bank’s
business strategy. Country risk exposures are analysed and
significant trends are reported periodically to the RCC and
RMC.

Credit risk mitigation

As a fundamental credit principle, the Bank generally does
not grant credit facilities solely on the basis of the collateral
provided. All credit facilities are granted based on the credit
standing of the borrower, source of repayment and debt
servicing ability.

Collateral is taken whenever possible to mitigate the credit
risk assumed and the value of the collateral is monitored
periodically. The frequency of valuation depends on the type,
liquidity and volatility of the collateral value. The main types
of collateral accepted by the Bank are real estate, bank
guarantees, cash and machinery equipment. A corporate
or personal guarantee from the principal promoters is often
obtained when the borrower’s credit worthiness is not
sufficient to justify an extension of credit.
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Risk Management

Credit exposures from foreign exchange (FX) and derivatives
Exposures arising from FX and derivative transactions are
mitigated through agreements such as the International
Swaps and Derivatives Association (ISDA) Master Agreements
and the related Credit Support Annex (CSA), and the National
Association of Financial Market Institutional Investors (NAFMII)
Agreement. Such agreements help to minimise credit exposure
by allowing the Bank to offset what it owes to a counterparty
against what is due from the same counterparty in the event of
counterparty default.

Credit stress test

Credit stress testing is an integral part of the Bank’s credit
portfolio management process. The Bank conducts periodic
credit stress tests to assess the potential credit losses arising
from exceptional but plausible adverse events.

Delinquency monitoring

The Bank monitors closely the delinquency of borrowing
accounts as it is a key indicator of credit quality. An account is
considered as delinquent when payment is not received on the
due date. All delinquent accounts, including revolving credit
facility (such as an overdraft) with limit excesses, are closely
monitored and managed through a disciplined process by
officers from the business units and risk management. Where
appropriate, such accounts are also subject to more frequent
credit reviews.

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013 | 43



B 2

Risk Management

BRSO E. MKEFIAR TR
BRITREBEERAUEEEERNATERMEENIEEE~HE
T2, EMafsFEER (MERRERTHEXWS) KE2
90 XA LB AW BEIRITAA “TR” %,

AR P ERITUSEERRZRS (R
BR) WIESIERES A "EE . “KE R FAREH, H
PARBMEE—E A “REK” AR H BREKT Ko HIT
FIE T MM ERERRIERBRERAR D LHNAIEN.

PR A& PRI SRR B AT R

RETREMFMSEE “IEB” 5 “XiF” B, FUERART
EES) BRI SRR B £ E IR A SRR IRIE. RITRZ A
E—EHBRIRAERE, ZRKPRBTISEERABRBER.

EEGRABKNEAATRE, ARBRITETEEFRIERAN
T S IR AT TR RE R ARG T EHRIE R 2 TR

BRERIR Sk A B O VB PR I 463 S S B IR TS R AT
Tﬁﬁﬁ;n%AfWMTﬁﬁﬁ*%%%iﬁmﬁ R LT R fE
HERETHHITOEHIERGH AR E T T HRR e R
FE, WA R TR,

44 | KEESRTT (RE) HRAF 2013 FERE

Loan classification, provisioning and write-off

The Bank classifies its credit portfolios according to the
borrower’s ability to repay the credit facility from its normal
source of income. Any account which is delinquent (or in
excess for a revolving credit facility such as an overdraft) for
more than 90 days will be categorised automatically as “Non-
Performing”.

All borrowing accounts are categorised into “Pass”, Special
“Mention” or “Non-Performing” categories. Non-Performing
accounts are further categorised as “Substandard”,
“Doubtful” or “Loss” in accordance with the guidelines of the
China Banking Regulatory Commission (CBRC). The Bank
has an independent credit review process to ensure the
appropriateness of loan grading and classification.

Upgrading and declassification of a Non-Performing account
to “Pass” or “Special Mention” status must be supported by
a credit assessment of the repayment capability, cash flows
and financial position of the borrower. The Bank must also be
satisfied that once the account is declassified, it is unlikely to
be classified again in the near future.

A restructured loan is categorised as Non-Performing and
placed on the appropriate classified grade depending on the
Bank’s assessment of the financial condition and repayment
ability of the borrower based on the restructured terms.

Loan loss provision is made in line with CBRC guidelines after
careful consideration of the future recovery value including
liquidation of collateral of the Non-Performing account. A
classified account is written off when there is no realisable
tangible collateral securing the account and all feasible
avenues of recovery have been exhausted.
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BB EETLSH 2% @AT) Akt
Loans by Industry Distribution Outstanding (RMB’m) (%)
#13&Elr Manufacturing 6,348 33
M AERtAR 55 55k Professionals & Private Individuals 3,326 17
#t & FnFE €& Wholesale and Retail 3,107 16
B Property and Real Estate 3,064 16
{ETBFNE X Lodging and Catering 1,105 6
HAth Others 2,200 12
At Total 19,150 100
RRBREEN TS &% @AT) &tk
Loans by Booking Branch Outstanding (RMB’m) (%)
3% Shanghai 8,189 43
1t Beijing 3,028 16
&R Chengdu 1,730 9
XKiZ Tianjin 1,718 9
I~ Guangzhou 1,144 6
[Ei7 Xiamen 1,121 6
#1JM Hangzhou 979 5
JEFH Shenyang 944 5
&3l Shenzhen 297 1
&1t Total 19,150 100
BRI 7 LR REFRIE &% @AT) e
Loans by Classification Outstanding (RMB’m) (%)
F% Pass 18,881 99
%;* Special Mention 205 1
YR Substandard 40 0
A %% Doubtful 16 0
#5155 Loss 8 0
A1t Total 19,150 100

2013 F K, F"RAKAITARME39BAT, SEARETLLGIA  As at 31 December 2013, total non-performing loans
0.33%, amounted to RMB 63.9 million, representing 0.33 per cent
of the Bank’s total loans portfolio.
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Market Risk

Market risk arises from all market price-sensitive financial
instruments including debt securities, foreign exchange
contracts, equity and derivative instruments, as well as from
balance sheet structural positions. The Bank is exposed to
market risk in its trading portfolios that arises mainly from
changes in interest rates and foreign exchange rates from the
Bank’s client-driven market making and product structuring
activities as well as trading activities.

The Board and EXCO approve market risk management policies
and framework and delegate the responsibility of day-to-day
oversight of market risk management to the ALCO. The ALCO
meets monthly to review and provide directions on all market
risk-related matters. The Market and Balance Sheet Risk
Management Division (MBSM) provides support to ALCO with
the establishment of a market risk management framework,
policies, and control procedures. An independent market risk
exposure report is also submitted to the RMC and to the Board
on a quarterly basis.

The Bank’s market risk framework comprises market risk
policies and practices, the validation of valuation and risk
models, the control structure with appropriate delegation of
authority and market risk limits. The valuation methodologies
employed by the Bank are in line with sound market
practices. In addition, a product/service programme process
ensures that all market risk issues identified are adequately
addressed prior to the launch of new products and services.
Management of derivative risks is continually reviewed and
enhanced to ensure that the complexities of the business are
appropriately controlled. The Market Risk Control Division
(MRC) provides independent valuation of products traded,
monitoring of market risk limits and the reporting of any limit
excesses and ratification on a daily basis.

Overall market risk appetite is balanced at the Bank and
business unit levels with targeted revenue and takes into
account the capital position of the Bank. This ensures the
Bank remains well-capitalised, even under stress conditions.
The risk appetite is translated into risk limits that are delegated
to business units. These risk limits have proportional returns
that are commensurate with the risks taken.

The Bank adopts a daily Value-at-Risk (VaR) measure to
estimate market risk within a 99% confidence interval using
the historical simulation method. This methodology does
not make assumptions on the distribution of returns and the
correlations between risk classes. The method assumes that
possible future changes in market rates may be implied by
observed historical market movements.
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As VaR is the statistical measure for potential losses, the
VaR measures are backtested against profit and loss of the
trading book to validate the robustness of the methodology.
The backtesting process analyses whether the exceptions
are due to model deficiencies or market volatility. All backtest
exceptions are tabled at ALCO with recommended actions
and resolutions.

To complement the VaR measure, stress and scenario tests
are performed to identify the Bank’s vulnerability to event
risk. These tests serve to provide early warnings of plausible
extreme losses to facilitate proactive management of market
risk.
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Liquidity Risk

The Bank maintains sufficient liquidity to fund its day-to-day
operations, to meet deposit withdrawals and loan disbursements,
to participate in new investments and to repay borrowings.
Hence, liquidity is managed in a manner to address known as well
as unanticipated cash funding needs.

Liquidity risk is managed in accordance with a framework of
policies, controls and limits approved by the ALCO and EXCO.
These policies, controls and limits enable the Bank to monitor
and manage liquidity risk to ensure that sufficient sources
of funds are available over a range of market conditions.
These include minimising excessive funding concentrations
by diversifying the sources and terms of funding as well as
maintaining a portfolio of high quality and marketable debt
securities.

The Bank takes a conservative stance in its liquidity
management by continuing to gather core deposits, ensuring
that liquidity limits are strictly adhered to and that there are
adequate liquid assets to meet cash shortfall.

The distribution of deposits is managed actively to ensure a
balance between cost effectiveness, continued accessibility
to funds and diversification of funding sources. Important
factors in ensuring liquidity are competitive pricing, proactive
management of the Bank’s core deposits and the maintenance
of customer confidence.

Liquidity risk is aligned with the regulatory liquidity risk
management framework, and is measured and managed on
a projected cash flow basis. The Bank is monitored under
business-as-usual and stress scenarios. Cash flow mismatch
limits are established to limit the Bank’s liquidity exposure.
The Bank also employs liquidity early warning indicators and
trigger points to signal possible contingency situations.

Contingency funding plans are in place to identify potential
liquidity crises using a series of warning indicators. Crisis
escalation processes and various strategies including funding
and communication have been developed to minimise the
impact of any liquidity crunch.
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Interest Rate Risk in the Banking Book

The ALCO, under delegated authority from the Board,
maintains oversight of the effectiveness of the interest rate
risk management structure. The MBSM Division supports the
ALCO in monitoring the interest rate risk profile of the banking
book.

The primary objective of interest rate risk management is to
protect and enhance capital or economic net worth through
adequate, stable and reliable growth in net interest earnings
under a broad range of possible economic conditions.

Banking book interest rate risk exposure is quantified on
a monthly basis using static analysis tools which include
repricing schedules and sensitivity analysis. They provide
indications of the potential impact of interest rate changes on
interest income and price value through the analysis of the
sensitivity of assets and liabilities to changes in interest rates.
Interest rate sensitivity varies with different repricing periods,
currencies and embedded options. Mismatches in the longer
tenor will experience greater change in the price-value of
interest rate positions than similar positions in the shorter
tenor.

Stress testing, such as the static net interest income approach
and duration (static economic value of equity) approach, is
also performed regularly to determine the adequacy of capital
in meeting the impact of extreme interest rate movements on
the balance sheet. Such tests are also performed to provide
early warnings of potential extreme losses, facilitating the
proactive management of interest rate risks in an environment
of rapid financial market changes.
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Operational Risk

Operational risk is managed through a framework of policies,
processes and procedures by which business units identify,
assess, monitor and mitigate their operational risks.

Operational Risk Self Assessments involve identifying and
assessing inherent risks, as well as assessing the effectiveness
of controls to mitigate the identified risks. Action plans to
address issues are documented and monitored through
Operational Risk Action Plans.

Key Operational Risk Indicators are statistical data collected
and monitored by business and support units on an ongoing
basis to facilitate early detection of potential operational
control weaknesses. Trend analysis is carried out to identify
systemic issues that need to be addressed.

A database of operational risk events and losses has been
established and corrective actions, where necessary, will be
taken to rectify the underlying root causes. The analysis of loss
trends and root causes of loss events helps in strengthening
the internal control environment.

An insurance programme is in place to mitigate the risk of high
impact operational losses.

A Product/Service Programme ensures that risks associated
with the introduction of new products and services are
identified, analysed and addressed prior to launch. The
Product Sales Committee also reviews product suitability,
product risk disclosures and reputation issues associated
with the distribution of retail investment products to individual
customers. For online products and services, extra care
and precautionary measures are implemented to protect
customers’ confidentiality and interests.

The Bank’s Outsourcing Policy and Framework ensures that
outsourcing risks are adequately identified and managed prior
to entering into any new arrangements and on an ongoing
basis.

Effective business continuity and crisis management strategies
and plans have been developed and tested to ensure prompt
recovery of critical business functions in the event of major
business and/or system disruptions.

Legal risk is part of operational risk. Legal risk arises from
unenforceable, unfavourable, defective or unintended
contracts, lawsuits or claims, developments in laws and
regulations or non compliance with applicable laws and
regulations. Business units work with the Bank’s legal counsel
and external legal counsel to ensure that legal risks are
effectively managed.
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Regulatory compliance risk is identified, assessed, monitored
and managed under a Regulatory Compliance Risk
Governance Framework. Regulatory compliance risk refers
to the risk of regulatory sanctions, financial loss or damage
to the Bank’s reputation and franchise value that may arise
from non-compliance with laws, regulations, rules, standards
or codes of conduct applicable to the Bank’s business and
operations. The framework also manages the risk of breaches
and sanctions relating to Anti-Money Laundering and
Countering the Financing of Terrorism.

A framework to manage fraud risk is in place. It includes a
policy on fraud, a whistle-blowing programme, a material
risk notification protocol and a fraud risk awareness training
programme for all employees of the Bank.

A framework to manage bribery risk is also in place. The
Bank’s Code of Conduct sets out anti-bribery and corruption
provisions. All employees are required to observe the Code
of Conduct and comply with the guidelines. Disciplinary
action will be taken against any employee who fails to do
so. Such disciplinary action may include suspension or
termination of employment. An anti-corruption digest is sent
to all employees regularly to keep them updated of latest
developments and to foster an anti-bribery culture.

Reputation risk is the adverse impact on earnings, liquidity or
capital arising from negative stakeholder perception or opinion
on the Bank’s business practices, activities and financial
condition. The Bank has a framework for managing reputation
risk.

An operational risk management training and awareness

programme is in place to facilitate ongoing promotion of an
effective risk management culture.
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(1) Shareholder Status Update
Name of Shareholder: United Overseas Bank Limited
Percentage of shares held: 100 per cent.

(2) There were no changes to the Bank’s registered capital,
nor any split or merger during the reporting period.

(3) None of the Bank’s directors, supervisors or top
management was penalised by the regulatory authorities
during the reporting period.

(4) Other highlights during the reporting period:

In 2013, UOB (China) registered a record net profit of
RMB 127 million.

As at 31 December 2013, our loans-to-deposit ratio
was 65.9 per cent.

In June 2013, UOB (China) became one of the first
foreign banks to obtain regulatory approval for local
mutual fund distribution.

In July 2013, UOB (China) obtained regulatory approval
to proceed with the establishment of a UOB Privilege
Banking sub-branch in Beijing Lufthansa Centre.

In October 2013, UOB (China) obtained regulatory
approval to proceed with the establishment of a
universal branch in Chongqing.

In November 2013, UOB (China)’s Shanghai Bund sub-
branch opened.

In November 2013, UOB (China) obtained regulatory
approval to proceed with the establishment of a sub-
branch in the Shanghai Pilot Free Trade Zone.
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Head Office

Unit 105, 2F, 3F, 111 Dongyuan
Road, Pudong New Area,
Shanghai 200120

Tel: (86) (21) 6061 8888

Fax: (86) (21) 6886 0908
SWIFT: UOVBCNSH

Website: www.UOBChina.com.cn

Shanghai Branch

Unit 101-104,

111 Dongyuan Road,
Pudong New Area,
Shanghai 200120

Tel: (86) (21) 6061 8288
Fax: (86) (21) 6886 1113

Jing’an Sub-branch (Shanghai)
1P-01/02, United Plaza,

1468 Nanjing Road West,
Shanghai 200040

Tel: (86) (21) 6080 9388

Fax: (86) (21) 6289 1001

Xintiandi Sub-branch (Shanghai)
156-158 Ma Dang Road,
Shanghai 200020

Tel: (86) (21) 2312 0888

Fax: (86) (21) 3330 2193

Bund Sub-branch (Shanghai)
No.20 Zhong Shan Dong Yi
Road,Huangpu District,
Shanghai 200002

Tel: (86) (21) 2319 8388
Fax: (86) (21) 6323 3022

Shanghai Pilot Free Trade Zone
Sub-branch (Preparatory)
Room 103, No.2 Tai Zhong Nan
Road,Pudong New Area,
Shanghai Pilot Free Trade Zone
200131

Tel: (86) (21) 2067 2888

Fax: (86) (21) 5019 6220
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Our Network

Beijing Branch

Unit 22/25 1/F, Unit 25 2/F,
Unit 01-03,05-09 25/F,
Tower C Office Park,

No.5 Jinghua South Street,
Chaoyang District,

Beijing 100020

Tel: (86) (10) 5879 2626
Fax: (86) (10) 8590 6725

Dongcheng Sub-branch (Beijing)
Unit 108, Tower C,

The Fifth Square,

7 Chaoyangmen, North Avenue,
Beijing 100010

Tel: (86) (10) 8418 3688

Fax: (86) (10) 8418 3668

Lufthansa Centre Sub-branch
(Beijing) (Preparatory)

Unit S104/S105, C806/C807,
No.50 Liang Ma Qiao Road,
Chaoyang District,

Beijing 100016

Tel: (86) (10) 8489 3888

Fax: (86) (10) 6461 5750

Chengdu Branch

Level 1, First City Plaza,
No. 308 Shuncheng Street,
Chengdu 610017

Tel: (86) (28) 8667 6121
Fax: (86) (28) 8667 7121

Guangzhou Branch

Unit 1107 - 1114

Metro Plaza,

183 - 187 Tianhe Bei Road,
Guangzhou 510075

Tel: (86) (20) 8755 8787
Fax: (86) (20) 8755 6661

Shenyang Branch
Fortune Plaza Tower C,
Unit C1, 1-2 Floor,
No.55 Beizhan Road,
Shenhe District,
Shenyang 110013

Tel: (86) (24) 3128 0606
Fax: (86) (24) 3128 0628
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Shenzhen Branch

Unit 2, 3, 5 and 6, 13 Floor,
(North Side) Di Wang,
Commercial Centre,

Shun Hing Square,

5002 Shennan Road East,
Shenzhen 518008

Tel: (86) (755) 2294 5688
Fax: (86) (755) 8246 3326

Xiamen Branch

1-2 Floor United Overseas
Bank Building,

19 Hubin Bei Road,
Xiamen 361012

Tel: (86) (592) 508 1601
Fax: (86) (592) 508 1605

Tianjin Branch

Unit 304-305

The Emperor Place Tower B2,
No. 236, 238 and 252,

Hebei Road, Heping District,
Tianjin 300040

Tel: (86) (22) 8321 1888

Fax: (86) (22) 2321 0166

Hangzhou Branch

Room 201 and 203, No.171
and 181 Tian Mu Shan Road,
Xihu District, 310013

Tel: (86) (571) 2809 0666
Fax: (86) (571) 8190 9619

Chongging Branch
(Preparatory)

Room 103, Unit A, 31 Floor
No.235, Minsheng Road,
Yuzhong District,
Chongging 400010

Tel: (86) (23) 8826 6782
Fax: (86) (23) 6037 2788
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Ernst and Young Hua Ming (2014) Shen Zi No 60658622_B01

To the Board of Directors of United Overseas Bank (China) Limited:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of
United Overseas Bank (China) Limited, which comprise the
balance sheet as at 31 December 2013, the income statement,
the statement of changes in equity and the statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of these financial statements. This responsibility
includes: (1) preparing and fairly presenting the financial
statements in accordance with Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises; (2) designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of the financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Chinese Standards on Auditing. Those
standards require that we comply with Code of Ethics for
Chinese Certified Public Accountants and plan and perform
the audit to obtain a reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers the internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting polices used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.



=, HitER
BAVAA, ERMSREEFRAERSARBEWSITHENRIE

Pml, AT KERIT(FE) BRAT 2013F 12 B 31 HIY
WEARRARK 2013 FEMAERRFIERE.

RAERLITIMES T FHREBEEN L85

Ernst and Young Hua Ming (LLP) Shanghai Office

thE Lbig

Shanghai, the People’s Republic of China

Hitik &
Auditors’ Report

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all
material aspects, the financial position of United Overseas
Bank (China) Limited as at 31 December 2013 and its financial

performance and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises.

PEEMSIHIR B

Chinese Certified Public Accountant: Huang, Yue Dong

hEEMSIIE Kk 82

Chinese Certified Public Accountant: Zhang, Jian

201453 H6H

6 March 2014
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"BERAER

Balance Sheet

2013 £ 12 A 31 H 31 December 2013
(BR¥FRVERRSN, @FBMIHAARTIT)
(Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)

fiER 20134# 1231 H 20124 12 A 31 H

Note 5 31-12-2013 31-12-2012
B ASSETS
WM& RAF R RERITFRI Cash and balances with the central bank 1 6,059,454,561 4,868,920,953
FHENL FRIT Due from banks 2 3,859,977,732 5,915,321,787
FRHES Placements with banks and other financial institutions 3 2,348,429,530 3,458,240,679
igggﬁgjﬁfgiﬂﬁ)\ Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 4 971,568,210 633,769,055
T4 S BE T Derivative financial assets 5 1,162,547,669 380,562,194
ENIBELFAESE Reverse repurchase financial assets 6 4,322,810,000 -
Rl F E Interest receivables 7 209,200,271 178,642,756
S E RN R Loans and advances to customers 8 18,853,289,353 14,916,638,219
A E S B iE T Available-for-sale financial assets 9 3,455,446,675 3,499,934,488
BlIE &~ Fixed assets 10 37,983,962 40,722,620
TR & Intangible assets 11 60,549,623 64,904,631
MBI T ERLE Deferred tax assets 12 91,697,343 48,663,293
EAbE = Other assets 13 539,457,388 576,941,581
#EERT TOTAL ASSETS 41,972,412,317 34,583,262,256
7l LIABILITIES
[Ell B L fth 4 Bl A 2 RER T Due to banks and other financial institutions 15 220,199,022 217,861,781
EAES iljllsatci;ﬁmggés from banks and other financial 16 6,920,961,913 5,700,255,538
T e R Derivative financial liabilities 5 1,270,307,268 410,625,504
USELecE N Customer deposits 17 29,059,960,553 23,944,690,429
Bz BR T35 B Payroll payables 18 65,181,838 44,117,262
RIAZR 2% Tax payables 19 89,396,386 41,070,152
FIf1FI2 Interest payables 20 409,734,876 377,331,083
Hthtafi Other liabilities 21 63,545,977 70,895,264
ffR& TOTAL LIABILITIES 38,099,287,833 30,806,847,013
PAE W i EQUITY
SHEE Paid-up capital 22 3,000,000,000 3,000,000,000
BERR Capital reserves 23 (26,242,239) 4,393,784
BRLR Surplus reserves 24 60,861,195 48,126,669
—R RS General reserves 25 492,879,631 430,856,697
AROEAE Retained earnings 26 345,625,897 293,038,093
FAEREET TOTAL EQUITY 3,873,124,484 3,776,415,243
AREREENERT TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 41,972,412,317 34,583,262,256

BT EE 62 WES 138 WM SIMERMIE R A SZRFEVARER S -

The notes on pages 62 to 138 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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2013 &£

FliAR

Income Statement

For the year ended 31 December 2013
(BREFRAERRSN, €FBMHYAARTIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)

MHER 2013 £ & 2012 £ &
Note 5 2013 2012
— ElgA . OPERATING INCOME
STV ON Interest income 27 1,506,519,152 1,367,300,621
FMEXH Interest expense 27 (698,307,629) (741,645,757)
LUISYEZON Net interest income 27 808,211,523 625,654,864
FHEBERBEWN Fee and commission income 28 125,158,757 66,580,507
FHHRRAEIH Fee and commission expense 28 (14,499,593) (9,841,087)
FHUBRBEAEWN Net fee and commission income 28 110,659,164 56,739,420
R EE Investment income 29 147,055,493 219,338,798
NRMETENE GRK) /W (Losses)/gains from changes in fair value 30 (74,620,773) 40,820,906
SCRRSCE = ARk Foreign exchange losses (50,672,202) (39,015,303)
E ol 5537 H Other operating expense (63,804,090) (32,935,871)
BN ET TOTAL OPERATING INCOME 876,829,115 870,602,814
Z, Blb%H . OPERATING EXPENSES
Bl i 4 R M Business tax and surcharges (64,926,091) (60,948,796)
W& R EE S General and administrative expenses 31 (595,092,585) (502,716,495)
R ERR K Impairment losses 32 (58,755,475) (24,716,124)
Bl AT TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES (718,774,151) (588,381,415)
= BEdFE . OPERATING PROFIT 158,054,964 282,221,399
I IS ON Add: Non-operating income 33 10,382,330 5,138,596
e BT Less: Non-operating expenses 34 (453,793) (572,026)
M. BETFE SR . PROFIT BEFORE TAX 167,983,501 286,787,969
B EriSFiERA Less: Income tax expense 35 (40,638,237) (72,200,242)
T, OEFE . NET PROFIT 127,345,264 214,587,727
N BEfpiE Al . OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 36 (30,636,023) 4,121,810
£, FEREDH . TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 96,709,241 218,709,537

BT 5 62 TIES 138 TV SIMRMIERAM S RFHVERER S -

The notes on pages 62 to 138 form an integral part of these financial statements.

%56 MEH 138 MMM SIREHUTALTEE:
The financial statements from page 56 to 138 have been signed by:

BE: EXE
Director: Eric Lian Voon Fui

M55 08 B3N
Chief Financial Officer: Teh Han Yi

WMEEE: BREE

Head, Finance: Juliet Chen Si Meng
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FBEERmENR

Statement of Changes in Equity

2013 £ For the year ende

d 31 December 2013

(BR4FHIERRSN, €A AARTIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, exp

ressed in RMB Yuan)

SR A RERHR BRAR —HREEE A EFNE ait
Paid-up Capital Surplus General Retained Total
capital reserves reserves reserves earnings

2012 £ 12 A 31 H&H Balance as at 31 December 2012 3,000,000,000 4,393,784 48,126,669 430,856,697 293,038,093 3,776,415,243

KREERTRNEH Movements during the year - (30,636,023) 12,734,526 62,022,934 52,587,804 96,709,241

(=) %7 (i) Net profit - - - - 127,345,264 127,345,264

(Z) EfbiEawz (i) Other comprehensive income - (30,636,023) - - - (30,636,023)

1. AMEHESRMES AR NESED) 1. Net change in fair value of - (40,848,030) - - - (40,848,030)
available-for-sale financial assets

2. S NIAENGEBEXNERFIE 2. Income tax impact recognised - 10,212,007 - - - 10,212,007

directly in equity

FEWE B Total comprehensive income - (30,636,023) - - 127,345,264 96,709,241

(=) FiEHE (iii) Profit appropriation - - 12,734,526 62,022,934 (74,757,460) -

1. REEKAR 1. Appropriation to surplus reserves - - 12,734,526 - (12,734,526) -

2. RE—RBNKEE 2. Appropriation to general reserves - - - 62,022,934 (62,022,934) -

2013 £ 12 A 31 H&H Balance as at 31 December 2013 3,000,000,000  (26,242,239) 60,861,195 492,879,631 345,625,897 3,873,124,484

SEHEA /N BRAR —MXEEE R EFE Ait

Paid-up Capital Surplus General Retained Total

capital reserves reserves reserves earnings

2011 412 A 31 B&H Balance as at 31 December 2011 3,000,000,000 271,974 26,667,896 304,607,460 226,158,376 3,557,705,706

KREERTNEH Movements during the year - 4,121,810 21,458,773 126,249,237 66,879,717 218,709,537

(=) #FiE (i) Net profit - - - - 214,587,727 214,587,727

(Z) EthizaWEs (i) Other comprehensive income - 4,121,810 - - - 4,121,810

1. AHESMASARNESTH 1. Net change in fair value of - 5,495,747 - - - 5,495,747
available-for-sale financial assets

2. S NEEWNERENAEHEM 2. Income tax impact recognised - (1,373,937) - - - (1,373,937)

directly in equity

FAWEDE Total comprehensive income - 4,121,810 - - 214,587,727 218,709,537

(=) FliEHER (iii) Profit appropriation - - 21,458,773 126,249,237  (147,708,010) -

1. RRBRKRAR 1. Appropriation to surplus reserves - - 21,458,773 - (21,458,773) -

2. RE—BNKEE 2. Appropriation to general reserves - - - 126,249,237 (126,249,237) -

20124 12 B 31 H&H Balance as at 31 December 2012 3,000,000,000 4,393,784 48,126,669 430,856,697 293,038,093 3,776,415,243

BT E 62 WESE 138 WHIMFZIRERMIERAM SRRAVER IS -

The notes on pages 62 to 138 form an integral part of these financial statements.

60 |

KERST (hE) FRAF 2013 FHRE



2013 &£ f&F

WERER

Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 31 December 2013

(BREFRLERRSN, EFBAMAARTIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)

MiER

2013 &

Note 5 2013

2012 &£

2012

— ZEEITFENAERE 1. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

FHEL SRS R D B Net decrease in due from banks

REEEEROH Net decrease in placements with banks and other financial institutions
MR 7 AR R s & RAA A TR Net increase in customer deposit and due to banks and other financial
FRITAIE IR institutions

IRANBE LR ME Net increase in placements from banks and other financial institutions

WEHFR. FEERAEHNIE

Cash received from interest, service fee and commission

FENIBE SR E 2R L Net decrease in reverse repurchase financial assets

BRI R SEEEHEXNME Cash received from other operating activities

1,993,565,000

515,131,391

5,122,812,881

1,220,706,375

1,582,987,106

10,381,138

1,857,497,999

580,353,508

1,464,892,161
176,400,000

5,083,596

ZEEHMERAN N Sub-total of cash inflows from operating activities

10,445,583,891

4,084,227,264

FNIBE SR E R 1EINER Net increase in reverse repurchase financial assets

KRR AR RS AR Net increase in loans and advances to customers
TER P RERITRR I 18 0 &R Net increase in due from the central bank

RS 77 R L K2 B S RAATAD TR L Net decrease in customer deposits and due to banks and other financial

U D E institutions
IRANBESERLE Net decrease in placements from banks and other financial institutions

RS, FEERASHNE

Payments made for interest, service fee and commission

SRR IRARTIMTHRE

Cash paid to and on behalf of employees

AR A 2R Cash paid for all types of taxes

IR EMCSEEFENTXNNE Cash paid for other operating activities

2,956,280,000
3,990,372,395

801,049,252

680,403,429
366,037,447
90,060,137

199,692,557

1,518,925,779

321,333,879

164,029,412

966,514,955
620,278,066
308,812,491
142,025,255

212,585,516

SEEHRESRE T

Sub-total of cash outflows from operating activities

9,083,895,217

4,254,505,353

REFENTENNEREST Net cash flows from operating activities

37 1,361,688,674

(170,278,089)

=\ BEESFENNERE 2. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
e B R & Cash received from maturity of investments
SR AR R I & Cash received from investment income

LEEEFZ M KRR RN E

Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets and other long term assets

9,952,823,282
174,480,118

1,192

12,042,404,576
247,669,742

54,987

REFENME RN NI Sub-total of cash inflows from investing activities

10,127,304,592

12,290,129,305

RERZAAIE Cash paid for investment

T2 E E B A KA = AT &

Cash paid for purchase of fixed assets and other long term assets

10,287,058,119

46,673,188

8,830,370,569

465,413,821

RETEMERE T Sub-total of cash outflows from investing activities

10,333,731,307

9,295,784,390

% AR E M &R R A Net cash flows from investing activities

(206,426,715)

2,994,344,915

CETBHMNNE RN EFNIHIFN

@

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents

(563,358,519)

(39,204,872)

&

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

M. RERMEFNIEEME
m: ENRERAEFNIRT

Add: Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

37 1,101,9083,440

6,136,587,687

2,784,861,954

3,351,725,733

. ERUESRAEFNIRE

5. Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

38 7,238,491,127

6,136,587,687

BT 62 MESE 138 AWM SIMKRMIE R AN SRRIEARL IS -
The notes on pages 62 to 138 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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W 55 48 3R B

Notes to the Financial Statements
2013 Z£E For the year ended 31 December 2013
(BREFRVERRSN, BB AARTIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)

—. ARHEFNFR

KERIT (hED ARAR (KERIT (hED HF,IT) BHKE
RITARLR (KLERIT) EhEARKRME LIBTRIBING
THERT.

ShERTIIEEERERS (UTEHR “RIEK” ) T 2007 F 4
A 5 B#itE, KERITIR (hEARAMESNRITERESD) UL
TR ¢ (EEBEGD) 7 )« (PEARJMEINERITERFAGIS
RegAm) (AT “ (SEHan) ” ) MAXNE, £LETERE
FRH B H SRR SNE M BRSRIT — RAEIRIT (FED , HREFPEERER
FIAREIRIT E/ DT dLRA1T RINSIT TN2IT. REDT.
E51T. MEMTR LE#HEIT (UTER “BEREXS1TRX
177 ) BUBIARERIT (FED B4 X8,

KERIT (PE) HHERBESMANEMITAIE, NAARER:
BO308H131000001 5, A LEW IHITHERBZEML K&
i AE LR, SEAMRS J9: 310000400553992 (Fi/F) - sE Mtk
ALETHERFEXAER 11151 F105 85T, 2%, 3R EME
AAANRM 301ZTT,

RIBAERIT (FED BEWHBHORE, BITEEMRATYEMR.
BITHEEEEAEAXEENERAERNINCLSTMARTIS.
2008 &£ 1 A 2 HARITS RPEX TS YIHRE .

#HZE 2013412 A 31 H, BRELSEZR2ITIHN, HRITEELE. 1t
=R T BRER. BT FEFH. RE. MUMIRALT 9 KT
& 4REIT,

=, GEIER

A EH/FTIZBREANRLFMEEE (LUTER “MEER” ) F
2006 £ 2 B R (el & TN ——Z A N) 0 38 A XS
THEN, EEMARINAERS. BRUREMEXHE (SR ‘ol
STHEN” ) il

AWM FIRFUABATIFELE AERMT R

62 | KERIT (hE ) HRAF 2013 FERE

(1) Corporate information

United Overseas Bank (China) Limited (UOB (China) or the
Bank) is a wholly foreign-owned bank established in Shanghai,
PRC, by United Overseas Bank (UOB).

In accordance with the Regulation of the PRC on the
Administration of Foreign-funded Banks (the Regulation), and
the Detailed Rules on the Implementation of Regulation of the
People’s Republic of China on the Administration of Foreign-
funded Banks (the Implementation), China Banking Regulatory
Committee (CBRC) granted approval to UOB on 5 April 2007
to set up a wholly-owned subsidiary bank, UOB (China), in
Shanghai by converting its Shanghai Branch, Beijing Branch,
Shenzhen Branch, Guangzhou Branch, Chengdu Branch,
Xiamen Branch, Shenyang Branch and Jing’an sub-branch
(collectively known as the Former PRC Branches).

The Bank obtained the license for conducting
financial transaction from the CBRC (Institution Code:
B0308H131000001), and obtained its business license
(Registered Number: 310000400553992 Shi Ju) from State
Administration for Industry and Commerce of the People’s
Republic of China. The registered address is Unit 105, 2F,
3F, 111 Dongyuan Road, Pudong New Area, Shanghai. The
registered capital of the Bank is RMB three billion equivalents.

The Bank obtained its business licence issued with an unlimited
operating period. The business scope of the Bank are Renminbi
and foreign currency businesses as approved by relevant
regulatory authorities. The date of business conversion from
former PRC branches to UOB (China) was on 2 January 2008.

As of 31 December 2013, besides the Head Office incorporated
in Shanghai, the Bank has set up nine branches and four
sub-branches respectively in Shanghai, Beijing, Shenzhen,
Guangzhou, Chengdu, Xiamen, Shenyang, Tianjin and
Hangzhou.

(2) Preparation basis of the financial
statements

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises-Basic
Standard and 38 specific standards issued in February 20086,
and the implementation guidance, interpretations and other
relevant provisions issued subsequently by the Ministry of
Finance of PRC (MOF) (collectively referred to as “Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises”).

The financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis.
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(3) Compliance with the Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises

The financial statements of the Bank have been prepared
in accordance with the Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises, and present fairly and fully, the financial position
of the Bank as of 31 December 2013 and the results of the
operations and the cash flows for the year then ended.

(4) Significant accounting policies and
estimates

1. Accounting year
The accounting year of the Bank is from 1 January to 31 December
of each calendar year.

2. Functional currency

The Bank’s functional currency is RMB. These financial
statements are presented in RMB and all amounts are stated
in RMB, unless otherwise stated.

3. Basis of accounting and principles for measurement
The Bank’s financial statements have been prepared on
an accrual basis under the historical cost as the basis of
measurement, except for derivative financial instruments,
the financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured
at fair value with changes recorded in profit and loss, and
available-for-sale financial assets. Subsequently, if the assets
are impaired, corresponding provisions should be recognised
in accordance with relevant standards.

4. Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the
reporting currency accordingly.

Foreign currency transactions are translated using the exchange
rates ruling at the transaction date. Subsequent to initial
recognition, monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the applicable exchange
rates ruling at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences
arising on the settlement of monetary items or on the translation
of monetary items at balance sheet date are recognised in the
income statement. Non-monetary items measured at historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the initial transactions; Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates when the fair value is determined, the
exchange difference thus resulted is recognised in the income
statement or other comprehensive income of the current period.

5. Financial assets

Financial assets are classified as follows: Financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss; Held-to-maturity investment; Loans
and receivables and Available-for-sale financial assets. Financial
assets are initially recognised at their fair value. For financial
assets at fair value through profit and loss, the related transaction
costs are directly charged to income statement of the current
period. Transaction costs relating to financial assets of other
categories are included in the amount initially recognised.
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Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial
assets which are either classified as held for trading or designated
by the Bank as such upon initial recognition. Financial assets are
classified as held for trading if they meet any of the following:
1) acquired for the purpose of sale in the short term; 2) part of a
portfolio of identifiable financial instruments that are collectively
managed, and there is objective evidence indicating that the
enterprise recently managed this portfolio for the purpose of
short-term profits; 3) derivatives unless they are designated
as effective hedging instruments, they are financial guarantee
contracts or they are derivatives that linked to and must be settled
by delivery of equity instruments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured. For such kind of financial assets, fair values are
adopted for subsequent measurement. All realised or unrealised
gains or losses on these financial assets are recognised in the
income statement of the current period.

Financial assets/liabilities are designated as fair value through
profit and loss only if they meet any of the following criteria:

() The designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise from measuring the assets or liabilities on
a different basis.

(i) In accordance with documented risk management or
investment strategy, this financial assets portfolio are
managed, and evaluated at fair value and reported on that
basis to key management personnel.

(i) The financial instrument contains one or several
embedded derivatives, unless the embedded derivatives
do not significantly modify the cash flow of the mixed
instrument or it is clear that they would not be separately
recorded.

(iv) The financial instrument contains an embedded
instrument, which need to be separated but is unable
to be measured separately at initial recognition or
subsequent measurement at each subsequent balance
sheet dates.

Held-to-maturity Investment

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturity are classified as held-to-maturity investments
when the Bank has the intention and ability to hold the assets till
maturity. After initial recognition, held-to-maturity financial assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate method, less any allowance for impairment. Gains and losses
are recognised in the income statement when the held-to-maturity
financial assets are derecognised or impaired, as well as through the
amortisation process. The Bank shall not classify any financial assets
as held-to-maturity if the Bank has, during the current financial year
or during the two preceding financial years, sold or reclassified more
than an insignificant amount of held-to-maturity investments before
maturity (more than insignificant in relation to the total amount of held-
to-maturity investments), any remaining held-to-maturity investments
are reclassified as available-for-sale financial assets except for:



() HERRESAXAERZIR AN HLBERRIE (0
HRI=1MAR), UETHHMEROTEAINZIRERN A RN E
RERES;

@) RI|ERLENERREFRIRINER S N EHZTUR L F A
MaAERE, BRABIHERESL; =X

(@) HEHESLRATHRITLEILS, MPFSEEREAHLUE
TR IE S B S L.

VAL £

RRRE NS, REEERTZTRERN. REREHEERT
WEMIETE M. I TUHRSRME>, RASRAIERE, &
BRERRAHITEEE, HEERAN REREIME~ENF
SEERKk, It AR

A HE SR

AIHESMES, RIEVHEBIANEEENTHEENIENTES
RREEFE, KRB BRSO EREE . ERETERE, X e
BEARANETE. THESESMESFARERGHFZBAN
KA SERRFREWHNERE S FRRERERIDETEEME
LR ETRIA R LRGN, TRHEESMBA~NARNELR
EARMEEWETEARAQRBIN, BEZEmMBE~E LIS
ERMER, HRITFISSIRKAEN SHRE.

6. &R iR{E
BITESNEAAHRRANUQ AN ETEBRE TR A LR
HEmME~ UM EMBESNKENEXITRE, UHEHEEHIE
BRPEMEEHT RS SREFNLEMEINRE (ARES
). MEFNREAZFESNRHARLEN. MHRHRKAE
REAZME, BRTRENZEZMMETEITENET. H~RE
HEVIEREE TSI : ERAREREDLETEVSEME;
BEMERAELEFYHEH; 5 ARTRERASRITH MM
FEH; URATFHHEERARSATTREASRERD BT
2, MEXFBEANEAREFFHNBEEZTUSHESATE
ITRENERHEN.

(1) Sales that are so close to maturity (i.e.: three months
before maturity date) that changes in the market interest
rate would not have a significant effect on the financial
asset's fair value;

(2) Sales that occur after the Bank has collected substantially
all of the financial asset’s original principal through
scheduled payments or prepayments; or

(3) Sales that are attributable to an isolated event that is
beyond the Bank’s control, is non-recurring, and could not
have been reasonably anticipated by the Bank.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. After initial measurement, such financial
assets are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method, and gains or losses arising from
derecognition, impairment or amortisation are recognised in
the income statement.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial
assets which are designated as such or are not classified in
any of the three preceding categories. After initial recognition,
available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently measured
at fair value. Interest income earned during the holding
period is accrued using the effective interest rate method and
recognised to the income statement as interest rate income.
Changes in fair value of available-for-sale financial assets
are recognised as other comprehensive income in capital
reserves until the financial asset is derecognised at which time
the cumulative gains or losses previously reported in capital
reserves are included in the income statement. Impairment
losses and foreign exchange gains or losses on available-for-
sale financial assets which are monetary items are recognised
in the income statement.

6. Impairment of financial assets

The carrying value of financial assets other than financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss is assessed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is any objective
evidence that it is impaired as a result of one or more events
(“impairment events”). The impairment events are referred
to those occurring after the initial recognition of the assets,
which have an impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial assets and can be reliably estimated by the
Bank. Evidence of impairment may include indications that the
borrower or a group of borrowers are experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation and where observable data
indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as deterioration of the situation in
arrears or sudden change of economic conditions, which
may lead to the debtors’ failing to fulfill the responsibility of
repayment.
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Financial assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on such
financial assets carried at amortised cost has been incurred,
the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between
the financial asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’ s
original effective interest rate, taking into account the value of
any related collateral.

The Bank first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, and individually or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Bank
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for
an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant
or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses
them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues
to be recognised are not included in a collective assessment
of impairment.

Future cash flows of a group of financial assets that are
collectively assessed for impairment are estimated on the
basis of historical loss experience for assets with similar credit
risk characteristics. The historical loss experience is adjusted
on the basis of current observable data, to reflect the effects
of current conditions not affecting the period of historical
experience and to eliminate the impact of historical conditions
that do not exist currently. The methodology and assumptions
used for estimating future cash flows are reviewed regularly by
the Bank.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of an impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be attributed objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss shall be reversed. Any
subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in
the income statement, to the extent that the carrying value of
the assets does not exceed its amortised cost at the reversal
date.

Financial assets carried at cost

If objective evidence shows that the financial assets carried
at cost are impaired, the difference between the present
value discounted at the prevailing rate of return of similar
financial assets and the book value of the financial asset are
provided as an impairment loss in the income statement. The
impairment loss recognised cannot be reversed.

Available-for-sale financial assets

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss for
available-for-sale financial assets has been incurred, the
cumulative loss, measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost (net off any recovered principals and
amortised amount) and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised
in the income statement, is reversed from other comprehensive
income and recognised in the income statement.
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Debt instruments classified as available-for-sale with
impairment loss recognised, if, in a subsequent period, the
fair value of a debt instrument increases and the increase
can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss, the previously impaired loss is reversed
through the income statement. Reversal of impairment loss
of equity instruments classified as available-for-sale is not
recognised in the income statement.

7. Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss, or other financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and those designated as at
fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition. Gains
and losses from changes in fair value are recognised in the
income statement.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are measured at the fair value
on initial recognition. For financial guarantee contracts that are
not designated as at fair value through profit or loss, they are,
after initial recognition, subsequently measured at the higher
of, the amount determined in accordance with Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises No. 13 — Contingencies,
and the amount initially recognised less the cumulative
amortisation determined according to the principles of
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No. 14 -
Revenues.

Other financial liabilities

Except for financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
and financial guarantee contracts, deposits and other financial
liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate method.

8. Derecognition of financial instruments

Financial asset

A financial asset is derecognised when one of the following
conditions is met:

(i) the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets
have expired; or

(i) the Bank has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the assets; or has retained its rights to receive cash
flows from the assets but has assumed an obligation to
pay them in full without material delay to a third party
under a“pass-through”arrangement; and (a) the Bank
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset; or (b) the Bank has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.
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Where the Bank has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control
of the financial asset, the asset is recognised to the extent
of the Bank’s continuing involvement of the financial asset.
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred financial asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount
of consideration that the Bank could be required to repay.

Financial liability

The financial liabilities are derecognised when the responsibilities
over them have been discharged, cancelled, or expired. If
the original financial liabilities are replaced with substantively
different terms in essence by the same creditor, or the provisions
of the contract are substantively modified in its nature, such
replacement or modifications are treated as derecognition of
original liabilities and recognition of new liabilities, with the
difference recorded in the income statement.

9. Derivatives

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value of the contract
date and are subsequently measured at fair value. Derivatives
are carried as assets when fair value is positive and as liabilities
when fair value is negative.

Derivatives embedded in other financial instruments are treated
separately as derivatives when their economic characteristics
and risks are not closely related to those of the host contract
and the hybrid instrument is not carried at fair value through
profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair
value with the changes in fair value recognised in the income
statement.

Certain derivative transactions, while providing effective
economic hedges under the Bank’s risk management positions,
do not qualify for hedge accounting and are therefore treated
as derivatives held for trading with gains or losses arising from
changes in fair value are recognised in the income statement.

10. Repurchase and reverse repurchase transactions
Assets sold under agreements to repurchase at a specified
future date (repos) are not derecognised from the balance
sheet. The corresponding cash received, including accrued
interest, is recognised on the balance sheet as a “repurchase
agreement” , reflecting its economic substance as a loan to the
Bank. The difference between the sale and repurchase prices is
treated as an interest expense and is accrued over the life of the
agreement using the effective interest method.

Conversely, assets purchased under agreements to resell at
a specified future date ( “reverse repos” ) are not recognised
on the balance sheet. The corresponding cash paid, including
accrued interest, is recognised on the balance sheet as a

“reverse repurchase agreement” . The difference between
the purchase and resale prices is treated as an interest income
and is accrued over the life of the agreement using the effective
interest method.
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11. Precious metal

Precious metals comprise gold. Precious metals acquired by
the Bank for trading purposes are initially and subsequently
measured at fair value and subsequent changes in fair value
are recorded in income statement.

12. Construction in progress

The cost of construction in progress is determined according
to the actual expenditure for the construction, including all
necessary expenditure and other related expenses incurred
during the construction period.

The costs are transferred to fixed assets, intangible assets or
other long term assets when the asset is ready for its intended
use.

13. Fixed assets and accumulated depreciation
Recognition of fixed assets

The fixed assets can be recognised only when the economic
benefits related to fixed assets are likely to flow into the Bank,
and the cost of fixed assets can be measured reliably.

Subsequent expenditure can be recognised as the cost of
fixed assets when the recognition criteria set above is met,
and the replaced carrying amount shall be derecognised.
Otherwise, such expenditure is to be charged to the income
statement in the period when it is incurred.

Valuation and depreciation of fixed assets

Fixed assets are initially measured at cost and presented at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and provision for
impairment. The cost of a purchased fixed asset comprises
the purchase price, relevant taxes and any directly attributable
expenditure for bringing the asset to working condition for its
intended use, such as delivery and handling costs, installation
costs and other surcharge.

Depreciation is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis. And the respective estimated useful lives, estimated
residual values and annual depreciation rates of fixed assets
are set by the Bank considering the nature and usage of fixed
assets.

ERFMw BitERER FHIEE

Estimated useful lives Estimated residual value Annual depreciation rate

BERERY Properties and buildings 50 £ - 2%
HRREBEMRE Office equipment and computers 54 - 20%
EMEE Motor vehicles 5% - 20%

BRITESMEFAGRRANMEEE~NERSE®. TUHeRkE
R IR ERITER, LERTEITIEE.

Residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are
reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013 | 69



14. TRE*=

TR & R RITIMA R BIEH MR B SRS A AT
B, IMEENESEELEMEFRERTEEAANRIT, BER
ABEB AT S B AT A T LA

BRITEMEFRBRAEITRITE, FTREEHEESZRE
BEARATHREF A B IIRBEERED, TEMRERRITH
REFHEHRIIERERE G T HEN TR Z~.

BATHI R R AR, HERFRA 104,

EREHAARN, BEME~ARERME, RAERREZE
FRXNEFAEMNTASSIA XNMEHES %, AR ERERA
PhtH; REAURHBETAISAA AN, RBELEME,; ERES
THERITRES, TIEMH.

BRITESNMNEFAGRAYUMERESERNILE=NERE®
RPsHA AR ITER, LEMHEITEE.

15. KEAFPESR
KM EARIECERE, BMHETRE1 EULE (FE—F)1
EER, TEAEHAESHENSEENEEETHMR T EE.

HEFEUEZEHEEFRABANEER~LREMNBERRA, NE
AFEERFHME. EMEKASHERRBEGFRMNS ZmHR
FIERN T EREHEARR, FT bk

MRKAMHEN BRI E T REUGS TR ZEN, HFERME
BT E BB R M E SRR\ S EAREE .

16. BrEm{E
BRATXR SRR = RABIT FHERUA =M EF=RAE, U T 5 EHE

BITTHRAAGRAFIAREFEARRERENTSR, FE
RETRE, FITHRETETEEESH, #HITREMNR. MERE
WARMENERES, CTREBFERELR, ZLOTEHFREHE
ITRAERR .

A B EFIREZ =W AR MERELERRENSTS F~Mit

REDEREVIVERE ZERSERE. HLITLURTZE = R0
et EAE 2.

70 | KEESRIT (hE ) HRAF 2013 FERE

14. Intangible assets

Intangible assets are identifiable non-monetary assets without
physical substance owned or controlled by the Bank. The
intangible assets can be recognised only when the economic
benefits related to intangible assets are likely to flow into the
Bank, and the cost of intangible assets can be measured
reliably.

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost and the useful
life is determined according to the economic useful lives;
those intangible assets with unforeseeable economic lives can
be classified as intangible assets with infinite useful lives.

The Bank’s intangible assets comprise computer software
with a 10-year useful life.

For the intangible assets with finite useful lives, amortisation
is charged to income statement over the assets’ estimated
economic lives using methods that best reflect the pattern
of economic benefits; or on a straight line basis when the
pattern of economic benefit realisation cannot be reliably
determined. For the intangible assets with infinite useful lives,
no amortisation is made.

The useful life and amortisation method for intangible assets
with finite useful lives are reviewed at each balance sheet date,
with proper adjustments made by the Bank when necessary.

15. Long-term deferred expenses

Long-term deferred expenses refer to the expenses incurred
with an amortisation period of more than one year (not
including one year), mainly including rental fee and leasehold
improvements.

Rental fee of the operating lease of fixed assets is
amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease contract. Other long-term deferred expenses are
amortised on a straight-line basis over the lower period of
lease period or useful life.

The carrying amount that has not been amortised is charged
to income statement if the expenditure does not bring benefits
to subsequent accounting periods.

16. Impairment of assets
The Bank assesses impairment of assets as follows, except
for financial assets and deferred tax assets:

The Bank assesses whether there is an indication that an asset
is impaired at each balance sheet date. If any such indication
exists, the Bank makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable
amount and carries out impairment test. For those assets
with infinite useful lives, regardless of whether the impairment
indications exist, the impairment test is made at least annually.

An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of its fair value
less costs to sell and the present value of estimated future
discounted cash flows, which is determined on an individual
basis.
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If the recoverable amount of the asset is less than
its carrying value, an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in income statement and the carrying value of
the asset reduced by the amount of the loss.

Once an impairment loss is recognised, it shall not be reversed
in a subsequent period.

17. Recognition of income and expense

Revenue is recognised to the extent when it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Bank and the revenue
can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition
criteria must be met before revenue is recognised:

Interest income and expense

Interest income or expense are determined using the effective
interest method, the effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument or a
shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount
of the financial asset or financial liability. The calculation takes
into account all contractual terms of the financial instrument
and includes any fees or incremental costs that are directly
attributable to the instrument and are an integral part of the
effective interest rate, but not future credit losses. The carrying
amount of the financial asset or financial liability is adjusted
if the Bank revises its estimates of payments or receipts. The
adjusted carrying amount is calculated based on original
effective interest rate and the change in carrying amount is
recorded as an interest income or expense.

Fee and commission income
Fee and commission income is recognised when the services
are rendered and the proceeds can be reasonably estimated.

18. Income tax

Income tax includes current tax and deferred tax. Current
income tax and movements in deferred tax balances are
recognised in the income statement except that it relates to
items recognised directly in equity, in which case the tax is
recognised directly in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted
at the balance sheet date. The taxable income is calculated at
the accounting results for the year as adjusted in accordance
with relevant tax regulations.

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current
and prior periods are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities in
accordance with relevant tax regulations.

Deferred income tax is provided, using the liability method,
on all temporary differences between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes at the balance sheet date.
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Deferred income tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, carryforward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except: (i) where
the deferred tax assets arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable income or deductible loss;
and; (i) in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests
in joint ventures, where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed
at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset
to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred income tax assets are
reassessed at each balance sheet date and are recognised
to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable
profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities
are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred
income taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.

19. Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits

Salaries and bonuses, social security contributions and other
short term employee benefits are accrued in the period in
which services have been rendered by the employees of the
Bank.

Defined contribution plans

According to relevant laws and regulations of Mainland
China, the Bank is required to make contributions to several
social security schemes separately administered by the local
government authorities. The contribution is recognised to
income statement of that period.
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20. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash equivalents comprise non-statutory deposits due
from the central bank, amounts due from banks and other
financial institutions, reverse repurchase agreements
maturing within three months, and short-term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash, and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, which have an original maturity date
within three months.

21. Related parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the
ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the other party. Parties
are also considered to be related if they are subject to
common control or common significant influence.

The state-owned enterprises without other relationships do
not constitute related parties.

22, Entrusted business

Where the Bank acts in a entrusted business such as
nominee, custodian or agent, assets arising thereon together
with related undertakings to return such assets to customers
are excluded from the financial statements.

23. Operating leases

Leases which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the assets to the lessees are classified as
finance leases. Other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Bank mainly recorded operating leases as a lessee.
Rental payments are charged to the income statement on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

24. Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Bank. It can
also be a present obligation arising from past events that is
not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow
of economic resources will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably.

The Bank will not recognise contingent liabilities, but disclosed
in the notes to financial statements. In case the condition
changes, which led to the outflow of economic resources is
probable, provision will be made.
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25. Accrued liability
An obligation related to a contingency is recognised as
accrued liability when all of the following conditions are
satisfied (except for contingent liability recognised in a
business combination):

(i) the obligation is a present obligation of the Bank;

(ii) it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation; and

(iii) the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably.

The accrued liability is initially measured at the best estimate
of the expenditure required to settle the related present
obligation. Factors pertaining to a contingency such as the
risks, uncertainties and time value of money are taken into
account as a whole in reaching the best estimate. The Bank
reviews the carrying amount of a provision at the balance
sheet date. The carrying amount of a provision will be adjusted
when there is clear evidence that the amount does not reflect
the current best estimate.

26. Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset only
when the Bank has a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and both parties of the transaction
intend to settle on a net basis.

27. Significant accounting judgment and estimates

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the
management has used its judgments and made assumptions
of the effects of uncertain future events on the financial
statements. The use of judgments and key assumptions
concerning the future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the balance sheet date have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial period.

Impairment losses of loans and advances

The Bank determines periodically whether there is any
objective evidence that impairment losses on loans and
advances have occurred. If any such evidence exists, the
Bank assesses the amount of impairment losses. The amount
of impairment losses is measured as the difference between
the carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows. Assessing the amount of impairment losses
involving significant judgement on whether the objective
evidence for impairment exists and also significant estimates
when determining the present value of the expected future
cash flows.
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Income tax

Determining income tax provisions requires the Bank to
estimate the future tax treatment of certain transactions. The
Bank carefully evaluates tax implications of transactions in
accordance with prevailing tax regulations and makes tax
provisions accordingly. In addition, deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. This requires significant estimation
on the tax treatments of certain transactions and also
significant assessment on the probability that adequate future
taxable profits will be available for the deferred tax assets to
be recovered.

Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities with
active markets are determined based on the market prices.
For financial instruments with no active markets, fair value
are established using valuation techniques such as making
reference to recent transactions or other comparable financial
instruments, discounted cash flow method and option pricing
models. To the extent practicable, valuation technique makes
maximum use of market inputs. However, where market inputs
are not available, management needs to make estimates
on areas such as credit risk (both own and counterparty’s),
volatility and correlation. Changes in assumptions about
these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial
instruments.

Classification of investment

Significant management judgment is required in evaluating the
classification of investments, since different classification will
result in different accounting treatments and financial positions
of the Bank. If improper judgement on the classification of
investment is noticed after the balance sheet date, the Bank
may need to reclassify the whole investment portfolio.

Derecognition of financial instruments

The management of the Bank has assessed and made
judgments on the extent to which it retains the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial instruments for the
transferred transactions entered into, and make relevant
accounting treatments accordingly.
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(5) Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Cash and balances with central bank

31-12-2013 31-12-2012

BEHFRE
ERPRRITEEEEE - AR
ERHRRITEEEE S - 5T
R RIRITR AR

&it Total

Cash on hand

Other deposits with the central bank

Statutory deposit reserve with the central bank - RMB

Statutory deposit reserve with the central bank - foreign currency

15,018,187 14,334,388

4,836,447,793 4,014,507,613
61,238,778 82,129,706

1,146,749,803 757,949,246

6,059,454,561 4,868,920,953

REFEPEARRITHERINE, RITLIR—ELERYHERES
ETHEARRIT. PIRIITHIINDERER SR EAXRITER
REH 5% F (2012 F: 5%) , ARMHEEZSMIREARA
ROFERKTM 18% 477 (2012 F: 18%).

The Bank places statutory deposit reserves with the People’s
Bank of China (PBOC) in accordance with relevant regulations
issued by it. The required statutory deposit reserve ratios are
five per cent of the balance of customer deposits denominated
in foreign currencies, and 18 per cent (2012: 18 per cent) of the
balance of customer deposits denominated in RMB.

2. F R b FRIR 2. Due from banks

31-12-2013 31-12-2012
HFERIRARITREL Due from domestic banks 3,176,099,274 5,851,245,748
FERURSMRITREL Due from foreign banks 686,624,453 64,474,137
N Sub-total 3,862,723,727 5,915,719,885
e FERENREES (1) Less: Impairment provisions for due from banks (Note 1) (2,745,995) (398,098)
FEREMAE Net amount of due from banks 3,859,977,732 5,915,321,787

E A FRENBEEEARITRIEREL [2010] 45 5 (FER
BRXTHR <RITI ERIAERI R EIRES] > B@BA) B
EMiHEIER K REES.

Note 1: Impairment provisions for due from banks represented
the country risk reserve provided according to Yin Jian Fa [2010]
No. 45 “Circular of the China Banking Regulatory Commission
on Printing and Distributing the Guidelines for Country Risk
Management of the Banking Financial Institutions” issued by
CBRC.

3. /B E 3. Placements with banks and other financial institutions
31-12-2013 31-12-2012
TR & B ERRITENL R H b & R4S Net amount of placements with domestic banks and other 2,348,429,530 3,458,240,679

financial institutions

4. A HrE T EBEER T LHIR 5 SR

4. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

31-12-2013 31-12-2012
RHMEERAE” Held-for-trading financial assets
R E: Bond investments:
HRI[ITRER E Central bank bills and government bonds - 49,497,700
RATREIL 5255 Bonds issued by banks 245,552,350 198,899,000
BURMSRITRS Bonds issued by policy banks - 288,150,390
N Sub-total 245,552,350 536,547,090
LA Rediscounted bills - 97,221,965
BEUAANETEAETINTALSMREOEME™  Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss
ENBRE MBS Reverse repurchase financial assets 726,015,860 -
&it Total 971,568,210 633,769,055
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5. Derivative financial instruments

A derivative is a financial instrument, the value of which
is derived from the value of another “underlying” financial
instrument, an index or some other variables. Typically, an
“underlying” financial instrument is a share, commodity or
bond price, an index value or an exchange or interest rate. The
Bank uses derivative instruments such as forwards, futures,
swaps and options.

The notional amount of a derivative represents the amount
of underlying asset upon which the value of the derivative
is based. It indicates the unsettled volume of business
transaction at the balance sheet date. The amount of
underlying asset reflects the risk exposure of derivative at the
end of accounting period other than fair value.

The fair value is the amount for which an asset could be
exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable and
willing parties in an arm’s length transaction.

The Bank has no derivative designated as hedging instruments.

The notional amount and fair value of the Bank’s derivative
instruments are as follows:

31-12-2013
RERBE B SN E XS NRME
Notional amounts by remaining life Fair values
3MAA 3AMAETE 146555 Ait %= ff
Within three Over three months Over one year but Total Assets Liabilities
months but within one year within five years

SSCHTETR: Foreign exchange contracts:
mHIEY Forwards 2,235,692,646 2,414,402,449 1,292,341,040 5,942,436,135 33,565,656 85,886,371
BHEY Swaps 37,249,681,518 25,633,992,129 1,317,604,632 64,201,278,279 338,624,708 341,008,501
&Y Options 671,508,054 156,419,234 - 827,927,288 11,366,770 11,020,840
Ny Sub-total 40,156,882,218 28,204,813,812 2,609,945,672 70,971,641,702 383,557,134 437,915,712
FRGTETH: Interest rate contracts:
BHEY Swaps 14,988,963,842 32,780,547,562 27,458,913,541 75,228,424,945 634,484,456 636,424,302
HIEY) Options 12,861,818,574 3,337,938,583 - 16,199,757,157 1,035,579 76
INF Sub-total 27,850,782,416 36,118,486,145 27,458,913,541 91,428,182,102 635,520,035 636,424,378
AmMiEENTAR:  Commodity contracts:
&Y Swaps 244,463,868 54,333,893 51,508,244 350,306,005 8,350,128 9,834,271
HAIE Y Options _ _ 3,777,576 3,777,576 23,266 -
N7y Sub-total 244,463,868 54,333,893 55,285,820 354,083,581 8,373,394 9,834,271
BRENEEHIER:  Equity contracts:
#FHEY Swaps 1,039,336,937 2,538,196,169 2,510,057,236 6,087,590,342 131,946,629 185,807,392
HmALY Options 312,392,179 26,847,965 - 339,240,144 3,106,935 -
INE Sub-total 1,351,729,116 2,565,044,134 2,510,057,236 6,426,830,486 135,053,564 185,807,392
RERMTETAR: Precious metal derivatives: 140,716,378 10,632,217 - 151,348,595 43,542 325,515
P Total 69,744,573,996 66,953,310,201 32,634,202,269 169,332,086,466  1,162,547,669 1,270,307,268
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31-12-2012

BREIRBEESTHE ST NRME
Notional amounts by remaining life Fair values
3NAR KRO9=EIRE:3 15555 &ait #= ffR
Within three Over three months Over one year but Total Assets Liabilities
months but within one year within five years

SSCHTE TR Foreign exchange contracts:
THEY Forwards 1,279,495,037 1,637,553,745 12,571,000 2,929,619,782 18,849,852 17,549,038
EHEY Swaps 11,420,829,306 4,756,881,267 38,971,900 16,216,682,473 64,032,030 69,313,310
&Y Options 1,444,513,5646 1,5696,881,395 - 3,041,394,941 30,518,950 41,770,167
INF Sub-total 14,144,837,889 7,991,316,407 51,542,900 22,187,697,196 113,400,832 128,632,515
FEATETR: Interest rate contracts:
EHAY Swaps 7,370,817,119 14,527,931,606 19,231,260,000 41,130,008,725 144,318,326 138,516,181
&Y Options 4,746,005,087 41,427,574,021 - 46,173,579,108 - -
N Sub-total 12,116,822,206 55,9565,505,627 19,231,260,000 87,303,587,833 144,318,326 138,516,181
AR TR Commodity contracts:
EHEY Swaps 178,202,626 237,523,526 110,401,267 526,127,419 4,411,139 5,994,233
IR &Y Options - - 29,711,084 29,711,084 455,732 455,732
INF Sub-total 178,202,626 237,523,526 140,112,351 555,838,503 4,866,871 6,449,965
BRENEEHTA: Equity contracts:
BHEEY Swaps 1,044,454,429 3,164,466,334 2,330,218,126 6,539,138,889 110,916,673 130,147,428
HmAY Options 437,581,785 70,186,121 66,805,192 574,573,098 6,804,806 6,804,806
INF Sub-total 1,482,036,214 3,234,652,455 2,397,023,318 7,113,711,987 117,721,479 136,952,234
RERBITETR: Precious metal derivatives: 199,720,816 - - 199,720,816 254,686 74,609
&t Total 28,121,619,751 67,418,998,015 21,819,938,569 117,360,556,335 380,562,194 410,625,504
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6. Reverse repurchase financial assets

31-12-2013 31-12-2012
BXHHF 7% Classified by counter-party:
SRATREIL Banks 4,322,810,000 -
BRERSRSENT: Classified by type of pledged assets:
EE5 Bonds 4,322,810,000 -
7. B F 2 7. Interest receivables

31-12-2013 31-12-2012
R BRI 2 Interest receivable on bond 50,314,434 52,178,521
BRAERRBFR Interest receivable on loan 112,545,719 95,116,856
FENIBERHRYFIR Interest receivable on reverse repurchase bond 19,645,391 -
Bl Rz i 1) 2 % F At Interest receivable from banks and others 26,694,727 31,347,379
&t Total 209,200,271 178,642,756

8. K IR
8.1 EAMAFLLSH

8. Loans and advances to customers

8.1 Distribution of loans and advances to customers

by individual and corporate

31-12-2013

31-12-2012

N e IR
1EE1E

HE

Mt

Al SEFRANEREK
B

#C

TR

Hith

Mt
BYRAEBER B
B BRI

BB E A

Individual loans and advances:
Mortgages

Others

Sub-total

Corporate loans and advances:
Loans

Trust receipts

Discounted bills

Others

Sub-total

Total

Less: Loan impairment provisions

Net value of loans and advances

3,317,157,743

8,799,971

3,315,964,800

12,605,270

3,325,957,714

12,306,871,129

265,839,103

2,304,753,609

946,281,438

3,328,570,070

10,864,330,924

72,854,907

723,940,982

226,605,013

15,8283,745,279

11,887,731,826

19,149,702,993

(296,413,640)

15,216,301,896

(299,663,677)

18,853,289,353

14,916,638,219
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8.2 Distribution of loans and advances to customers by

industry

31-12-2013

T T SR B el (%)

Amount Percentage(%)

R AR
Rl

i

B, BRS Bk B R Rl
BAW
SBER, & MEmEL
BB, SHEHLARS ML

HEMEEW
fEEME R
Rl

B it = b
HEMB SRS

REHR, RARRSHMtE R
KF], IR IR E R

JE RBR 55 A0 H At AR 55k

D&%, #HemREMESBR L
MAHBER

BRAMBRDE

W BRI &

YRR AN R K E N E

Agriculture, forestry, farming and fishing

Mining

Manufacturing

Electricity, gas and water supply

Construction

Transportation, storage and post

Telecommunication, computer services and software

Wholesale and retail

Accommodation and catering

Finance

Real estate

Leasing and commercial services

Scientific research, technical services and geologic perambulation
Water conservancy, environment and public facilities administration
Resident services and other services

Health, social security and social welfare

Consumer credit

Total amount of loans and advances

Less: Loan impairment provision

Net value of loans and advances

246,614,047 1
130,849,198 1
6,347,957,463 34
151,968,732 1
549,887,618 3
174,617,714 1
221,821,973 1
3,107,221,386 16
1,105,240,695 6
19,776,000 -
3,063,680,669 16
608,159,298 3
22,370,754 -
29,075,000 -
44,504,732 -
3,325,957,714 17
19,149,702,993 100
(296,413,640)

18,853,289,353
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31-12-2012

KT 3R eI (%)

Amount  Percentage(%)

R Agriculture, forestry, farming and fishing 477,697,291 3
KA Mining 50,000,000 -
&l Manufacturing 4,920,087,214 32
1, MRS RIKEE =Rk Rl Electricity, gas and water supply 162,159,954 1
3l Construction 261,193,575 2
RBIEH, SiEMbtBLL Transportation, storage and post 116,531,146 1
EREM, TENRSFER AL Telecommunication, computer service and software 164,843,547 1
HEFMEEL Wholesale and retail 1,614,551,327 11
fEEfE R Accommodation and catering 455,182,615 3
eRtlle Finance - -
Bl Real estate 3,211,776,502 21
HERMH SRS Leasing and commercial services 318,596,958 2
MZEMR, HARRSMMREHEL Scientific research, technical services and geologic perambulation 25,394,824 -
kF, FEBEMAEHEER Water conservancy, environment and public facilities administration 17,500,000 -
ERRS ARSI Resident services and other services 90,260,197 1
&, HemREMESEF L Health, social security and social welfare 1,956,676 -
MAHBEER Consumer credit 3,328,570,070 22
BESRFESR B AR Total amount of loans and advances 15,216,301,896 100

W BEIRKER

BUER RS IKE 1 &

Less: Loan impairment provisions

Net value of loans and advances

(299,663,677)

14,916,638,219
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8.3 LM X 4

8.3 Distribution of loans and advances to customers

by geographical region

31-12-2013 31-12-2012
Fit North-east 938,376,235 690,518,441
3 East 10,818,834,523 7,836,984,229
=14 North 4,144,727,469 3,598,501,599
terh Central 170,716,722 201,972,044
=) South 1,302,130,255 1,284,311,056
[iil2) South-west 1,665,925,097 1,475,103,078
Bl North-west 91,000,000 30,000,000
B Overseas 17,992,692 98,911,449
BIRMB IR RER Total amount of loans and advances 19,149,702,993 15,216,301,896

W BURIRKEE
SRR E ) &

Less: Loan impairment provisions

Net value of loans and advances

(296,413,640)

(299,663,677)

18,853,289,353

14,916,638,219

8.4 HERARA T 8.4 Loans and advances to customers by type of
collateral or guarantee
31-12-2013 31-12-2012
fER%E Unsecured loans 2,026,011,627 1,704,367,276
RIESTRK Guaranteed loans 3,001,376,661 3,698,666,890
MHEGRIISIRK Loans with collateral 13,132,314,705

Hep: 0I5
RN

ek Edst ]

W BURIRKEE

SRR E &

Of which: Secured by mortgages
Secured by pledges

Total amount of loans and advances

Less: Loan impairment provisions

Net value of loans and advances

8,000,826,626

5,131,488,079

9,813,267,730
6,994,812,659

2,818,455,071

19,149,702,993

(296,413,640)

15,216,301,896

(299,663,677)

18,853,289,353

14,916,638,219
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8.5 Overdue loan

8.5 MHAE R

31-12-2013

BHA1RZEQOX EHNXEI1E(R15F) GHP1FEIF(R3F) B 3 E ML &it
Overdue 1day Overdue 91 days to Overdue 1 year to Overdue Total

t0 90 days 1 year (inclusive) 3 years (inclusive) 3 years

above
FRIESTFR Guaranteed loans 2,917,225 6,274,653 - - 9,191,878
HB RIS TR Loan with collaterals 284,443 19,639,969 27,526,536 8,359,685 55,810,633

He: Of which:
HARBERR Secured by mortgages 284,443 19,639,969 27,526,536 8,359,685 55,810,633
& Total 3,201,668 25,914,622 27,526,536 8,359,685 65,002,511
31-12-2012

BWEIREOX BHNXE1E(R1E) BH1EEIE(RIE) HH 3 L E &it
Overdue 1day Overdue 91 days to Overdue 1 year to Overdue Total

to 90 days 1 year (inclusive) 3 years (inclusive) 3 years

above
FRIEEFK Guaranteed loans 685,109 - 10,280,000 - 10,965,109
[GEENESYIEN Loan with collaterals 507,808 30,361,436 - 67,241,033 98,110,277

Hep: Of which:

HRARLEER Secured by mortgages 507,808 30,361,436 - 67,241,033 98,110,277
&it Total 1,192,917 30,361,436 10,280,000 67,241,033 109,075,386
WHAR RIS A S I 25EER 1 R A ERIEIFR. Overdue loans are loans of which the principals or related

interests are overdue for one day or above.
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8.6 FHIRKER (MiEHE. 14) 8.6 Loan impairment provisions (Note 5.14)

2013
BTN HE &it
Individual Collective Total
FENEREG Opening balance 85,139,490 214,524,187 299,663,677
A (8[E) /342 (Reversal)/charge during the year (1,170,262) 57,577,840 56,407,578
AR Write-off for the year (59,021,606) - (59,021,606)
WEIREE S Recovery of loans and advances
previously written-off 2,050,308 - 2,050,308
LEER Exchange rate difference (762,308) (1,924,009) (2,686,317)
EREH Closing balance 26,235,622 270,178,018 296,413,640
2012
BTN HE &it
Individual Collective Total
LR Opening balance 86,734,578 187,821,040 274,555,618
A4 (#E)/3H2  (Reversal)/charge during the year (1,518,353) 26,815,981 25,297,628
CrER Exchange rate difference (76,735) (112,834) (189,569)
EREER Closing balance 85,139,490 214,524,187 299,663,677
9. A HEEREFT 9. Available-for-sale financial assets
31-12-2013 31-12-2012
RFIRE: Bond investments:
HRBITRIBRE R Central bank bills and government bonds 2,073,167,955 2,063,453,050
RITRIM 3 Bonds issued by banks 758,625,980 496,418,450
il iR Corporate bonds 244,576,650 483,686,580
BURMRITR S Bonds issued by policy banks 379,076,090 381,892,230
Nt Sub-total 3,455,446,675 3,425,450,310
FEE LI Rediscounted bills - 74,484,178
&t Total 3,455,446,675 3,499,934,488
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10. EIE&*~

10. Fixed assets

BER EMigE DIYAS Ait
E5H FA i ig &

Properties and Motor vehicles Office equipment Total
2013 buildings and computers
FEf: Cost:
2013181 H At 1 January 2013 4,798,060 1,694,141 70,637,351 77,129,552
ARG Additions - 1,439,277 8,190,010 9,629,287
?ﬁfflf:i;)\ (T,;zrlzfefsr‘ f:(()arg )constructlon in progress ) ] 545,022 st6.00
RELE Disposals - - (1,476,170)  (1,476,170)
2013 12 A 31 H At 31 December 2013 4,798,060 3,133,418 77,695,113 85,626,591
ZHFIR: Accumulated depreciation:
20134%#1H1H At 1 January 2013 1,524,267 976,462 33,218,630 35,714,359
AREIHE Additions 79,954 394,932 11,089,565 12,464,451
FELE Disposals - - (1,228,754)  (1,228,754)
2013412831 B At 31 December 2013 1,604,221 1,371,394 43,974,441 46,950,056
BEE S E: Net book value:
20134 12 A 31 H At 31 December 2013 3,193,839 1,762,024 33,720,672 38,676,535
BEEETHEES: (M3ER. 14) Impairment provision: (Note 5.14)
20134181 HKE2013FE 12831 H At 1 January 2013 and 31 December 2013 692,573 _ _ 692,573
EEEESE: Net carrying amount:
20134 12 B 31 B At 31 December 2013 2,501,266 1,762,024 33,720,672 37,983,962
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BERR EERE DIV Ait
B R RN % &

Properties and Motor vehicles Office equipment Total
2012 buildings and computers
BN Cost or valuation:
20124 1A 1H At 1 January 2012 4,798,060 2,101,544 63,797,704 70,697,308
REEM Additions - 6,987,164 6,987,164
kaféiﬁgiifi)\ ;I":le:)rlzfzr. f1rc§r.r; )construction in progress 7 1,025,243 1,025,243
RELE Disposals (407,408) (1,172,760) (1,580,163)
20125 128 31 H At 31 December 2012 4,798,060 1,694,141 70,637,351 77,129,652
RitirIA: Accumulated depreciation:
2012 1H1H At 1 January 2012 1,444,313 1,045,024 22,509,927 24,999,264
KETR Additions 79,954 338,841 11,740,373 12,159,168
AELE Disposals (407,403) (1,036,670) (1,444,073)
2012 % 12 A 31 H At 31 December 2012 1,624,267 976,462 33,213,630 35,714,359
Bl E &= ME: Net book value:
2012 128381 H At 31 December 2012 3,273,793 717,679 37,423,721 41,415,193
BElEHB~REES: (MEEHE14) Impairment provision: (Note 5.14)
20121 H1HK 201212831 H At 1 January 2012 and 31 December 2012 692,573 - - 692,573
BlE &8 Net carrying amount:
2012 % 12 A 31 H At 31 December 2012 2,681,220 717,679 37,423,721 40,722,620

T 2013412331 H, EREMBNESEERANEELE~BKE

As at 31 December 2013, details of fixed assets which were fully

BT depreciated but still in use are as follows:
BER EWiEE DIYN4 ait
=51k R R i%
Properties and buildings Motor vehicles Office equipment Total
and computers
K E R AE Original cost 625,751 15,883,595 16,509,346

86 | XEHRIT (hE ) HIRAF 2013 FERE



1. TREF~

11. Intangible assets

2013 2012
BHgE Software
R Cost or valuation:
FEHRE Opening balance 86,219,359 62,999,360
AEWE Additions 4,440,321 13,148,375
EEIRREN (MEEHE. 13.2) Transfer from construction in progress (Note 5.13.2) 30,440 10,071,624
RER D Disposal (18,400)
FRKER Closing balance 90,671,720 86,219,359
R1HPEH: Accumulated amortisation:
FEVRE SR Opening balance 21,314,728 13,483,254
REFITR Additions 8,825,769 7,831,474
AELE Disposal (18,400)
FERKE Closing balance 30,122,097 21,314,728
TR &R E R A Net carrying amount:
FERKER Closing balance 60,549,623 64,904,631
12. BEREBE / (fifR) 12. Deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
2013
EMRE REFTABE  AEEBEITA FERRE
ErEENE
Opening balance Credited/ Credited/  Closing balance
(charged) (charged)
BIEATERAES / (5af5D Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) to profit and loss to equity
SRRk & Loan impairment provision 30,750,781 8,535,396 39,286,177
FEREN R EEE Impairment provisions for due from banks 99,524 586,975 686,499
EE B R EEE Fixed asset impairment provision 173,143 173,143
& ZE %P4 1A Depreciation of the fixed asset 146,629 (16,737) 129,892
A RMNETE BETIITAY Unrealised profit or loss on the financial
HIREMN SR AR MIRE assets at fair value through profit or loss (207,053) (2,285,290) (2:492,343)
ITEEMTAARNETHHRE Changes in fair value of derivatives 7,515,829 19,424,071 - 26,939,900
NG FERA RN ETR) Changes in fair value of structured deposits
embedded with options (2,692,171) 1,290,792 - (1,301,379)
FERIFIR Non-accrued interest 2,972,210 - 2,972,210
SEBSR Operating lease 239,680 20,692 - 260,372
MRRTITARRE Payroll payable 11,029,315 5,266,144 - 16,295,459
&it Total 48,663,293 32,822,043 10,212,007 91,697,343
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2012

ERRE AETNRZE  REEETA ERRE
FBEENE
Opening balance Credited/ Credited/  Closing balance
(charged) (charged)
BBIEFTISTEE / (fafk) Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) to profit and loss to equity
RIS Loan impairment provision 24,879,449 5,871,332 30,750,781
ERENREEE Impairment provisions for due from banks 244,900 (145,376) 99,524
Bl # = REES Fixed asset impairment provision 173,143 173,143
EE &~ 1A Depreciation of the fixed asset 147,136 (507) 146,629
AN ETEBRTERNIT A Unrealised profit or loss on the financial
MBS RA PR SIIRE assets at fair value through profit or loss (1,321,351) 1,114,298 (207,053)
A E SR B AR S IR & Unrealised profit or loss on the available-
for-sale financial assets (90,657) (1,373,937) (1,464,504)
TEEMI AN RNETHIRG Changes in fair value of derivatives 17,862,494 (10,346,665) 7,515,829
BN GEH R ER A RNETE) Changes in fair value of structured
deposits embedded with options (1,616,949) (975,222) (2,592,171)
FERITFIR Non-accrued interest 2,993,932 (21,722 2,972,210
ZEMEE Operating lease 218,988 20,692 239,680
MR TTIARE S Payroll payable 9,498,958 1,530,357 11,029,315
Ait Total 52,990,043 (2,952,813) (1,373,937) 48,663,293
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13. Hih =

13. Other assets

Bt iE
Note 31-12-2013 31-12-2012

mER Precious metal 53,375,200
KHAREREZR Long-term deferred expenses 13.1 46,886,081 47,508,329
ERTE Construction in process 13.2 17,908,235 1,529,148
At RUKER Other receivables 13.3 474,659,292 474,528,904
Hity Others 3,780
&5 Total 539,457,388 576,941,581
13.1 K EAtSESE A 13.1 Long-term deferred expenses

SR#E HAEER BRI H HE#HR &it
2018 Membership fee Leasehold improvement Rental fee Total
EHRE Opening balance 144,690 43,870,871 3,492,768 47,508,329
REHEM Additions - 11,585,109 - 11,585,109
I e e
R Amortisation (14,850) (12,867,827) (198,641) (13,081,318)
FERFH Closing balance 129,840 43,462,114 3,294,127 46,886,081

SR%E HEAEER BRI H HEH &it
e Membership fee Leasehold improvement Rental fee Total
EERE Opening balance 155,446 39,917,294 3,691,409 43,764,149
AREEH Additions 5,698,356 - 5,698,356
KREEZTIREN (MEEH. Transfer from construction in . 9,520,840 - 9,520,840
13.2) progress (Note 5.13.2)
AR Amortisation (10,756) (11,265,619) (198,641) (11,475,016)
FRKER Closing balance 144,690 43,870,871 3,492,768 47,508,329
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132 I

13.2 Construction in progress

2013 2012
FNRE Opening balance 1,529,148 20,563,350
ZREEHm Additions 17,627,410 1,683,505
BABREES (MEER. 100 Transfer to fixed assets (Note 5. 10) (343,922 (1,025,243)
BANLRES (BMEE. 1) Transfer to intangible assets (Note 5. 11) (30,440) (10,071,624)
EAKHEMER (MEER. 13.1) Transfer to long-term deferred expenses (Note 5. 13.1) (873,961) (9,520,840)
FERAE Net closing balance 17,908,235 1,529,148
13.3 H{th flgk 13.3 Other receivables
it Ageing 31-12-2013 31-12-2012
1 &R Within 1 year 29,976,748 458,072,172
1-2 £ 1-2 years 432,137,378 2,503,713
2-3fF 2-3 years 2,365,197 11,272,074
3FEE More than 3 years 10,179,969 2,680,945
&it Total 474,659,292 474,528,904

Hit MWK P EETRITINAWH A AR ZEEAARD

430,000,000 7t

RITEEREHX A YRR R ESRE T, IAALHE IR

BEREEE.
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The other receivable contains down payment of RMB
430,000,000 for the purchase of the Bank’s new office building.

The management of the Bank has assessed the recoverability
of other receivables on a regular basis and considered that no
bad debts provision is needed to be made for the balance as

at 31 December 2013.



14. EFER{EES

14. Provision for impairment losses

EVIRE AREITR/ (HEE) @ EEZH B AET CRER FERRE
2013 Opening balance Accrual/reversal Write off ekl Exchange  Closing balance
Recovery of rate
assets prgwously difference
written-off
FHE R EEZ Impairment provisions for due
(MER. 2) from banks (Note 5. 2) 398,098 2,347,897 - - - 2,745,995
e 33 Provision for loans
(MEEE. 8.6) (Note 5. 8.6) 299,663,677 56,407,578  (59,021,606) 2,050,308 (2,686,317) 296,413,640
Bl E &~ BEE#E Provision for fixed assets . .
(B, 10) (Note 5. 10) 692,573 ’ ; 692,573
At Total 300,754,348 58,755,475 (59,021,606) 2,050,308 (2,686,317) 299,852,208
EMRT AEIHR/ ($#E ) ] REZHH Y [Bl AT LERER ERRR
2012 Opening balance Accrual/reversal Write off R Exchange  Closing balance
Recovery of rate
assets prtlawously difference
written-off
FHE LR EE® Impairment provisions for due i
(HHER. 2) from banks (Note 5. 2) 979,602 (681,504) i - 398,098
e ChEN 37 Provision for loans
(M:EE, 8.6) (Note 5. 8.6) 274,555,618 25,297,628 - - (189,569) 299,663,677
EZ %= REE® Provision for fixed assets i ) )
(HEEE. 10) (Note 5. 10) 692,573 ’ 692,573
ait Total 276,227,793 24,716,124 - - (189,569) 300,754,348

15. [k & H th & R IR

15. Due to banks and other financial institutions

31-12-2013 31-12-2012
BRRITRINL R E i &R R Due to domestic banks and other financial institutions 7,696 2,113,389
BIMRITRIL Due to foreign banks 220,191,326 215,748,392
&it Total 220,199,022 217,861,781
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16. EARENETE

16. Placements from banks and other financial

institutions
31-12-2013 31-12-2012
BRRITRIN RN REN Placements from domestic banks 150,000,000
BESMRITRMARA RN Placements from foreign banks 6,920,961,913 5,550,255,538
At Total 6,920,961,913 5,700,255,538
17. RUEHER 17. Customer deposits
31-12-2013 31-12-2012
JEHAER Current deposits:
ARIER Corporate customers 3,204,376,000 2,208,985,314
MPAER Individual customers 362,061,328 430,819,405
NE Sub-total 3,566,437,328 2,639,804,719
EEREK Time deposits:
ACESS Corporate customers 21,367,598,597 16,769,410,589
NS Individual customers 4,125,924,628 4,635,475,121
N7y Sub-total 25,498,623,225 21,304,885,710
&it Total 29,059,960,553 283,944,690,429

MK ERPEASHNEHEERST I ARM 11,438,468,055 7T

(2012-12-31: AR 8,805,308,783 7t) , EFiH A\ THTE4E
TE, TEAHN. BREMREUEHEESNEENERS. &£
FiRgEHMESTR, ART 6,667,246,844 5T (2012-12-31: AR
M 6,017,714,896 7T) FAk ARIFTEEM T EWINENEEXERE
BEYBR, EHhARM 2,537,777,092 JTTHIE MM E R E K15
EUARMNETE, FEART 4,129,469,752 FTARMIEE, Al
ABEEPHBARGTESRTIAESERS K, HARNMESITA
TESMIAELTH.
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Customer deposits include structured deposits amounting
to RMB11,438,468,055 (RMB 8,805,308,783 as at 31
December 2012). These structured deposits are embedded
with derivatives which are mainly options, equity swaps and
commodity swaps. RMB 6,667,246,844 (RMB 6,017,714,896
as at 31 December 2012) of those deposits are embedded with
derivatives which are considered not closely related to the host
contract, of which deposits amounting to RMB 2,537,777,092
are designated at fair value through profit or loss as a whole
while the rest are not designated. Consequently, the derivatives
instruments embedded therein are separated and the fair value
is recorded in derivative assets or liabilities.



18. R {4 BR T

18. Payroll payables

31-12-2013 31-12-2012
T5. £&. EWEAAE Salary, bonus, subsidy and allowance 59,159,333 40,354,600
HeREBEREBARE Social insurance and Housing Fund 5,985,881 3,314,109
TLEHRNRNIHELR Labour union expenditure and staff education fee 36,624 448,553
At Total 65,181,838 44,117,262
19. 3% 19. Tax payable

31-12-2013 31-12-2012
Enlle B R Bt in Business tax and surcharges 18,299,695 15,426,698
el RS Corporate income tax 42,290,108 1,604,190
Hitr Others 28,806,583 24,039,264
Ait Total 89,396,386 41,070,152

BT EERBURAREI RN T

Bl - IFUINEY 5% THEEL
fl S F - 1R#E2008 £ 1 B 1 HiE2hiTHy (Lol

FRigRiiE) , ol FriSHi e 2008 Fi
R TR ISERRY 25% T4, BITAR
RSl S5 Er IS #2159 25%,
BITXHHRERNTFE, RBITERRUE
RINHAD ANFRIEHL

RINHAD AFRSH

The major categories of tax applicable to the Bank and the
respective tax rates for the current financial year are as
follows:

Business tax - The Bank is subjected to a
business tax rate of five per cent.
Corporate incometax - In accordance with the PRC

Enterprise Income Taxation Law,
which has been implemented since
1st January 2008, both domestic
and foreign enterprises are
subjected to a corporate tax rate of
25 per cent. The corporate income
tax rate adopted by the Bank for its
RMB and foreign currency business
has been amended to 25 per cent
since 1 January 2008.

Withholding Individual - In accordance with the relevant

Income tax tax laws in the PRC, the Bank is
required to withhold individual
income tax on salaries paid to its
employees.
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20. R {F1 8

20. Interest payables

31-12-2013 31-12-2012
FREATFIR Interest payable to customer deposits 405,943,975 374,982,861
[l R4+ ) B R E A Interest payable to banks 3,790,901 2,348,222
ait Total 409,734,876 377,331,083
21. Hihfa i 21. Other liabilities
31-12-2013 31-12-2012
HEEREEM Settlement and clearing 12,180,264 25,688,691
FIft 1T RGHRS5 % IT system service fee 22,876,557 18,419,318
Hth Others 28,489,156 26,787,255
ait Total 63,545,977 70,895,264

22. TPHE 22, Paid-up capital

2013412 431 HR 2012412 A31 A
31-12-2013 and 31-12-2012

ZEART %
RMB equivalent %
KERITHRAA United Overseas Bank Limited 3,000,000,000 100
LIRS EARC RSN ESREIE, FHEETIRERS. HbhA%E  The paid-up capital was verified by the Certified Public

R
17

94

ITIMEHmNITHFEART 1,198,580,917.65 jt, HEFREXSTRX
EERERETRSHRAITENAZEART1,801,419,082.357T,

| KEERTT (hE ) HRAF 2013 FERE

Accountants with capital verification report issued. RMB
equivalent amounting to 1,198,580,917.65 was injected
by UOB, in form of cash, and the remaining balance was
transferred from operating capital of Former PRC Branches.



23. FHAH

23. Capital reserves

31-12-2013 31-12-2012

AHEESMBE~ARNETS Fair value changes of available-for-sale financial assets (34,989,652) 5,858,378

FrigfiaZnm Income tax impact recognised directly in equity 8,747,413 (1,464,594)

Aait Total (26,242,239) 4,393,784
24. BRNAMR 24. Surplus reserves

EIRE AR N AERF D ERREH

Opening balance Increase Decrease Closing balance

FEEBRRAR Statutory surplus reserve 48,126,669 12,734,526 - 60,861,195

RIFBATEMBITERNNE, HE20144£3 56 HEESRIY,
FATIRFEM 10% RECEAEB A A E. ZAEBEALFHETH
HBITEME A 50% ALY, ATAREIEEL.

BITERBZERF ARNER, TRIEERKLRE. SHE,

EERRARETMTRMABEETRBILMRA . RBRITE
SR, AFETEREERFLRE.

25. —fR KBS HE &

According to the Company Law of the People's Republic of
China and the Bank’s Articles of Association, accompanied
with resolution passed by the board of directors on 6 March
2014, the Bank has appropriated 10 per cent of its profit to
the statutory surplus reserves. The Bank should appropriate
until the reserve balance reaches 50 per cent of its registered
capital or above.

After the statutory surplus reserves are appropriated, the
Bank may appropriate discretionary surplus reserves.
Discretionary surplus reserves can be used to compensate
for the accumulated losses of previous years or convert
to capital upon approval. It has been determined by the
Board of Directors of the Bank that no discretionary surplus
reserves are to be appropriated this year.

25. General reserves

EXRE AN AERF D ERFH
Opening balance Increase Decrease Closing balance
— ARG General reserves 430,856,697 62,022,934 - 492,879,631

HATIREEM £ [2012] 20 S (ERIEZSSIHETEME)
RIME, MEEFERZEN ERMETF X E AR/ 1.5%
et — M X &, EAFIESEALIE. HRITRIE 2014 45
3A6 HMEEZES R, EE—HEXNKESZIT ART 62,022,934
7. F2013F 12 31 H, HITH—MBAEEZRFAARST
492,879,631 7T.

According to the regulation Caidin [2012] No. 20 “Financial
institution provision measurement Guideline”, the Bank is
required to set aside general reserves of at least 1.5% of its
total risk assets at year end from net profit. In accordance of
the Board of Directors resolution on 6 March 2014, general
reserves amounting to RMB 62,022,934 was appropriated.
As at 31 December 2013, total general reserves of the Bank
is RMB 492,879,631.
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26. X ELFIE

26. Retained earnings

2013 2012
RS EFE Retained earnings brought forward 293,038,093 226,158,376
B F5E Net profit for the year 127,345,264 214,587,727
A BEEEERSAR Less: Appropriation to statutory surplus reserves 12,734,526 21,458,773
e EE—AR RS Less: Appropriation to general reserves 62,022,934 126,249,237
FERFKDEFE Closing balance of retained earnings 345,625,897 293,038,093

RE (FEARKMEARE) RETHLRER, BITFIHEE (1
WEMAMSHME; () RMUFIFETHR; Q) REUAERRAR
&; (4 RE—MAEESE; 6) RIEERKARNEE, ATFE
SEERIELRE. —RAEERERESHIRILLOEREE
KEMPETRT, ARITEEIRE.

DEFANRERRITESFIRE, HEZTETER. USHKAK
HitAXMREETEE.

27. FIRHHEAN

According to the Company Law of the People's Republic of
China and the Articles of Association of the Bank, the profit
of the Bank can only be distributed to shareholders after
(1) fulfilling all tax responsibilities; (2) compensating any
accumulated losses; (3) making appropriation to statutory
surplus reserves; (4) making appropriation to the general
reserves; (5) making appropriation to discretionary surplus
reserves. The appropriation ratios of the general reserves
and surplus reserves are decided by the Bank's Board of
Directors in compliance with relevant regulations.

The profit appropriation is decided by the Board of Directors

of the Bank, with reference to the operating performance,
financial positions, and other relevant factors.

27. Net interest income

2013 2012
FIRUIN - Interest income:
FERUENL Due from banks 246,465,645 283,380,689
FRRRRIT Due from the central bank 71,934,511 64,874,898
AR Loans and advances to customers 977,040,598 878,660,573
EINBEES Reverse repurchase financial assets-bonds 79,454,346 10,465,899
wHEAE R EM Placement with banks and other financial institutions and others 131,624,052 129,918,562
Nt Sub-total 1,506,519,152 1,367,300,621
FIRZH: Interest expense:
[l B EAth & AL A TE AL Due to banks and other financial institutions 36,423,699 31,470,287
UL E 55 Customer deposits 607,363,709 604,474,489
/ANEE R EHAM Placement from banks and other financial institutions and others 54,520,221 105,700,981
N Sub-total 698,307,629 741,645,757
IS PN Net interest income 808,211,523 625,654,864
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28. FEBRASHUAN

28. Net fees and commission income

2013 2012
FEHERBEEN: Fees and commission income:
FES5BERFEH Settlement and clearing fees 36,208,260 16,672,552
KIB S F L2 Agency brokerage fees 6,824,418 6,903,239
EREREFERAE Credit commitment fees 6,566,926 4,285,370
S5REAXEAN Credit related income 59,768,742 31,163,004
Hith Others 15,790,411 7,556,342
Nt Sub-total 125,168,757 66,580,507
FEHERPBEZE: Fees and commission expense:
FEHBTY Fee expenses 14,499,593 9,841,087
Mt Sub-total 14,499,593 9,841,087
FHBRBEFEN Net fees and commission income 110,659,164 56,739,420
29. ¥ W 29. Investment income

2013 2012
RS TIEENESR BBk Loss on disposal of held-for-trading bond investments (23,858,936) (1,166,816)
EEUALNETEEETHITALER  Gain on financial assets designated at fair value through
HHSRA R BRI profit or loss 22,898,300 -
A ERHR AL E R Gain on disposal of available-for-sale bond investments 4,572,121 3,972,227
BRI F BN Bond interest income 143,444,008 216,533,387
At Total 147,055,493 219,338,798
30. ARMETHSE (RK)/ WiE 30. (Losses)/gains from changes in fair values

2013 2012
A RNETERERET Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 9,215,872 (4,531,903)
TEEmMTAE Derivative financial instruments (77,696,288) 45,287,551
Hit Others (6,140,357) 65,258
At Total (74,620,773) 40,820,906
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3. W HEREBRE

31. General and administrative expenses

2013 2012

RITHEM: Staff costs:
IERRE Salaries and bonuses 314,292,153 251,094,026
EFEFIERRITR Defined contribution schemes 51,899,868 44,798,215
HiIR T 2A Other employee benefits 20,910,002 19,041,679
Nt Sub-total 387,102,023 314,933,920
EilIEES Depreciation 12,464,451 12,159,168
FrEpEH R Amortisation 21,907,087 19,306,490
RNE2 =] Other operating expenses 173,619,024 156,316,917
&1t Total 595,092,585 502,716,495
32. BFER{ER K 32. Impairment losses

2013 2012
FRE R ARk Impairment losses for due from banks 2,347,897 (581,504)
[ZENEAIERES Impairment losses for loans 56,407 578 25297628
it Total 58,755,475 24,716,124
33. BN 33. Non-operating income

2013 2012
B A=A BEFIE Gain from the disposal of fixed assets 1,192 55,000
T BN IEHEN Fiscal subsidy 10,098,612 1,561,000
Hit Others 282,526 3,522,596
At Total 10,382,330 5,138,596
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34. EdbShH

34. Non-operating expenses

2013 2012
EE & Bk Losses on the disposal of fixed assets 247,416 136,103
Hit Others 206,377 435,923
At Total 453,793 572,026
35. fEHi&ER 35. Income tax expenses

2013 2012
WHARREF1 Income tax expenses for the current year 73,552,356 66,318,100
ST AT HAIE) 2 AR T R R Adjustment in respect of prior periods (92,076) 2,929,329
BIEFTSH Deferred income tax expenses (32,822,043) 2,952,813
Ait Total 40,638,237 72,200,242

RSB M S FES X RIIRIT:

The reconciliation of income tax expenses to profit before tax

is as follows:

2013 2012
FETRE Profit before tax 167,983,501 286,787,969
REERE 25% T E RN Tax charge on a tax rate at 25% 41,995,875 71,696,992
S AT HA 8] 2 AR T Y R Adjustment in respect of prior periods (92,076) 2,929,329
EX SRS ON Interest income of government bonds (3,157,490) (2,060,782)
FEHRNH0RIR 28 B Non-deductible items 766,928 759,703
T AR CARTAE BE SR B A B 5 B4 2= R 0§20 Utilisation of unrecognised deductible deferred tax impact 1,125,000
REARI TR NS B 2 2 A0 S200 Unrecognised deductible deferred tax impact (1,125,000)
FriSHi Income tax expenses 40,638,237 72,200,242
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36. HinZauis

36. Other comprehensive income

2013 2012
AT E SR B~ A R NETE) Net change in the fair value of available-for-sale financial assets (40,848,030) 5,495,747
Fri5Hiznm Income tax impact recognised directly in equity 10,212,007 (1,373,937)
At Total (30,636,023) 4,121,810

3. MEFEXRNMREAH 37. Supplementary information for

the statement of cash flows
2013 2012
1. ¥EFEES AKEESNIERE: 1. Reconciliation of net profit to cash flows from operating activities:

AR5 Net profit 127,345,264 214,587,727
BFERERK Impairment losses 58,755,475 24,716,124
BE &~ Fixed assets depreciation 12,464,451 12,159,168
P T 43 Amortisation expenses for intangible assets 8,825,769 7,831,474
KHARE 2 A D5 Amortisation for long term deferred expenses 13,081,318 11,475,016
KB EE R / B KEE =k Losses on disposal of fixed assets and other long-term assets 246,224 81,103
NRNETRNEHK / (&) Losses/(gains) from changes in fair value 74,620,773 (40,820,906)

FEHREF BB RRE W
LRk

BIE AT SRR

SEMRYRE M (10 )/ md>
ZEMMMTREEM /(RL)

Interest received from bond investments and investment income
Foreign exchange losses

Changes in deferred tax assets/liabilities

(Increase)/decrease in operating receivables

Increase/(decrease) in operating payables

(163,324,694)
50,672,202
(32,822,043)
(5,229,562,460)

6,441,386,395

(225,942,351)
39,015,303
2,952,813
751,261,996

(967,595,556)

SEFENENRERE RN

Net cash flows from operating activities

1,361,688,674

(170,278,089)

N

MENFRRE

B MEMNFERET

m: REFNMHERRE
A NEFNMNFNRET

ReERREFNELNER: 2.

Net change in cash and cash equivalents:
Cash on hand at end of year

Less: Cash on hand at beginning of year
Add: Cash equivalents at end of year

Less: Cash equivalents at beginning of year

15,018,187
14,334,388
7,223,472,940

6,122,253,299

14,334,388
8,256,622
6,122,253,299

3,343,469,111

e RMEFNWFEMER

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

1,101,903,440

2,784,861,954
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38. MERIMEFMY

38. Cash and cash equivalent

31-12-2013 31-12-2012
ne Cash 15,018,187 14,334,388
NeFNY: Cash equivalent:
FEABRAE=A LA/ With original maturity less than three months
- TFRENL IR -Due from banks 3,862,723,727 3,922,154,885
-REEE -Placements with banks and other financial institutions 847,469,410 1,442,149,168
- ENBRE SR~ -Reverse repurchase financial assets 1,366,530,000 -
TR IARITE AR IR Other deposits with the central bank-general deposit reserve 1,146,749,803 757,949,246
NF Sub-total 7,223,472,940 6,122,253,299
&it Total 7,238,491,127 6,136,587,687
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7. SEBRE

1. S8 E. BrERGSE
HRITRBARTSMDUSSBHTHEEE, X TARABBEA
WEmHEdlZRERE. HAFEAAMNITAITSARTL
5% MTAATRABBALSHHEL EERRRBYFARTLS
A Al F B REABNEES], BEEARTL SV SRR
Bl S & ARTMMSMEREHT M. FEWARZHM
EERISHDHEINSHITAERBOMSZRE. RITRARD
sk 55 53 B SR B SR T AT

(1) Segment information

1. Segment profit and loss, assets and liabilities

The Bank monitors its daily business operation according
to RMB business and foreign currency business separately.
Operating expenses and depreciation charge etc., which
are directly attributed to such business are allocated to
that business directly. Common operating expenses, are
allocated between the RMB book and foreign currency
book in accordance with the proportion of total interest
income. Interest income and interest expense are recorded
separately in accordance to the currency. Segment
information of the Bank’s RMB business and foreign
currency business is as follows:

31-12-2013
AR S Sl % Ait
RMB Foreign currency Total
business business

&'r Assets
M & RAFR P RRI TR Cash and balances with the central bank 5,991,674,796 67,779,765 6,059,454,561
TEREL XI5 Due from banks 2,319,037,750 1,540,939,982 3,859,977,732
RHES Placements with financial institutions 1,600,000,000 748,429,530 2,348,429,530
;égggﬁfgfﬁﬂﬁibﬁ)\ﬁﬁﬁ Zirnlizzial assets at fair value through profit 971,568,210 ) 971,568,210
T ERE Derivative financial assets 621,188,048 541,359,621 1,162,547,669
INBEEERE~ Reverse repurchase financial assets 4,322,810,000 - 4,322,810,000
ISlveiis) Interest receivables 192,300,595 16,899,676 209,200,271
& ESRFER Loans and advances to customers 14,919,999,313 3,933,290,040 18,853,289,353
A ESRE~ Available-for-sale financial assets 3,455,446,675 - 3,455,446,675
BElE %= Fixed assets 37,983,962 37,983,962
TR B Intangible assets 60,549,623 60,549,623
BT FTSRL T Deferred tax assets 29,599,179 62,098,164 91,697,343
HihE~ Other assets 36,199,198 503,258,190 539,457,388
EERIT Total assets 34,459,823,764 7,5612,588,553 41,972,412,317
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31-12-2013

ARTLE Sl & &it
RMB Foreign currency Total
business business
fafx Liabilities
Il & H tth & BAHL A7 LRI Due to banks and other financial institutions 170,012,303 50,186,719 220,199,022
WANES Plagerrjents from banks and other financial ) 6.920,961.913 6.920.961,913
institutions
T ERARE Derivative financial liabilities 629,573,348 640,733,920 1,270,307,268
U EEE N Customer deposits 27,201,457,509 1,858,503,044 29,059,960,553
SLAFER T #rEM Payroll payables - 65,181,838 65,181,838
VB Tax payables 41,804,609 47,591,777 89,396,386
RATFIR Interest payables 402,854,412 6,880,464 400,734,876
HAthafix Other liabilities 2,378,260,612 (2,314,714,635) 63,545,977
sy Total liabilities 30,823,962,793 7,275,325,040 38,099,287,833
FEENE Equity
ST A Paid-up capital 3,000,000,000 - 3,000,000,000
BEAR Capital reserves (26,242,239) - (26,242,239)
BENR Surplus reserves 46,731,604 14,129,591 60,861,195
—RR XU General reserves 391,283,038 101,596,593 492,879,631
RABLFIN Retained earnings 224,088,568 121,537,329 345,625,897
FrEEMEAT Total equity 3,635,860,971 237,263,513 3,873,124,484
R EENEAT Total liabilities and equity 34,459,823,764 7,512,588,553 41,972,412,317
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31-12-2012

ARMALSE bl g &it
RMB Foreign currency Total
business business
&'BF Assets
M& R ER P RIRI TR Cash and balances with the central bank 4,780,986,103 87,934,850 4,868,920,953
FRELLFRI Due from banks 5,544,965,490 370,356,297 5,915,321,787
it Placements with financial institutions 2,265,717,316 1,192,523,363 3,458,240,679

AR N ETE B H TR LR
HAIERBE™

LT SR EE
RF2
RIEGRFNEGTR
A E SR
BlE#E~
TR~

BRI PTG R B
Hithgsr=
BRI

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

Derivative financial assets

Interest receivables

Loans and advances to customers
Available-for-sale financial assets
Fixed assets

Intangible assets

Deferred tax assets

Other assets

Total assets

633,769,055

136,621,155
166,611,119
11,609,729,217

3,499,934,488

18,107,895

(2,692,778,036)

243,941,039
22,031,637
3,406,909,002
40,722,620
64,904,631
30,555,398

3,269,719,617

633,769,055

380,562,194
178,642,756
14,916,638,219
3,499,934,488
40,722,620
64,904,631
48,663,293

576,941,581

25,858,663,802

8,729,598,454

34,583,262,256
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31-12-2012

ARM S Shll £ Ait
RMB Foreign currency Total
business business

& Liabilities

5] 3lle B2 LAtk & RRHLAD LRI Due to banks and other financial institutions 166,212,388 51,649,393 217,861,781
FNES _Plaqerrjents from banks and other financial 150,000,000 5.550,255,538 5,700.256,538

institutions

T &R R Derivative financial liabilities 133,126,996 277,498,508 410,625,504
STIEEEN Customer deposits 22,409,108,028 1,535,582,401 23,944,690,429
2+ R T 38 Payroll payables - 44,117,262 44,117,262
R Tax payables 20,470,393 11,599,759 41,070,152
RAFFIR Interest payables 365,098,417 12,232,666 377,331,083
Hie s Other liabilities 2,279,107 68,616,157 70,895,264
ffRit Total liabilities 23,255,295,329 7,561,551,684 30,806,847,013
P& Equity

SER Paid-up capital 2,162,051,270 837,948,730 3,000,000,000
BALNH Capital reserves 4,393,784 - 4,393,784
BEAR Surplus reserves 23,718,625 24,413,044 48,126,669
— AR & General reserves 347,994,660 82,862,037 430,856,697
ROELFE Retained earnings 60,215,134 232,822,959 293,038,093
FrAENE AT Total equity 2,598,368,473 1,178,046,770 3,776,415,243
AREREENEAT Total liabilities and equity 25,853,663,802 8,729,598,454 34,583,262,256
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2013

ARMWLSE A% &it
RMB Foreign currency Total
business business
— BN 1. Operating income
EISU O Interest income 1,387,030,798 119,488,354 1,506,519,152
FEXH Interest expense (640,372,606) (57,935,023) (698,307,629)
FIRABIN Net interest income 746,658,192 61,553,331 808,211,523
FERRMEBN Fee and commission income 76,611,352 48,547,405 125,158,757
FEBERAETH Fee and commission expense (11,429,595) (3,069,998) (14,499,593)
FEHRRBEBBEN Net fee and commission income 65,181,757 45,477,407 110,659,164
AW Investment income 147,055,493 - 147,055,493
RRMEERREE / (H6K) Gains/(losses) on changes in fair value 18,334,831 (92,955,604) (74,620,773)
SCR RS ER e / (1) Foreign exchange gains/(losses) 893,400 (51,565,602) (50,672,202)
HAbdl FZWN /() Other operating income/(expenses) 51,378,704 (115,182,794) (63,804,090)
BN & Total operating income 1,029,502,377 (152,673,262) 876,829,115
= Bl 2. Operating expenses
Bl & R Business tax and surcharges (64,224,852) (10,701,239) (64,926,091)
W R ER General and administrative expenses (593,591,791 (1,500,794) (695,092,585)
EERERK Impairment losses (59,527,511) 772,036 (58,755,475)
Bl AT Total operating expenses (707,344,154) (11,429,997) (718,774,151)
=, BUFE/ (S 3. Operating profit/(loss) 322,158,223 (164,103,259) 158,054,964
iTER= 3 27N ON Add: Non-operating income 436 10,381,894 10,382,330
e Bl Less: Non-operating expenses (365,413) (88,380) (453,7993)
M, FiE/(Ti) 2% 4. Profit/(loss) before tax 321,793,246 (153,809,745) 167,983,501
W FrigRis A Less: Income tax expense (91,618,455) 50,975,218 (40,638,237)
., RFIE/(SH) 5. Net profit/(loss) 230,179,791 (102,834,527) 127,345,264
Ny Hftimalia 6. Other comprehensive income (30,636,023) - (30,636,023)
. GAWERE 7. Total comprehensive income 199,543,768 (102,834,527) 96,709,241
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2012

ARMAE Sk % Ait
RMB Foreign currency Total
business business
—. Bl 1. Operating income
FI2HBN Interest income 1,137,758,903 229,541,718 1,367,300,621
FIEZH Interest expense (668,716,063) (72,929,694) (741,645,757)
F 2N Net interest income 469,042,840 156,612,024 625,654,864
FHEBERBEYN Fee and commission income 38,685,572 27,894,935 66,580,507
FERRMAEZE Fee and commission expense (7,823,643 (2,017,444) (9,841,087)
FUBRBEEUN Net fee and commission income 30,861,929 25,877,491 56,739,420
BARWE Investment income 218,909,052 429,746 219,338,798
A RMET RS E Gains on changes in fair value 2,673,321 38,147,585 40,820,906
SCRBUL R iRk Foreign exchange losses - (39,015,303) (39,015,303)
Hepll F3 Other operating expense (957,546) (31,978,325) (32,935,871)
I ON-—g7 Total operating income 720,529,596 150,073,218 870,602,814
Z. Bl 2. Operating expenses
B & KM Business tax and surcharges (50,860,302) (10,088,494) (60,948,796)
WK R EEE General and administrative expenses (430,865,402) (71,851,093) (502,716,495)
BRI L Impairment losses (37,207,344) 12,491,220 (24,716,124)
Bl X HET Total operating expenses (518,933,048 (69,448,367) (688,381,415
=, BALFGE 3. Operating profit 201,596,548 80,624,851 282,221,399
mme BN Add: Non-operating income - 5,138,696 5,138,596
e BT Less: Non-operating expenses (226,839) (345,187) (672,026)
M. FE2E 4. Profit before tax 201,369,709 85,418,260 286,787,969
e PSR Less: Income tax expense (47,978,092) (24,222,150) (72,200,242)
. EFE 5. Net profit 153,391,617 61,196,110 214,587,727
7~ Bfralss 6. Other comprehensive income 4,121,810 - 4,121,810
. GREWEDE 7. Total comprehensive income 157,513,427 61,196,110 218,709,537
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2. Hi5 8

(1) #ALSFRIS5 ISP E BN

2. Other information

(1) Operating income by segment

2013 2012
WAL EER S & Wholesale banking 342,329,276 232,828,208
& 555 SRl % Global market and investment management 330,508,652 548,869,903
FEAF Retail 201,984,324 93,695,791
Hith Others 2,006,863 (4,791,088)
SINEWIIN AT Total 876,829,115 870,602,814

(2) HIBER
SHHNEWFN R IZBE PR A EMOEEHNMERS X, &
TIERA R XIIRE A XIS INENBAE R T :

(2) Operating income by geography
Operating income is distributed to respective countries and
regions by their geography locations, shown as follows:

FHSNE LN
Operating income

2013 2012

ER Domestic 703,837,491 805,245,052
B4 Overseas 172,991,624 65,357,762
At Total 876,829,115 870,602,814

THEEAGRERR, BRITREETEREMIEREZE~.

The Bank does not have any non-current asset held outside Mainland China as at the balance sheet date.

(3) XEEEPER
HITRBETERTARREAPFEBRANAIART 12427 (2012
FE: ARM 15127 , AFRITEFFIZBAR 12% (2012 £
17%) .
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(3) Major customers information

Interest income of the Bank amounting to RMB 120 million
comes from top 10 largest loan customers (2012: RMB 150
million), which contributed 12 per cent of the total interest
income for the year (2012: 17 per cent).



. RERHFHRE

(7) Commitments and contingent liabilities

1. MF&iE 1. Commitments
BRI HRIE Capital commitments

31-12-2013 31-12-2012
EHEEREY Approved but not contracted 48,000
BELERKT Contracted but not provided for 1,644,902,060 1,640,000,000
ait Total 1,644,950,060 1,640,000,000
ZEMHHEERIE Operating lease commitments

BRITEAZRBRFSHEAET T EEMEENTTHEEENAE
AR TEE~AGRRE, RITARUATHEFTHHHRIEEEA:

The Bank leases certain premises under operating lease
arrangements. The total future minimum payments in respect

of non-cancellable operating leases at the balance sheet date

are as follows:

31-12-2013 31-12-2012
—FRUA (F—F) Within 1 year 129,968,976 65,775,488
—FEUAEZEUA (E2F) 110 2 years 55,491,339 25,390,161
ZEMEZENRN (B=F) 2to 3 years 24,296,546 19,569,700
=FEME After 3 years 11,420,102 10,678,052
Ait Total 221,176,963 121,413,401
2. FH&iIE 2. Credit commitments

31-12-2013 31-12-2012
W &BRER: Financial guarantee contracts:
RATERRLE Bank’s acceptance 195,521,829 137,742,573
1R ERERIR Letter of guarantee 142,535,971 90,208,877
&RERIT Standby letter of credit 1,516,058,972 1,181,913,351
FHERIE Letter of credit issued 5,301,912,342 2,349,762,969
Nt Sub-total 7,156,029,114 3,709,627,770
TR SR SETRR A : Irrevocable loan commitments with original maturity of:
BERHAE 1 EUR Less than one year 5,130,195 11,627,303
FEEHARE 1 FltE More than one year 110,695,078 228,697,615
IE Sub-total 115,825,273 240,324,918
Ait Total 7,271,854,387 3,949,952,688
(EREIENERRNE M S : Weighted credit risk of credit commitments: 342,124,104 387,510,690

MEERERAEFERER, —BEEPRBRESZHEAZITNER
BEGESRBITAEXEH, RITREBITEERE.

Financial guarantee contracts, with the nature of guarantee,
require the Bank to be obliged to fulfill the customers’

responsibility as guarantor in case that the customers fail to
repay the contracted amount or fail to fulfill their obligations.
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Loan commitments represent the commitment made by the
Bank to its customer to grant a certain amount of loan in the
future. Loan commitments are normally attached with an
effective date or termination clause, and it is possible that the
Bank may not need to fulfill such commitment on the maturity
date. Hence, the amount of the loan commitments does not
necessarily represent the future expected cash outflow.

3. ZHEAF 3. Entrusted business

31-12-2013 31-12-2012
ZR%ES Entrusted deposits 201,241,563 440,625,898
B4 e Entrusted loans 201,241,563 440,625,898
EEEWEE Entrusted funds 492,870,285 113,797,494
ERIEM A Entrusted assets 492,870,285 113,797,494

ERASEREREFETRITORY, RATEAERERENE=S
AWM. SR ERNE RS TIEAKIE.

ML S RIERTRBERFERYEMZDTIMNGR, UF
PXAMAESHITIRAMBE~EE, REVGHPITRAKER, RE
LYTE R MEPRIR BN EE I P AT g Al 55

4. HEBHIE
BEEEEEN, F2013£K, RITRUGEL. 2 ERABHENR
BhEs, HEEBHERE.

N, BEEE

BITRAEBREBIHERITEEVSHEBRNEHEZAERHE,
FAMTRANERFSEELRNER. RITRAEENBIRR
THEBRELYRMERZI, TRRRFEBREESENEARTE
EFERFNEHRANL. WFEFREH T IR X,
BITHRIR AR E RSN,

BOEREERE. BALR BROR, —RAKREZFRIE
FiE. MEAASE—REEMEMRMBETEAR.

BITREFHLIRITESHREEENE (FERITUSNEERERZRS
< (2007]) £75) HENERTREERNMT:

10| X%&4R1T (PE ) HRAE 2013 FERE

Entrusted deposits represent funds from depositors, which
depositors have instructed the Bank to grant loans to third
parties designated by them. The credit risk remains with the
depositors.

Entrusted wealth management business is the investment
product according to the agreed investing plan with the clients.
The investment principal is paid by the customers, which
would be managed by the Bank. The Bank would receive the
investment profit on behalf of the customers and pay the profit
to the customers based on the agreed conditions.

4. Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2013, according to the management there
was no other contingent liabilities except those that have been
disclosed in Note 7.2.

(8) Capital management

The Bank has adopted a robust capital management method
to mitigate the inherent risk in the business operation and
complied with the requirements of regulatory authorities
on capital management. The Bank also targets to maintain
sufficient capital adequacy ratio for operations and optimising
shareholders’ value. The Bank may adjust its capital structure
actively to adapt with the change of economic environment
and related risk characteristics.

Core capital includes paid-up capital, capital reserves,
surplus reserves, general reserves and retained earnings.
Supplementary capital includes general loan provision and
others.

The capital adequacy ratio calculated by the Bank in
accordance with the “Regulations Governing Disclosure
Information of Commercial Bank” (CBRC [2007] No.7)
promulgated by CBRC is as follows:



31-12-2013 31-12-2012

LB RS Core capital 3,873,124,484 3,770,556,864
MBHEA Supplementary capital 266,024,733 215,410,922
RERSH Net capital base 4,139,149,217 3,985,967,786
TRAR RV 5 7= R i 4 KB B3 A TR Risk weighted assets and market risk adjustment 20,488,516,435 16,935,305,872
RILERTER Core capital adequacy ratio 18.90% 22.26%
BEAFER Capital adequacy ratio 20.20% 23.54%

B 2013 £, BITHI (RURITAREIRAE (H1T)) ML,
HTAAR R ERHE TR SR RENS. RESER
BURTRL—RARKEETBRTENZE, —RARTRET
BETENZS, ARTRETBETENZI

HITERR (FlRITHEAERMZE ORX17)) HHE, TENEAR
RERIERIT:

Commencing from 2013, the Bank calculates and discloses
capital adequacy ratio according to “Regulations Governing
Capital of Commercial Banks (Provisional)”. CBRC requires that
a commercial bank’s core tier-one capital adequacy ratio, tier-
one capital adequacy ratio and capital adequacy ratio should
not be lower than five per cent, six per cent and eight per cent
respectively.

The capital adequacy ratios calculated by the Bank in
accordance with “Measurement on Capital Management of
Commercial Banks (Provisional)” are as follows:

31-12-2013

Bb—R R Core tier one capital 3,873,124,484
SR Paid-up capital 3,000,000,000
BARNAITNE S Qualified capital reserve (26,242,239)
BRAR Surplus reserves 60,861,195

— AR General reserves 492,879,631

RO ECFE Retained earnings 345,625,897
Bib—RERRIRE Core tier-one capital deductions 60,549,623
HipTh &~ Other intangible assets 60,549,623

ML —RBARBE Net core tier-one capital 3,812,574,861
—RBEARBE Net tier-one capital 3,812,574,861
ZRBEKR Tier-two capital 232,500,996
BRSO EEE Surplus provision for loan impairment 232,500,996
BHERHH Net capital 4,045,075,857
R AR 25 7= Risk-weighted assets 22,801,961,676

Hep: ERKEMLZE~
AR I
BRAE R AR B2 7
Bb—RERTEE
—RHRAREER
BEARER

Of which: Credit risk-weighted assets
Market risk-weighted assets
Operational risk-weighted assets

Core tier-one capital adequacy ratio

Tier-one capital adequacy ratio

Capital adequacy ratio

19,637,642,533
1,681,002,440
1,483,316,703
16.72%
16.72%

17.74%

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013 | 111



HITHEA T B R RAXEERUIRTE S ENRFIREEM 5]
RARMBITHEN. XFE, BITETTHEEBIRENHZLEK.

. REEHE

1. FRARE
1.1 FRARKER
ERRERHESARZZN FEHHRNE, TEERITHERAR

XA FNEERFFRBROMLBITE X SHEETREM. RITH
FERARNKEERETAHERMER, RIMNBNERRNKEER
BTFHERIE. STHERMRIMGTRKIE,

ERRKRMERIZE: S—ERENEFAEHRITHENEEE,
A THEERMIBME FRETUAFHEUNZFHEERLRTS
HMBENSZEIR—ZFEUNEME. FERREHEPREERRT
RITU S K45 E T S IR (T B A BURAZRE

RATRAIRERT R ERIE . ARSI B S EHRERF LR
FI AR IRABETE TIERAMKE . HITERXNEFNEERRIHT
08, WERREHITOMHERR ENERRKESRS.

Tt 518 4R B BY AR E 7 KU XU A S B _E S SRR Sk KU AR 1ML
Eitt, ZEXZHHE. REEBUARRAITIERERSFFTESH
B SHEE.

1.2 REEEMBEY RS BIRRERHRKEARKBO

THEEAHRFRE, TEEEMEROEEMEREREENREXE
AR OEE T
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The capital adequacy ratios and related components of
the Bank are calculated based on the statutory financial
statements prepared under the Chinese Accounting Standards
for Business Enterprises. During the period, the Bank has
complied with the capital requirements imposed by the
regulator.

(9) Financial instruments risk management

1. Credit risk

1.1 Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk of loss arising from a borrower’s or
counterparty’s inability to meet its obligations as and when
they fall due. The Bank’s credit risk exposure mainly arises
from loans and advances to customers. Credit risk of off
balance sheet items mainly arises from the letters of credit/
guarantees issued as well as loan commitments.

Credit risk concentration refers to the situation whereby there
is a concentration of customers in the same business activities,
geographical location, or industry sector with similar economic
characteristics such that their repayment ability would be
affected by the same economic fluctuations. Credit risk
concentration reflects the sensitivity of the Bank’s performance
to such customer concentration.

The Bank establishes a comprehensive set of policies and
procedures which effectively mitigate and control credit risk.
The procedures cover credit evaluation, credit approval,
credit monitoring as well as reporting. The Bank reviews the
borrowers’ business operations periodically, analyses the
quality of credit portfolio and ensures adequacy of loan loss
provisions.

The risk from financial guarantee and loan commitments
is similar with that from loans and advances to customers.
Hence, the Bank adopts the same policies and procedures for
managing credit contingencies which cover application, follow-
up monitoring and collateral requirements, etc.

1.2 Maximum credit risk exposure without consideration of
any collateral and credit risk mitigation

As at the balance sheet date, the maximum credit risk
exposure of the Bank without taking into consideration of
collateral and credit risk mitigation is set out below:



31-12-2013 31-12-2012

TR RERITFAIR Balances with central bank 6,044,436,374 4,854,586,565
FRUEN R Due from banks 3,859,977,732 5,915,321,787
wH S Placements with banks and other financial

institutions 2,348,429,530 3,458,240,679
R et a8 B R TR\ SR Financial assets at fair value through profit or 971,568,210 633,769,055
SRR loss
ITHEERLE~ Derivative financial assets 1,162,547,669 380,562,194
FENBE &R~ Reverse repurchase financial assets 4,322,810,000
BT Loans and advances to customers 18,853,289,353 14,916,638,219
A E R A Available-for-sale financial assets 3,455,446,675 3,499,934,488
Hithgg /= Other assets 244,613,485 219,821,659
&t Total 41,263,119,028 33,878,874,646
EREEERRKRO (MEEE, 2 Credit commitments (Note7.2) 7,271,854,387 3,949,952,688
RAERARKEHD Maximum credit risk exposure 48,534,973,415 37,828,827,334
1.3 RMRERE 1.3 Risk concentration

MEZHFEPTRE-ITWSHEX, HHFEEERLZEFEHE, H
FRRREESENES. i, FRITLMBXHNEZFLXRAE
HEImrnott s, EEARAITI A X A5 R X IR HEE .

BITEBRBEAEFREGEREMBZBERER. BITRMERME
METASEFEFIE, HEEMNER 8.

1.4 18R

HITIRERZ ST FHEARXR TR ERENERI ST L LR,
FITIIEZHERMWEN THXMIER, SENERYTENEET
BREBAIZEEK .

IR EZFUTLARAER

o SITEEER, IBRYABEMT MERER. RITIBRSANILE;
o WFMARK, ERUARRMEE.

EIRRE R S5 X BRI AN IR R T IA N EF AR EE L E
KEMIRIPY, HAEHTREEENTEMEFERNTSEEERY
BN EL.

The concentration of borrowers/counterparties in the same
industry sector, geographical location or having similar
economic characteristics would tend to pose higher credit risk
to the Bank. On the other hand, the level of credit risk may be
varied from each industry or geographical location in view of
their unique economic development characteristics.

The Bank mainly provides loans and commitments/
guarantees to domestic customers. Analysis on industry sector
concentration for the Bank’s loans and advances can be found
at Note 5. 8.

1.4 Collateral

The amount and type of the collateral required would depend
on the credit risk of the borrowers/counterparties as assessed
by the Bank. The Bank has established a guideline on taking
collateral including the frequency of collateral valuation.

The main types of collateral include:

e For corporate and commercial loans, main collaterals taken
include properties, cash deposits, bank guarantee and
machinery; and

e For personal loans, collateral taken are mainly residential
properties.

The management requires relevant Business Units to monitor the
market value of the collaterals and follow up with the borrowers/
counterparties to top up collaterals in accordance with the
relevant provisions of the loan agreement. The change in market
value of the collateral would also be taken into consideration
when reviewing the adequacy of loan loss provisions.

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013 | 113



15 EARE

BITEMEM S~ (RIBRREES) WERRESTWT:

1.5 Credit quality
The credit quality of financial assets of the Bank (excluding
loan provisions) is analysed as follows:

31-12-2013 BEAREIHAth S2iEE 2RE &it
KBE KA
Neither overdue nor Overdue but not Impaired Total
impaired impaired
B E R Due from banks 3,862,723,727 - - 3,862,723,727
TN Fl’lacerlnems yv|th banks and other 2.348,429,530 : . 2.348,429,530
- financial institutions

A ETEBETET Financial assets at fair value through 971,568,210 - - 971,568,210
N HEAR R A &R B profit or loss

INBEEFE~ Reverse repurchase financial assets 4,322,810,000 - - 4,322,810,000

IR E Interest receivable 209,200,271 - -

209,200,271

V-3 e PN Loans and advances to customers 19,082,588,681 3,201,668 63,912,644 19,149,702,993

AL E SR Available-for-sale financial assets 3,455,446,675 . B 3,455,446,675

a1t Total 34,252,767,094 3,201,668 63,912,644 34,319,881,406

31-12-2012 BE ARG HA S5 eIzl 2RE{E ait

KEE FKRE
Neither overdue nor Overdue but not Impaired Total
impaired impaired
FHREL TR Due from banks 5916,719,885 - - 5,915,719,885
e Placements with banks and other 3,458,240,679 - - 3,458,240,679
- financial institutions

A INMETE B ET T Financial assets at fair value through 633,769,055 - - 633,769,055
LR SR profit or loss

RF 2 Interest receivable 178,642,756 - - 178,642,756

b2 4 Gk Loans and advances to customers 15,107,226,510 1,192,918 107,882,468 15,216,301,896

At ESRE~ Available-for-sale financial assets 3,499,934,488 - - 3,499,934,488

a3t Total 28,793,533,373 1,192,918 107,882,468 28,902,608,759
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Loans and advances that are neither overdue nor impaired
The composition of loans that are neither overdue nor impaired
by collateral arrangement as at the balance sheet date is as

follows:
31-12-2013
E# ESE ait
Pass Special mention Total
ERRZ® Unsecured loans 2,026,011,627 - 2,026,011,627
RIESEK Loans secured by guarantees 3,890,958,899 91,225,884 3,982,184,783
IR LLoans secured by mortgage 7,834,579,100 108,325,092 7,942,904,192
REEN Loans secured by pledges 5,125,888,079 5,600,000 5,131,488,079
&3t Total 18,877,437,705 205,150,976 19,082,588,681
31-12-2012
E#E *kiE ait
Pass Special mention Total
ERARK Unsecured loans 1,704,367,276 - 1,704,367,276
(ENAZEN Loans secured by guarantees 3,687,701,781 - 3,687,701,781
HRAREITR Loans secured by mortgage 6,795,624,354 101,078,028 6,896,702,382
ERLEN Loans secured by pledges 2,818,455,071 - 2,818,455,071
&it Total 15,006,148,482 101,078,028 15,107,226,510
CEHERFEENEBRERERR Loans and advances that are overdue but not impaired

TEEGHRER, SEERBENLBERREERKE SN

Ageing analysis of loans that are overdue but not impaired as
at the balance sheet date is as follows:

31-12-2013
11A 11MA 21A 34MA &it BEERULAALMNE
LA #21MA 2 31MA [y
Within 1 month 1 to 2 months 2 to 3 months More than 3 months Total Fair value of collaterals
W RHE I_oatns and advances to 3,096,159 105,509 ; _ 3,201,668 216,866,129
customers
31-12-2012
118 11A 21A 34MH &it FEBEERMARME
eS| #21H 2 34MA ME
Within 1 month 1to 2 months 2 to 3 months More than 3 months Total Fair value of collaterals
smgmy  oansandadvances to 864,336 203,099 125,483 - 1192918 271,383,250

customers
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Impaired loans and advances

Where there are objective evidences that a single or multiple
negative events have occurred after the initial recognition of
the loans and the impact from the events on the expected
future cash flows can be estimated reliably, the relevant loans
should be recognised as impaired loans. These loans are
classified as “Substandard”, “Doubtful” or “Loss”.

As at the balance sheet date, the fair value of collateral of
impaired loans held by the Bank were as follows:

31-12-2013 31-12-2012

ABSTRAIIBIRY) The collateral value of impaired loan

67,878,000 648,860,599

ERERIE A R MERRTIRE BRI L E LR T IRR
X B ET AT S ROSNER IR AR N E R TR B A B ERRE

SEAMEMERBRER
BRITHTRATHREMEIN SRR EBREFAXR, R THREALAR
R, ISEFRERHEERFN.

THEEHGRRAESEENRKMGEHRRERKENETIRNAT:

The fair value of collateral that the Bank holds is determined
from the latest external valuation with necessary adjustment
made after considering the Bank’s own experience in collateral
disposal as well as the current market conditions.

Restructured loans and advances

The Bank has formulated a set of loan restructuring policies to
renegotiate the contractual terms with customers in order to
maximise the recovery of impaired loans as well as to manage
customer relationships.

The carrying amount of restructured loans and advances is as
follows:

31-12-2013 31-12-2012

SEHNE MG RER
-BRfE

Restructured loans andadvances
- Impaired

8,359,685
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BITHRIMENEEERZETBONEERERTHITH, 884
HEFAGERSMPITERSHUENSTEE. TFIRE. XK
R#. AEARERRATHEERMNRIMNCEIRERE, HE
RAEER] ﬁFﬁﬁ?ﬁﬂmﬂEﬂ SEERIL. FHREMSRE
EEBARRITRAEAECREE. THSE~AGRE SRR
*Ewﬂﬁﬂﬁﬂﬂﬂﬂhﬁ@ﬁm HEARTARRRS / KK
ERERLCRIBXRER.

BITRBENEEEN G EARRAE T RENELITR. EFE
B, EREZURNATXINETT. BRiRTHRIERET
BFEREREMMER S EHF BREEE IR RN XU i5 12
IR AR, RERAMEN, T —RINFERITEMNBEER
M ENERR AR, &R EIEEXERRAMNINITIER, MiEfRE
RHEITHRER, BRAERNEFLERBARNFEHITEESETS.

2. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Bank is unable
to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due.
Liquidity risk arises from the general funding of the Bank’s
banking activities and in the management of its assets and
liabilities including off-balance sheet items.

Liquidity risk is managed in accordance with a framework
of policies, controls and limits approved by the Asset
Liability Committee and Executive Committee. The Asset
Liability Committee formulates key strategies on liquidity risk
management and reviews the Bank’s asset liability structure
and liquidity risk profile on a monthly basis. Day-to-day
management of the Bank’s liquidity is undertaken by GMIM
while Market & Balance Sheet Risk Management Department
independently monitors and reports liquidity risk exposures
against control limits to the Asset Liability Committee/Risk
Management Committee.

The Bank’s liquidity risk management covers the whole
process of strategy development and planning, risk
assessment and measurement, monitoring and review as well
as contingency planning. The Bank measures and manages
liquidity risk mainly by analysing contractual cash flows of
maturing assets and liabilities. The Bank also employs liquidity
early warning indicators, including indicators imposed by
regulators, and controls limits to monitor liquidity risk on
a daily basis. Liquidity early warning indicators are further
classified to signal different level of contingency situations for
appropriate actions.
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TR RIEERX S ETETHMENREN, THHEHANHELE
AEERHRE. HRITEE TR G SRS FEFCEE R
MO k. BITHZS LSRR S S =EHHRE
RATH ARG EIR N B AR 28 R R B T iR =4 f 3
EFiRk, FIREERITE &M T ENERMERREEN.

HITHREEER DL ETHHARKEBO, HoEFTUEEXTS
REERBRRERZARERIFMPITERSNE. FHEMFIR
TR UCRGE R~ HHREERS / RRERERER .

HITREREMEMSAIERENBRET NG, HEZNEES
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3.1 CERE

FERHTRITHE~MAGHEHHERUARINCRZ 5 T A KB
R O I ZE T REEH IR 5 AR .
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3. Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss arising from adverse change in
market value of the Bank’s trading portfolio during the holding
period. The Bank is exposed to market risk mainly from foreign
exchange rate and interest rate related products arising from
trading as well as non-trading businesses. The objective of
market risk management is to minimise the negative impact of
volatility of financial instruments on the Bank’s earnings and
equity.

The Risk Management Division monitors the Bank’s market
risk exposure and formulates market risk policies for
approval by the Asset Liability Committee and the Executive
Committee. Risk profile reports are submitted to the Asset
Liability Committee and Risk Management Committee on a
regular basis.

The Bank measures and manages its market risk in
accordance with a framework of policies and practices which
include sensitivity analysis, Value-at-Risk measure, stress
testing etc. In addition, the market risk associated with
any new product/business is required to be identified and
addressed prior to launch.

3.1 Currency risk

The Bank’s currency risk arises mainly from currency
mismatches of assets and liabilities as well as foreign
exchange trading business whereby the open positions are
subject to exchange rate fluctuations.



T 20184 12 A 31 H, BITHAXE~RAGIRDHMHIITNT:

As at 31 December 2013, the Bank’s assets and liabilities by
currency is as follows:

31-12-2013
EH AR Hit &it

USD(RMB RMB Other (RMB Total (RMB

equivalent) equivalent) equivalent)
B Assets:
& RAF R RIRI TR Cash and balances with the central bank 65,192,932 5,991,704,217 2,557,412 6,059,454,561
FRENL R Due from and placement with banks and 2,078,201,876 4,062,552,703 67,562,683 6,208,407,262
FHZEE other financial institutions
:gggsgjgjﬁiﬂﬁ)\ |Foizzmcial assets at fair value through profit or ] 971,568,210 ) 971,568,210
TSR~ Derivative financial assets 235,558,574 908,410,360 18,578,735 1,162,547,669
ENBRE SR Reverse repurchase financial assets - 4,322,810,000 - 4,322,810,000
b3 e e Loans and advances to customers 3,328,333,692 14,919,999,313 604,956,348 18,853,289,353
A E SRS Available-for-sale financial assets - 3,455,446,675 - 3,455,446,675
Hithg= Other assets 15,406,659 918,158,489 5,323,439 938,888,587
aEat Total assets 5,722,783,733  35,550,649,967 698,978,617 41,972,412,317
fafx Liabilities:
FILTE R BAR G ?;:ntc?a??nitﬁiljtcij;zent from banks and other 6,496,905,833 170,012,303 474,242,799 7,141,160,935
T &R R Derivative financial liabilities 510,519,943 708,181,142 51,606,183 1,270,307,268
ST EEEN Customer deposits 1,191,063,275 27,201,457,509 667,439,769 29,059,960,553
Hitfaf: Other liabilities 4,836,915 603,995,361 19,026,801 627,859,077
ffRET Total liabilities 8,203,325,966 28,683,646,315 1,212,315,552 38,099,287,833
B ffuE LT Net position (2,480,542,233) 6,867,003,652 (513,336,935) 3,873,124,484
TTEEMTIREZXEH .NOtional amounts of derivative financial 75,557,609,301 91,240,114,357 2,534,362,808 169,332,086,466

instruments

fe5kiE Commitments 1,123,544,701 5,907,147,965 241,161,721 7,271,854,387
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31-12-2012

E AR Hit &it
USD(RMB RMB Other (RMB Total (RMB
equivalent) equivalent) equivalent)
BT Assets:
& R AF B RIRITIRI Cash and balances with the central bank 85,461,844 4,781,011,448 2,447,661 4,868,920,953
EREL R &S Due from and placement with banks and 1,446,193,741 7,850,625,623 76,743,102 9,373,562,466
other financial institutions
:g;gﬁgiiigiﬂﬁ)\ l!;iz:ncial assets at fair value through profit or i 633,769,055 ) 633.760.055
TSR Derivative financial assets 144,610,924 235,951,270 - 380,562,194
VA E TN Loans and advances to customers 2,819,944,641 11,509,310,223 587,383,355 14,916,638,219
A E SR AT Available-for-sale financial assets - 3,499,934,488 - 3,499,934,488
Hitb s~ Other assets 26,140,371 880,357,787 3,376,723 909,874,881
HEAT Total assets 4,522,351,521 29,390,959,894 669,950,841 34,583,262,256
fafi: Liabilities:
Ml FR RN EE Pue t(.) ar]d plagement from banks and other 5,086,816,075 316,212,388 515,088,856 5,918,117,319
financial institutions e T B T
T gR AR Derivative financial liabilities 162,936,710 247,688,794 - 410,625,504
STrecE N Customer deposits 868,760,686 22,409,108,028 666,821,715 23,944,690,429
Hitbfafz Other liabilities 18,036,876 495,186,910 20,189,975 533,413,761
ARET Total liabilities 6,136,550,347 23,468,196,120 1,202,100,546 30,806,847,013
B ARk Net position (1,614,198,826) 5,922,763,774 (532,149,705) 3,776,415,243
TEEMTAERNERM .NOtional amounts of derivative financial 72,427,943,771 43,172,505,425 1,760,107,139 117,360,556,335
instruments
(EHRIE Commitments 996,835,528 2,734,022,467 219,094,693 3,949,952,688

UTEZERMEERTHERAT, IMMRLTCRTERENE
bR ORI TR R MENSE b bR

Holding all other variables constant, the impact from a change
in foreign exchange rates on the ‘Profit before tax’ and ‘Equity’
of the Bank is as follows:

31-12-2013 31-12-2012

XL B R0 XL RUF R0

TETH Change in foreign exchange rate Impact on profit before tax Impact on profit before tax
RGBT AE 1% -1% change against RMB 29,938,792 21,463,485
XEABLTTHE 1% +1% change against RMB (29,938,792) (21,463,485)

A EBURME S BT HZ=MARERRSHLERNGSES, HItE
THEMEARAZR, SpHIARTILCENSIEAEENITFHATFI

R HIFNE o
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The sensitivity analysis above is performed on the basis that
assets and liabilities have static currency risk structure. It
shows the impact of a change in other currency rates against
RMB on the Bank’s “Profit before tax” and “Equity”, given

other variables remain constant.



BRODIETUTRIL:

(1) FCRFBEZIEEHMIARDTIRE B ERYE (hiEh)
SCERGIHMEMEN 1% BBV LR ;

(2) FHMCERLENZIEZH M A RMCERERE KR ;

G ILEREHOTEE B atRRRIE.

HATET ERRE, CEREUSHBITO USRI KRRE L
ATRES B ST E R

3.2 FIERE
FERNERE~ETIRITES. HEMTILTHIHABTE (3
BEEFEMS ) REHEN (HFHFEMS ) BERERRE.

HITHOMEXE RN ERMEE, HHEENBREEERE,
EHER~RHRERS / KREERRSBERMR D

BRERFEMRETRRBARRITHAE. MFRREHEE
FRBFBARERENRO DL,

The analysis is based on below assumptions:

(1) Exchange rate sensitivity refers to the gains and losses
caused by the one per cet change of the closing rate (mid
rate) of the different foreign currencies against RMB as at the
balance sheet date;

(2) Exchange rate fluctuation refers to the fluctuation against
RMB in the same direction simultaneously;

(3) Off-balance sheet items are excluded.

Due to the above assumptions, the actual impact of exchange
rate fluctuation on the Bank’s earnings may differ from above
sensitivity analysis.

3.2 Interest rate risk

The Bank’s interest rate risk arises mainly from maturity
mismatches (for fixed rate) or re-pricing mismatches (for floating
rate) of the Bank’s assets, liabilities, and off-balance sheet
items.

The Risk Management Division monitors interest rate risk
exposure, formulates related policies and procedures and
provides regular report on interest rate risk profile to the Asset
Liability Committee and Risk Management Committee.

The Bank adheres to PBOC regulations strictly in pricing its
loans and deposits. Interest rate risk exposure is quantified
and analysed mainly using gap analysis tools such as re-pricing
schedules.
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BRITHE~RAGRAREEN HSEIH

As at 31 December 2013, the Bank’s assets and liabilities

HAEEREESTUT: re-pricing profiles (based on the earlier of maturity date and
repricing date) is as follows:
31-12-2013
3AMAR KEOEIRE:3 15855 5&EME KitE &it
Within 3 3 months to 1to 5 years Non-interest Total
months 1 year 5 years above bearing
B Assets:
Cash and balances with the
n ; TE 197 B B B 76,256,965 6,059,454,561
& R AF R RIRI TR central bank 5,983,197,596
Due from and placement
GRENRIFEES with banks and other 5,133,075,376 875,331,886 200,000,000 - - 6,208,407,262
financial institutions
L)(’AMME%IEH%}“; Financial asslets at fair value 691,938,110 279,630,100 , _ _ 971,568,210
N Ll through profit or loss
TTHESRE~ Derivative financial assets - - - 1,162,547,669 1,162,547,669
ENRESRARS Reverse repurchase 2,752,660,000 1,570,150,000 ; - - 4,322,810,000
financial assets
Loans and advances to
S b 4 b T e ~ -
b3 e E TN customers 14,497,765,856 3,869,463,041 486,060,456 18,853,289,353
T E AT {:;’:'e'?ge'for'sale financial 1438,798,975 966,090,520  1,050,557,180 - - 3,455,446,675
Hipmr= Other assets - - - - 938,888,587 938,888,587
BEA Total assets 30,497,435,913 7,560,665,547  1,736,617,636 - 2,177,693,221 41,972,412,317
& Liabilities:
Due to and placement from
ELBHRFAAS banks and other financial 5,906,842,565 1:234,318,370 : : ; 7.141,160,935
institutions
P e
e e R Derivatives financial - - - 1270,307,268 1270,307,268
liabilities
SLegERN Customer deposits 14,378,651,778 10,878,680,541  3,802,628,234 - - 29,059,960,553
Hitfafi Other liabilities - - - 627,859,077 627,859,077
fEAH Total liabilities 20,285,494,343 12,112,998 911 3,802,628,234 - 1,898,166,345 38,099,287,833
FRREEN Net position 10,211,941,570 (4,552,333,364)  (2,066,010,598) - 279,526,876 3,873,124,484
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F20124£ 12831 H, RITHNETRARKAREENHZEIE  As at 31 December 2012, the Bank’s assets and liabilities

HAEEREESTUT: re-pricing profiles (based on the earlier of maturity date and
repricing date) is as follows:
31-12-2012
31MARN KRz EIRE:3 1425 4F 5&EME TitE &it

Within 3 3 months to 1to 5 years Non-interest Total

months 1 year 5 years above bearing
B Assets:
M& RAF B RIBITEI g;?: and balances with the central -, 77, 56 g5 - - . 96464004 4868920953
EREN R RS S gﬁg ;rt%r;?ir;c;rf)cl?j ?;T;(;?St\g';z banks 7,482,845,150 1,890,717,316 - - - 0,373,562,466
UasmEitE EEERIT  Financial assets at fair value through
NSRS R A profit or loss 633,769,055 ) ) ’ " SRR
TSRS~ Derivative financial assets - - - - 380,562,194 380,562,194
b3, e e Loans and advances to customers 13,028,233,591 1,888,404,628 - - - 14916,638,219
A E SR Available-for-sale financial assets 982,784,088 1,508,344,650  1,008,805,750 - - 3499,934,488
Higre Other assets - - - - 900,874,881 909,874,881
#EE Total assets 26,900,088,743 5,287,466,594  1,008,805,750 - 1,386901,169  34,583,262,256
fafi: Liabilities:
FE ERRIRN RS Eﬁj ;?hzr:?i:;iiiegﬁgﬁmgnzanks 5,918,117,319 - - - - 5918,117,319
TE &R Derivative financial liabilities - - - - 410,625,504 410,625,504
UGS Customer deposits 12,823,882,823 7.232,435,154  3,788,372,452 100,000,000 - 23944,690,429
Hithgaf Other liabilities - - - - 533,413,761 533,413,761
fafRatt Total liabilities 18,742,000,142 7232435154  3788372,452 100,000,000 944,039,265  30,806,847,013
FlEREEHRA Net position 8,158,088,601 (1,944,968,560)  (2,779,566,702) (100,000,000) 442,861,904  3,776,415,243
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HITHFHMETRZREENH, MEEHNERTRZREMAE
B SRR R &R ARINEENER.

UTRARMEEFATNRAT, MERAERENSELEINIHAET
FE R X 75 E RIS .

The Bank profiles its interest bearing assets and liabilities
based on maturity date for fixed rate items or re-pricing date
for floating rate items.

Holding other variables constant, the impact of interest rate
movement on the Bank’s “Profit before tax” and “Equity” is as
follows:

31-12-2013

TR RTFIE B R0 TR R

TETH Change in interest rate Impact on profit before tax Impact on equity

FZHEAN 100 MES + 100 basis points 72,283,239 (29,256,868)

FlE A 100 MES - 100 basis points (72,283,239) 29,256,868
31-12-2012

R RTFIE B0 T ER AR

TETH Change in interest rate

Impact on profit before tax Impact on equity

FIZRIEHD 100 NE &S
FIZR D 100 NE &S

+ 100 basis points

- 100 basis points

64,089,643 (29,498,539)

(64,089,643) 29,498,539

UEHBESITET E=MAGREAHFSHFRNIEEE. BXH
DHREE—FAFREN, RBRA—FARITENAGHER
ENHRITRFUTEFSRANEE, ETUTRE:

) BE=ZANRARZANABRE—FREMENTE NS
FERAFIRRERXIE D EERENRBIE ;

(2) Wrss R Hh e F R LT AT EN;

(3) FEMABEEHTHMEN;

(4) WFMEREHOFEEE~AHRRFIBE.

HATET LR RR, MERERSEHITHSFEANLIBLIFREL
ATRES I B ST E R A

W EE LR B 0T R E T U R 2 e R R LM F BRI R,

BEREFERLTHN—FEB DR T fEERFREQ RN EH
ITEMHESHN.
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The sensitivity analysis above is performed on the basis that
assets and liabilities have static interest rate risk structure. It
reflects the impact of interest rate movement on the Bank’s net
interest income over a one-year period. The key assumptions
are as follows:

(1) All assets and liabilities with re-pricing date less than three
months or between three months and one year are assumed
to be re-priced in the middle of the respective time bucket;

(2) Yield curve shifts in parallel with interest rate change;

(3) Assets and liabilities are not subject to other changes; and

(4) Off-balance sheet items are excluded.

Due to the above assumptions, the actual impact of net interest
income from interest rate movement may differ from above
sensitivity analysis.

The impact on equity is estimated from the change in market
value of “Available-for-sale” portfolio caused by a parallel shift
of yield curve arising from interest rate change.



4. HHE

ARNEEEX VA HNEREETZALRS R RETRE
BB RE. EXSEFRZHH (PIANATIES RS ) HEN
ZHT, TNNERTEARNEZ SEEH. AT, RITHEE
RETZBAEMETRAERTHN. B, FFZBHETMN
TRz EMTE, INTEHRZ TES b EA RN E.
B2, BANSSERITZNELTELRRNESRERS, i
MR, MURETRAZ IR,

PR ERBRIRIT :

() ARRMETEEETHITALBRENEME~/ /1
G (BETEEMES / €M5aR) NeEaHsRemn
HEEQARNE. METHSBZHN, WENEREFMNMG
BEARNESRSRZSZNAHRNBELR> ANE. ARNEF
Tt FmE 2 &5

(i) T 12 NAARAZ At e~ o THIRESE, €1
HKENMES 2R NERE;

(i) LERSTFIRLFER TR MR TIAFREH, HARMN
BEUALBHIARESEGE. SRESPEERECTNHER
ERBRAMERTTER, ERARERRNGEZ G RImERS
IR, MIKEER A M ESRIR;

(iv) ERERNETRRMERBEESFFE. FRERRTE
ERFEAZEEWRABRRER BB ST AL RN E.
AEEHRZERHXANEUAREREMIEGEE, HUER
AEZERERRIR R EARI A TR FIZ.

HATHE L AN ER T ATV R IAT A

(i) WEHN: HNRERMLHREIFENTIARN
(i) EEHY: TN RERGERARHEITHE.

EEAREASAXANEN—MLEAER, ZRREZUFER,
R Z MR TREUARHR A AN ERER M. BITEENEER
BEREEINTRNER, flMENEGEFEMREGEFE,
USRI EIB A

4. Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is the value for which an asset could be exchanged,
or a liability could be settled, between willing parties with
full knowledge and on arm’s length basis. Subject to the
existence of an active market, such as an authorised securities
exchange, the market value is the best reflection of the fair
value of financial instruments. As there is no available market
value for some of the financial assets and liabilities held and
issued by the Bank, the discounted cash flow method or other
valuation methods described below are adopted to determine
the fair value of these assets and liabilities. However, the value
determined by such methods would depend on the amount of
future cash flows, time period assumption and discount rates
used.

The following methods and assumptions are used in estimating
fair values:

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (including
derivative assets/liabilities) are stated at fair value by
reference to the quoted market prices when available. If
quoted market prices are not available, the fair value is
estimated using discounted cash flows or quoted price
from the counter parties. The carrying amounts of these
items reflect the fair value as at the balance sheet date;

(ii) The fair values of other financial assets and liabilities
maturing within 12 months are assumed to be equal to
their carrying amounts in view of their short maturity;

(iii) The fair value of fixed rate loans priced at market rate at
the time the loans are extended shall be determined using
prevailing market rates of similar loans. Changes in the
credit quality of loans within the portfolio are not taken
into account in determining the fair values as the impact
of credit risk is recognised separately as impairment
provision which shall be deducted from the carrying
amounts and fair value;

(iv) Customer deposits are priced based on fixed rate or
floating rate depending on the product type. The fair
value of demand deposits and saving deposits without
specific maturity date is determined based on the amount
payable on demand.The fair value of fixed deposits are
estimated using discounted cash flows method with the
prevailing deposit rate for the remaining tenor of the fixed
deposit as the discount rate.

The method of determining a fair value in the Bank can be
categorised into two main approaches:

(i) Mark to Market — where the valuation uses independent
unadjusted quoted market prices;

(ii) Mark to Model — where valuation techniques are used to
determine the valuation.

Valuation adjustments are an integral part of the fair value
process that requires the exercise of judgment to ensure
correct fair value representation. In making appropriate
valuation adjustments, the Bank follows the methodologies
that consider factors such as bid-offer spread valuation
adjustment and model valuation adjustment.
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AfhE, BEPHNREMEABLFLAEIRIZFHNMNEANEIR
IE. tesh, WEIRHNR. MASH. RRMGEEBEELERSE
BHREMEE, HitHGEEFTEEERZMITEERS.

BITRRBHITAANERENEM~ R A=NER:

F—BR: 2FAHHNIE
RMEERAERERE~MAGREERTZRNSHEEESH.
WHEANEELEN e~ REERTREGECEEARAREAL
AN RIS

FRE: MEMASETUBIHANESHHNMAERAK
RMEESTRAREIMERREHE, MAANNSEBEETILE
BUE. XMERSERERITAS . BRENREMN—LH
SE5ELBREAMBEZNHEAR. FUAXIERNEM~REER
SMOEHEA, SNCER, RERTH/ ERRIEERZNITER (AN
BEmminicE. MEREHR. SOCHAN. ZEXEWI) , HFEEL
RMERZ S FRENEM~m (NEXNEIRERE~m)

FZR%: HEESHTEEENERSIRANMGERK
MG ERAREAAETARROEM ERNEEZEFTRES K.
BRSBTS AR SR~ RTANEINER.

UEBEBRERFEDNABITESRARZARNMERFE—BZHE
BN, AT, ATHEMNEISERTRZEELRRE, &Ml
MR Ez A R NERLTEE BT,

TRIRTHE (ULXRNETTER) €MTAEQRNEMGER
REFTE:
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The Bank has established internal control procedures
over the valuation process to provide assurance over the
appropriateness of the fair values applied. If fair value is
determined by valuation models, the assumptions and
techniques within the models are independently validated
by a specialist group. In addition, price and parameter
inputs, assumptions and valuation adjustments are subject
to verification and review processes. Other valuation control
includes review and analysis of daily profit and loss.

The Bank classifies all the fair value instruments according to
the following hierarchy:

Level 1: Quoted market price

This valuation technique uses recent unadjusted quoted
prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets where
the price represents actual and regularly occurring market
transactions on an arm’s length basis. Financial instruments
included in this class are bonds with the marked-to-market
prices actively made available and announced by China
Central Depository & Clearing Co. Ltd.

Level 2: Valuation technique using observable inputs

This valuation technique is used for financial instruments
where the prices are derived from standard valuation models,
and inputs to these models are directly observable. The
valuation techniques include the use of discounted cash
flow analysis, option pricing models and other valuation
techniques widely used and accepted by market participants.
The financial instruments included in this category are mainly
Foreign Exchange Forward and Foreign Exchange Swaps,
Noble Metals Forward and Swaps, and OTC derivatives
(namely money market deposit and placement, interest
rate swap, FX Option, Rediscounted bills) and financial
instruments with fair value derived from counterparty (for
structured products arranged on back-to-back basis).

Level 3: Valuation technique with significant non-observable
inputs

This valuation technique is used where at least one significant
input is not observable and reliance is placed on reasonable
assumptions made on market conditions. There is currently no
financial instrument being classified under such category.

All the assumptions and methods mentioned above provide a
consistent basis for the calculation of fair value of the Bank’s
assets and liabilities. However, other institutions may use
different assumptions and methods. Therefore, the fair values
disclosed by different financial institutions may not be entirely
comparable.

The following table shows the valuation techniques for
evaluating fair value of financial instruments:



EF—EB% EZRER E =2 Ait
31-12-2013 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
A & SR Available-for-sale financial assets 3,455,446,675 - - 3,455,446,675
TEEmE~ Derivative financial assets - 1,162,5647,669 - 1,162,547,669
ERE ST Total financial assets 3,700,999,025 1,888,563,529 - 5,589,562,554
T SRR Derivative financial liabilities - 1,270,307,268 - 1,270,307,268
ERARET Total financial liabilities - 1,270,307,268 - 1,270,307,268

E—BR EZRR EZER Ait
31-12-2012 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Al & SR T Available-for-sale financial assets 3,425,450,310 74,484,178 - 3,499,934,488
TSR EE Derivative financial assets - 380,562,194 - 380,562,194
EMES~ET Total financial assets 3,961,997,400 552,268,337 - 4,514,265,737
TSR AR Derivative financial liabilities - 410,625,504 - 410,625,504
ERARET Total financial liabilities - 410,625,504 - 410,625,504

KEE, RITREZEURXANETENE-—ERME_ELHERM

PGSRz B H .

ERRINA, TER, RITHHMESMB~MEMAKRNARNE
SHRNNKANEFEERER.

During the year, the Bank had no transfers between level 1
and level 2 of the fair value hierarchy for financial assets and
liabilities which were recorded at fair value.

In the opinion of the management, the difference between the
fair value and the carrying amount of the financial assets and
financial liabilities is not material as at the balance sheet date.
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1. REXA BN E Rt
FTAREE, THEHFEBBEITHREKT:

(1) WFFHATHEMERFZ AR T ;

(2) BITHXRBEBARURSHXRBETHIRER S ;

(3) HATHXREBEARRSHXRBETNRER FIEH]
HEWTHISEMERZ M E i,

(10) Related party transactions

1. Criteria of identifying related parties
Details of the Bank’s major related parties in 2013 are
as follows:

(1) Investors exercise significant influence over the Bank;

(2) Key management personnel of the Bank or the close
family members;

(3) Enterprises under control, jointly control or significant
influence of the key management personnel of the Bank or
the close family members.

2. Parent company of the Bank

&AW W R Rt EMEE HE M LB
Name Business nature Registered address Registered capital Shareholding
KERITERAR SRITR ERABRSS Frnis 4,501 BA#M 100%
United Overseas Bank Limited Banking and financial service Singapore SGD 4,501 Million 100%

3. FAFEASRITAXKZ ZMH XA

3. The related parties which the Bank had
transactions during the period are as follows

EEAsYNSEEL A

Company under the common control of parent company

E4 A SR A EMES EERRA
Name Business nature Registered address Registered capital Legal representative
stz F5 W Ak =E
KERT (BRED) ARAT RETR TS SRET iff'_m*“ﬁ Eah
JT
United Overseas Bank (Malaysia) Bhd  Banking and financial service Kuala Lumpur Malaysia RM 2 Billion Wong Kim Choong
KAERIT (FE) BRAT RITRETMARS %=E 84 =R B
248.57 {2t
United Overseas Bank (Thai) PCL Banking and financial service Bangkok Thailand THB 24.86 Billion Peter Foo Moo Tan

ZHARNEXZIE AT

Company under the significant influence of the parent company

AR A 4R A i EMEAR EEREA
Name Business nature Registered address Registered capital Legal representative
= = A 4= =1 P2 AR =iE
[EERITRIBBEIRAT SRITR &RLAR S5 FE HE _ £EIE

16.91Z7T
Evergrowing Bank Co., Limited Banking and financial service Yantai China RMB 1.69 Billion Jiang Xi Yun
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SFRITEFYAEEEARBEAZMN AT
Company under the significant influence of the Bank’s director and key management

E2 V2353 A FMEE HEERRA

Name Business nature Registered address Registered capital Legal representative
el (B BEEARAR SEEEHEE hE Ei %38 2,500 AT HAE

Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited Hotel management Xiamen China USD 25 Million Liam Wee Sin
Rl H LB~ F L BRAR B & hE XiE ARMm 781w MAE

Tianjin UOL Xiwang Real Estate Co.,Ltd Real estate development Tianjin China RMB 780 Million Liam Wee Sin
MR AEEE (L) BRAF BRIGRER hE £ %L 1,555 AT SRFE

UOB Venture Management (Shanghai)
Co., Ltd

Consulting and investment
management

Shanghai China

USD 15.55 Million

Seah Kian Wee

UOB Holdings (USA) Inc. ERAF] X£E 44 7T 650 AT Philip Cheong
Shin Keat

UOB Holdings (USA) Inc. Holding company New York USA USD 6.5 Million Philip Cheong
Shin Keat

RIE (L£38) RBEEWARLQF BaRBEER FE b %L 650 AT "l

Kheng Leong (Shanghai) Investment Consulting and investment Shanghai China USD 6.5 Million Wee Ee Chao

Management Co., Ltd management

FMBMRERAE EfrEim KR & hE KE AR 3,021 AT XA

UBI Logistics (China) Limited Agency service for Dalian China RMB 30.21 Million Zhao Xi Wang

international transportation
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SRITESHIXBEEAREXRYMMAR (4)
Company under the significant influence of the Bank’s director and key management

2% A F R A FMEE EERKRA
Name Business nature Registered address Registered capital Legal representative
EBIREEABRAR FIEFHEE R FE Bl %7100 AT RER
Xiamen Tiger Medicals Co., Ltd. Manufacture and sale of Xiamen China USD 1 Million Goh Bee Leong
Chinese pharmaceutical
products
ARER RSN REBRAR HBEMEEKE hE mER £ 500 AT ErFE
TEiR R AR XA S
Chengdu Haw Par Oceanarium Owning and operating Chengdu China USD 5 Million Chng Hwee Hong

Amusement Park Limited

oceanariums entertainment
and related services

Haw Par Corporation Limited BRI R ¥ 242,172,298 ovih
Haw Par Corporation Limited Investment holding Singapore SGD 242,172,298 Wee Cho Yaw
I~ RFE Bt = & 0B IR A F BibFE; RREE GE HRE M AR 900 AT =12
%\ BRI EE MmN
Kheng Leong (Guangzhou) Real Real estate consulting; Guangzhou China RMB 9 Million Wee Ee Chao
Estate Consulting Co., Ltd. investment advice (securities
and futures investment
consulting excluded)
MREEM (BRE) ZRBRLF B L FE 5T 2400 AT HER
Singland (Chengdu) Development Real estate industry Chengdu China USD 24 Million Magdalene Yong
Co.Ltd Nyuk Yann
LlEEEa (L8 BIRAR BEEREE, BlLEEEM, FE g ET8ATT AR
K&, BRAREE
Uol Business Consulting (Shanghai) Business information Shanghai China USD 80 Thousand Liam Wee Sin

Co., Ltd.

consulting; corporate
management consulting;
investment advice;
construction plan advice

EERmBELARAR

Shanghai Jin Peng Realty Co., Ltd.

BibFEHF &

Real estate industry

hE EE

Shanghai China

ARM 23127t

RMB 2.3 Billion

Lim Beng Teong

Lim Beng Teong
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4. HKITEXBAZEERS

4. Main transactions between the Bank and related parties

31-12-2013 31-12-2012
RE HREXZ 5 RE HEXXZ 5
b 45 Loans and advances to customers Balance Contribﬁiﬁtl(:% Balance Contrib:ﬁi?mtl(:‘%
REENFLEEM=FLERANE Tianjin UOL Xiwang Real Estate Co., Ltd. 249,875,017 1.30 299,850,021 1.97
MEEM (RE) KRARLF Singland (Chengdu) Development Co., Ltd. 13,372,697 0.09
EEREELARAR Shanghai Jin Peng Realty Co., Ltd. 49,149,240 0.26
&it Total 299,024,257 1.56 313,222,718 2.06
31-12-2013 31-12-2012
RE HREI%EZ S RE HREXS
FR BRI Due from and placement with banks Balance Contribﬁigomntl(:% Balance Contribﬁﬁt%%
KERITHIRAR United Overseas Bank Limited 43,567,065 0.70 31,930,740 0.34
RERIT (BRAL) BRRA United Overseas Bank (Malaysia) Bhd 2,550,970 0.04 1,376,770 0.01
EFRITRBERAA Evergrowing Bank Co., Limited 121,938,000 1.96 580,000,000 6.19
At Total 168,056,035 2.70 613,306,510 6.54
31-12-2013 31-12-2012
RE HREXZ 5 R HREXXZ 5
BEAREANIR Borrowings from banks Balance Contribﬁiﬁu(:% Balance Contribﬁiﬁtl(:‘%
KRERITARAF United Overseas Bank Limited 7,141,153,238 100.00 5,766,003,780 97.43
EERITRIBERAA Evergrowing Bank Co., Limited 816 2,105,711 0.04
&3t Total 7,141,154,054 100.00 5,768,109,491 97.47
31-12-2013 31-12-2012
RE HEXXZ 5 RE HEXXZ 5
R FFaR Customer deposits Balance Contribﬁi%mnt’(:‘% Balance Contribﬁiﬁtl(:‘%
UOB Holdings (USA) Inc. UOB Holdings (USA) Inc. 48,564,417 0.17
HEBHRAEE (L£i5) BRAR UOB Venture Management (Shanghai) Co., Ltd 133,954,172 0.46 85,450,978 0.36
#lEEEa (£5) BRAR Uol Business Consulting (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. 2,204,396 0.01 561,790
HRE (RE) EREBRAF Singland (Chengdu) Development Co., Ltd. 2,505,221 0.01 23,043,752 0.10
BIIEREHERAR Xiamen Tiger Medicals Co., Ltd 7,250,705 0.02 1,225,713 0.01
gl (B17) BEARAR Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited 6,075,761 0.02 8,064,494 0.04
KIE (£35) RATERRAF Kheng Leong (Shanghai) Investment Management Co., Ltd 25,388,975 0.09 17,737,357 0.07
Rl FHE B =F L BRAR Tianjin UOL Xiwang Real Estate Co., Ltd. 121,166,275 0.42 90,566,536 0.38
FBYRARAR UBI Logistics (China) Limited 9,912 346,235
BEESEFREARAR Chengdu Haw Par Oceanarium Amusement Park Limited 2 2,989
Haw Par Corporation Limited Haw Par Corporation Limited 249,074,194 0.86 109,771,250 0.46
EEmmELFRAR Shanghai Jin Peng Realty Co., Ltd. 1,937
MR BE S EFIRAR Kheng Leong (Guangzhou) Real Estate Consulting Co., Ltd. 3,362,277 0.01
&t Total 596,195,967 2.06 340,133,371 1.43
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31-12-2013 31-12-2012
RE HREI%EZ S RE SRS
REALLH] REALLH)
MUFIE Receivables-interest receivables Balance Contribution (%)  Balance Contribution (%)
RRELFERM=FLERAR Tianjin UOL Xiwang Real Estate Co., Ltd. 3,862,907 1.85 4,379,259 2.45
HEEM (BE) ZRAMAR Singland (Chengdu) Development Co., Ltd. - 80,292 0.04
BFRRITRBERLE Evergrowing Bank Co., Limited 14,904 0.01 2,139,861 1.20
EEREELARAR Shanghai Jin Peng Realty Co., Ltd. 86,503 0.04
&it Total 3,964,314 1.90 6,699,412 3.69
31-12-2013 31-12-2012
RE HREI%EZ S RE SRS
RrftF 2 Payables-interest payables Balance Contribuﬁﬂtﬁgg Balance Contribuﬁfft(b"zg
KERITARAF United Overseas Bank Limited 28,932,415 7.06 13,235,481 3.51
UOB Holdings (USA) Inc. UOB Holdings (USA) Inc. 10,482
RECBIRAEE (£iF) BRAR UOB Venture Management (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. 198,899 0.05 100,805 0.03
BIIEFELERAF Xiamen Tiger Medicals Co., Ltd. 726 152
KB (L8) I AEEAERAR Kheng Leong (Shanghai) Investment Management Co., Ltd. 90,583 0.02 32,063 0.01
&l (E)) BEARAT Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited 1,175 3,272
[EERITRDBEIRAT Evergrowing Bank Co., Limited - 315
Kzt HBEMEFEERAT Tianjin UOL Xiwang Real Estate Co., Ltd. 13,554 12,120
FBYRERAR UBI Logistics (China) Limited 1 2,343
S5 (B6) GIRATE Uol Business Consulting (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. 263 100
LigRmBE L ERAR Shanghai Jin Peng Realty Co., Ltd. 35
KERIT (RE) BIRAF United Overseas Bank (Thai) Pcl 11
Haw Par Corporation Limited Haw Par Corporation Limited 66,215 0.02 151,532 0.04
At Total 29,314,359 7.15 13,538,183 3.59
31-12-2013 31-12-2012
RER HEEZS RER HREEZS
BRI — Hth Rk Receivables- other receivables Balance COmribﬁfrmf(t% Balance Contribuﬁﬁt(li%
RERITARLQA United Overseas Bank Limited 3,961,472 0.83 479,731 0.10
31-12-2013 31-12-2012
RE HRI%E 5 RE HEEXS
RELLH REALL B
TR - HA Rk Payables-other payables Balance Contribution (%)  Balance Contribution (%)
KERIT (BRAL) AIRAF United Overseas Bank (Malaysia) Bhd - 198,708 0.28
KERITARAF United Overseas Bank Limited 18,165,636 28.59 17,397,813 24.54
&it Total 18,165,636 28.59 17,596,521 24.82
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2013 2012
&5 HREXXZ S & HREXXZ S
FIEBAN Interest income Amount Contribuﬁﬁ%’% Amount Contribuﬁfm%’%
FBYRBRAR UBI Logistics (China) Limited 461,265 0.03
RN FEEBTFLBRAR Tianjin UOL Xiwang Real Estate Co., Ltd. 16,179,939 1,07 20,933,253 1.53
el (B BEFRAR Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited 86,003 0.01
1BERITIRIBIRAF Evergrowing Bank Co., Limited 9,255,889 0.61 1,034,847 0.08
RERITARAR United Overseas Bank Limited 15,974 3910
EEmE L ARAR Shanghai Jin Peng Realty Co., Ltd. 818,011 0.05
MEEM (REM) KRABEMRAF Singland (Chengdu) Development Co., Ltd. 1,005,851 0.07 122,490 0.01
Ait Total 27,275,664 1.80 22,641,768 1.66
2013 2012
E8; HEEXZS .01 HREEXZS
FEXH Interest expense Amount Contribuﬁﬁt(l""% Amount Contribuﬁﬁ%’%
RERITHRDE United Overseas Bank Limited 42,477,041 6.08 78,181,951 10.54
UOB Holdings (USA) Inc. UOB Holdings (USA) Inc. 88,656 0.01
HEE (RE) ZRABMAR Singland (Chengdu) Development Co., Ltd. 172,981 0.02 69,344 0.01
RERBIRAEE (L) BRAF UOB Venture Management (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. 3,388,900 049 2,242,634 0.30
KRR FEEM=FLERAR Tianjin UOL Xiwang Real Estate Co., Ltd. 156,164 0.02 50,494 0.01
BIIEREHBRAR Xiamen Tiger Medicals Co., Ltd. 9,358 - 5,905
KK (L38) BREEEARAF Kheng Leong (Shanghai) Investment Management Co., Ltd. 364,370 0.05 303,808 0.04
gl (B17) BEARAR Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited 68,073 0.01 56,516 0.01
1BERITIRIBIRAF Evergrowing Bank Co., Limited 261,093 0.04 9,360
#lEEEa (L£5) ARAR Uol Business Consulting (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. 3,489 508
FBYIRERAR UBI Logistics (China) Limited - - 10,724
BEESNE S REARAR Chengdu Haw Par Oceanarium Amusement Park Limited 6 - 17
Haw Par Corporation Limited Haw Par Corporation Limited 1,670,234 0.24 409,031 0.06
TMRFE B 3 = & AR AR Kheng Leong (Guangzhou) Real Estate Consulting Co., Ltd. 1,019 - 1,016
KHEARIT (RE) BRAR United Overseas Bank (Thai) Pcl 51 -
EEREELARAR Shanghai Jin Peng Realty Co., Ltd. 73 -
&it Total 48,661,508 6.96 81,341,308 10.97
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2013 2012

&5 HEIELZS &5 HRXZ 5
FHEBRMASEAN Fee and commission income Amount Contribu%f;ﬁﬁ% Amount Contribu%ogﬁt(li’zg
RERITAIRRE United Overseas Bank Limited 4,306,012 344 3,862,493 5.80
KRR FEEM=FLERAR Tianjin UOL Xiwang Real Estate Co., Ltd. 1,400,000 2.10
HEE (BE) ZRABMAR Singland (Chengdu) Development Co., Ltd. 260 150,000 023
FBYIREIRAR UBI Logistics (China) Limited 10,000 0.02
ARG FRREARAR Chengdu Haw Par Oceanarium Amusement Park Limited 6,640 0.01
EEREELARAR Shanghai Jin Peng Realty Co., Ltd. 2,500,000 2.00
TR B 3 = & A A R AR Kheng Leong (Guangzhou) Real Estate Consulting Co., Ltd. 1,314 760
&t Total 6,807,586 544 5,429,893 8.16

2013 2012

&5 HEIEZS &8 HRXZ 5
WERERE General and administrative expense Amount Contribuﬁfﬁt(t"/fg Amount Contribuﬁﬁt(tf’zg
EERAZFHFE IT support
- RIERITHERLF -United Overseas Bank Limited 21,115,478 3.55 20,499,246 4.08
BE#EE Rental fee
- RERITHRAT -United Overseas Bank Limited 759,728 0.13 651,029 0.13
-t (BT BEBRAR -Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited 198,641 0.03 198,641 0.04
At Total 22,073,847 3.71 21,348,916 4.25

2013 2012

&8 HREEZS & HRXZ 5
TR Software development Amount Contribuﬁﬁ%ﬂ Amount cmnbuﬁtﬁzg
KERITAIRAA United Overseas Bank Limited 6,501,693 43.28 7,702,026 34.00
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31-12-2013 31-12-2012

ERRE HE%EZS ERRE HEEZS

Entrusted SREALL G Entrusted SREALL 5

THEVE Entrusted business deposits Contribution (%) deposits  Contribution (%)

EBIEMREABRAT Xiamen Tiger Medicals Co., Ltd. 11,040,000 5.49 11,040,000 2.51

31-12-2013 31-12-2012

TR HEEZS FREX HEEZS

Entrusted REALL B Entrusted RELLL B

loan Contribution (%) loan  Contribution (%)

A RSE S FEERAT Chengdu Haw Par Oceanarium 11,040,000 549 11,040,000 2,51

Amusement Park Limited

31-12-2013 31-12-2012

RER HEXXZS RER HEEXZS

REALLBI REALLBI

A ESHR SRS Irrevocable loan commitment Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)

MEEM (R#EH) ZRBRAF Singland (Chengdu) Development Co.Ltd - - 11,627,303 4.84

31-12-2013 31-12-2012

RER hE%EZS REN HEXZS

RELLBI REALLHI

TEEMITAEEY Derivatives Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)

KIERITHRAR United Overseas Bank Limited 21,490,820,277 12.69  30,459,930,200 25.95
1EFRIT Evergrowing Bank Co., Limited 1,974,000

&it Total 21,492,794,277 12,69 30,459,930,200 25.95

HITE LR XK HITHRZ ZIRBEZHRE W5 EM4HT, A—
A MEAENEM, HREBWZEFHIT.

HITEXREEAREANZZ B RNT:
AEEBASGERITHES. BFRSREEAR.

REEBARHERFMT:

Transactions between the Bank and related parties mentioned
above are carried out in normal course of business and
commercial terms and market price.

Transactions between the Bank and key management
personnel are as follows:

Key management personnel include directors, supervisors and
senior management.

Key management personnel’s salaries and benefits are as
follows:

2013 2012

ERF e REEREF

Employee salaries and other short-term benefits

45,007,260 37,148,682
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+—. BrFAGERARSEM

BEAMSMEHUER D BIE, RITRBEMBENTERESAR
HEXE~ARREEED.

+=. LLBEE
EFLLRBIENSTEHGRH, UWHFAREEZIIRER.
+=. MEFERZHHE

AVMEHMRELHITESST 2014 &£ 3 A 6 HRUHLE.
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(11) Post balance sheet events
As at the date on which the financial statements are approved,

there is no material post balance sheet event that needs to be
disclosed or adjusted by the Bank.

(12) Comparative amounts

Certain comparative amounts have been adjusted to conform
with the current year’s presentation.

(13) Approval of the financial statements

The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board
of Directors on 6 March 2014.
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